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1. CEMEX's consolidated financial statements as of December 31,
2001 and 2002 and as of June 30, 2002 and 2003 (unaudited), and
for the years ended December 31, 2000, 2001 and 2002 and for the
six-month periods ended June 30, 2002 and 2003 (unaudited),
including a reconciliation of net income and stockholders'
equity to United States generally accepted accounting principles
(attached hereto as exhibit 1).

2. Consent of KPMG Cardenas Dosal, S.C. to the incorporation by
reference into the Registration Statements of their report with
respect to CEMEX's consolidated financial statements (attached
hereto as exhibit 2).

3. Consent of PriceWaterhouseCoopers to the incorporation by
reference into the Registration Statements of their reports with
respect to the financial statements of certain of CEMEX's
consolidated subsidiaries (attached hereto as exhibit 3).

Please note that this report on Form 6-K should be read in conjunction
with CEMEX's annual report on Form 20-F for the year ended December 31, 2002,
which was filed with the Commission on April 8, 2003, and Amendment No. 1
thereto on Form 20-F/A, which was filed with the Commission on April 25, 2003.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Cemex, S.A. de C.V.:

We have audited the consolidated balance sheets of Cemex, S.A. de C.V. and
Subsidiaries as of December 31, 2001 and 2002, and the related consolidated
statements of income, changes in stockholders' equity and changes in
financial position for each of the years in the three-year period ended
December 31, 2002. These financial statements are the responsibility of the
Company's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
financial statements based on our audits. As of December 31, 2000, we did
not audit the consolidated financial statements of certain consolidated
subsidiaries, which statements reflect total assets and revenues of 2% and
0%, respectively, of the related consolidated totals. Those statements were
audited by other auditors whose reports have been furnished to us, and our
opinion insofar as it relates to the amounts included for such
subsidiaries, is based solely upon the reports of the other auditors.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America and Mexico. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatements
and are prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles in Mexico. An audit consists of examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used
and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the
overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits and



the reports of other auditors provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

As discussed in note 2B to the consolidated financial statements, Bulletin
B-15 issued by the Mexican Institute Public Accountants requires the
restatement of prior periods consolidated financial statements to constant
pesos as of the most recent balance sheet presented by applying a weigthed
average index that takes into consideration the inflation rates of the
countries in which the subsidiaries operate and the exchange rate related
to the Mexican peso. The above mentioned consolidated financial statements
have been restated from amounts previously presented to reflect the
purchasing power of the Mexican peso as of June 30, 2003.

In our opinion, based upon our audits and the reports of other auditors,
the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in
all material respects, the financial position of Cemex, S.A. de C.V. and
Subsidiaries at December 31, 2001 and 2002, and the consolidated and parent
company-only results of their operations, the changes in their
stockholders' equity and the changes in their financial position for each
of the years in the three-year period ended December 31, 2002, in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in Mexico.

Accounting principles generally accepted in Mexico vary in certain
significant respects from accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America. Application of accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America would have affected results of
operations for each of the years in the three-year period ended December
31, 2002, and stockholders' equity as of December 31, 2001 and 2002, to the
extent summarized in note 23 to the consolidated financial statements.

KPMG Cardenas Dosal, S.C.

/s/ Rafael Gomez Eng

Rafael Gomez Eng

Monterrey, N.L., Mexico

January 15, 2003, except for the restatement described in the third
paragraph of this report which is as of September 18, 2003, and note 23,
which is as of March 24, 2003

CEMEX, S.A. DE C.V. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Balance Sheets
(Millions of constant Mexican pesos as of June 30, 2003)

December 31, (Unaudited)
Assets June 30,
Current Assets 2001 2002 2003
Cash and investments (NOte 3) .. ..iuunutiinniit e nnnnnneeennnnn Ps 4,381.2 3,830.1 7,435.6
Trade accounts receivable, less allowance for doubtful accounts
(MOTE A) ot et e e e e e e e e e e e e e 6,260.2 4,251.2 4,911.6
Other receivables (note 5). 5,114.8 4,285.2 5,223.2
TNVENTOTIES (NOTE 6) t e vttt et e e e e ettt e e e e e e e e e e e e ettt 6,963.4 7,495.2 7,539.7
Other current assets (NOLE ) .u.iuu it tineenieeeneeneenenneeneneennenns 1,000.4 846.9 1,070.0
Total CUrrent @SSeES...unuueettennneeeennnnneeernenneeeennnnnneens 23,720.0 20,708.6 26,180.1
Investments and Noncurrent Receivables (note 8) .............c..iiiuuionn.
Investments in affiliated companies...........iuiiiiiiiiiiinnnnnnnnnns 5,285.2 5,935.9 6,224.8
Other noncurrent accounts receivable............ . iiiutiiiiiieennnnn. 1,983.2 1,586.4 1,574.7
Total investments and noncurrent receivables...................... 7,268.4 7,522.3 7,799.6
Properties, Machinery and Equipment (note 9)
Land and buildings ...ttt 40,559.7 46,678.5 47,179.1
Machinery and equipment . 119,296.8 129,007.2 132,376.1
Accumulated depreciation (73,543.4) (85,003.5) (88,553.8)
Construction in progress 5,122.0 4,374.0 3,398.6
Net ProPertieS . ittt ittt et ittt 91,435.1 95,056.2 94,400.0
Deferred Charges (notes 10 and 13) ... ... iiiiinnn i 43,565.7 45,702.0 46,311.9
B o B A T Ps 165,989.2 168,989.1 174,691.5
Liabilities and Stockholders' Equity
Current Liabilities
Bank 1loans (NOte L11) ...iiiuinnutttinnnneteennnneeeeonnaeeesoennneeennnns Ps 1,714.8 4,585.0 5,610.6
Notes payable (note 11).. 2,198.4 3,291.9 3,149.2
Current maturities of long-term debt (notes 11 and 12) ...........o... 6,595.7 6,899.7 12,151.9
Trade accounts payable. ...ttt ittt 3,685.1 4,328.7 4,847.0



Other accounts payable and accrued expenses (note 5)................. 9,805.4 12,223.2 10,902.1

Total current liabilities ... iuiiin i inneneeneenennennennens 23,999.4 31,328.5 36,660.8

Long-Term Debt (note 12)

BANK L1O@NS 4t ittt tte et eneteeeeeeneoeeneeaseaeeneensenaeaneaneneennenns 25,063.4 26,249.6 20,624.1
Notes payable 25,968.0 27,036.3 31,530.6
Current maturities of long-term debt (6,595.7) (6,899.7) (12,151.9)

Total long-term debt . ... ...ttt 44,435.7 46,386.2 40,002.8

Other Noncurrent Liabilities

Deferred income taxes (note 17).. 11,504.0 11,563.0 12,455.8
Other noncurrent liabilities .... 2,677.8 5,993.5 10,596.8
Total other noncurrent liabilities ............ .o, 14,181.8 17,556.5 23,052.6
Total Liabilities...etieiniiinennneeiiennneeeennnneeeeannnnnnnns 82,616.9 95,271.2 99,716.2
Stockholders' Equity (note 14)
Majority interest:
Common stock-historical cost basis 53.2 55.2 58.9
Common stock-accumulated inflation adjustments .. . . . 3,344.3 3,344.3 3,344.3
Additional paid-in capital.........ciuuuiniininnnnnn 28,058.7 31,249.7 35,049.8
Deficit in equity restatement (55,728.6) (62,850.8) (65,204.0)
Cumulative initial deferred income tax effects (notes 2K and 17).... (5,309.6) (5,309.6) (5,309.6)
Retained @arnings . ...eiiiiniiettiinniieettennneeeronnneeeennnnnneens 80,705.6 88,913.3 90,766.5
Net InCOME. .ttt it i ittt e ite e ettt 12,045.6 5,517.6 4,103.6
Total majority interest ...... ...ttt 63,169.2 60,919.7 62,809.5
Minority interest (NOTe L4AE) ..uuu e e euunne e e s ieee e iiiee e 20,203.1 12,798.2 12,165.8
Total stockholders' equity .....uiuuuiniiiiiiiiinneeeiiinneeeeennns 83,372.3 73,717.9 74,975.3
Total Liabilities and Stockholders' Equity...........cciiiiiiinnn. Ps 165,989.2 168,989.1 174,691.5
See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
F-3
CEMEX, S.A. DE C.V. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Income
(Millions of constant Mexican pesos as of June 30, 2003, except for earnings per share)
(Unaudited)
Years Ended December 31, Six Months Ended June 30,
2000 2001 2002 2002 2003
Net saleS......... Ps  59,703.2 70,806.2 69,391.3 34,012.9 36,502.2
Cost of sales (33,361.4) (39,827.3) (38,767.6) (18,601.6) (21,198.1)
Gross profit... 26,341.8 30,978.9 30,623.7 15,411.3 15,304.1
Operating expenses:
Administrative ........i.iiiiiiiiiiiii i (6,601.5) (8,077.6) (8,723.4) (4,228.9) (4,124.0)
o T o L (2,173.7) (5,992.3) (8,003.1) (3,746.3) (3,883.3)

Total operating EXPenSEeS........eeuieeeeennnnnnnn. (8,775.2) (14,069.9) (16,726.5) (7,975.2) (8,007.3)

Operating INCOME. .. ..ttt iiiinne i iiiianneeenns 17,566.6 16,909.0 13,897.2 7,436.1 7,296.8

Comprehensive financing result:
Financial exXpense..........iiiiniinnneennnnnnnnnnnn (4,958.9) (4,211.0) (3,526.5) (1,668.3) (1,993.0)
Financial inCOME. ... ... iiuttiiiiiiieeninnneeannn 261.2 416.5 473.0 309.6 124.6
Results from valuation and liquidation of

financial instruments (81.7) 2,042.6 (3,356.4) (821.9) (430.8)
Foreign exchange result, (319.7) 1,573.0 (817.6) (702.5) (236.6)
Monetary position result 3,253.0 2,885.8 3,734.5 1,821.6 1,743.7

Net comprehensive financing result............... (1,846.1) 2,706.9 (3,493.0) (1,061.5) (792.1)

Other eXpense, Net........iiuiuiuueeinnineeernnnneeeennnnns (2,488.7) (4,264.4) (4,128.4) (2,189.5) (1,831.8)

Income before income taxes, employees' statutory

profit sharing and equity in income of affiliates.. 13,231.8 15,351.5 6,275.8 4,185.1 4,672.9
Income tax and business assets tax, net (note 17)...... (1,677.6) (1,706.0) (581.6) (488.4) (548.6)
Employees' statutory profit sharing (note 17)........... (380.3) (241.6) (109.2) (56.5) (52.8)

Total income tax, business assets tax and employees'

STAtuUtory Profit SHATING. ...ee.eeeruunneeennnnnnnns (2,057.9) (1,947.6) (690.8) (544.9) (601.4)
Income before equity in income of affiliates ........ 11,173.9 13,403.9 5,585.0 3,640.2 4,071.5
Equity in income of affiliates ............... 0. 268.7 209.7 325.6 128.3 147.9
Consolidated net iNCOME. ......iiuiintinennennennenns 11,442.6 13,613.6 5,910.6 3,768.5 4,219.4
Minority interest net income.................. ..., 828.1 1,568.0 393.0 181.8 115.8
Majority interest net income ............c.i.iiiiiiiannn Ps 10,614.5 12,045.6 5,517.6 3,586.7 4,103.6
Basic earnings per share (see notes 2A and 20)...... Ps 2.57 2.82 1.23 1.93 1.32
Diluted earnings per share (see notes 2A and 20)..... Ps 2.56 2.80 1.23 1.92 1.28

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.



CEMEX, S.A. DE C.V. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Statements of Changes in Stockholders' Equity
(Millions of constant Mexican pesos as of June 30, 2003)

Cumulative
Additional Deficit initial
Common paid-in in equity deferred income
Stock capital restatement tax effects
Balances at December 31, 19990. ...ttt rennneeenennnnenn Ps 3,392.9 22,810.4 (46,510.5) -
Dividends (Ps0.57 pesos per share) 2.2 2,213.7 - -
Issuance of common stock (note 14A) 0.1 52.7 - -
Issuance of appreciation warrants (note 14F).. (63.9) - -
Share repurchase program (note 14A) (0.1) - - -
Restatement of investments and other transactions
relating to minority interest - - - -
Investment by subsidiaries (note 8) -
- - (1,897.4)
Comprehensive net income (loss) (note 14G)... (5,309.6)
- - (2,963.0)
Balances at December 31, 2000.......c.iuuiuiininnnnnennnnnnns 3,395.1 25,012.9 (51,370.9) (5,309.6)
Dividends (Ps0.66 pesos per share) ............ociuiiinennnnn. 2.5 2,933.5 - -
Issuance of common stock (note 14A) 0.1 112.3 - -
Share repurchase program (note 14A) (0.2) - - -
Restatement of investments and other transactions
relating to minority interest - - - -
Investment by subsidiaries (note 8) - - 64.3 -
Comprehensive net income (loss) (note 14G) .........coevunnnn -
- - (4,422.0)
Balances at December 31, 2001......ccuiuiiniininnnnnnnnnnnnns 3,397.5 28,058.7 (55,728.6) (5,309.6)
Dividends (Ps0.73 pesos per share) 2.2 3,117.3 - -
Issuance of common stock (note 14A) 0.1 73.7 - -
Share repurchase program (note 14A) (0.3) - - -
Restatement of investments and other transactions
relating to minority interest.... - - - -
Investment by subsidiaries (note 8) - - 249.1 -
Comprehensive net income (loss) (note 14G) .........cvevuunnn -
- - (7,371.3)
Balances at December 31, 2002.......citiiniininnennennnnnnns Ps 3,399.5 31,249.7 (62,850.8) (5,309.6)
Dividends (Ps0.73 pesos per share) 3.3 3,599.4 - -
Issuance of common stock (note 14A) - 3.9 - -
Share repurchase program (note 14A) 0.4 196.8 - -
Restatement of investments and other transactions
relating to minority interest - - - -
Investment by subsidiaries (note 8) e - - (341.0) -
Comprehensive net income (loss) (note 14G)... - - (2,012.2) -
Balances at June 30, 2003. ... .0ttt Ps 3,403.2 35,049.8 (65,204.0) (5,309.6)
[TABLE CONTINUED]
Total Total
Retained majority Minority stockholders'
earnings interest interest equity
Balances at December 31, 1999 Ps 76,005.1 55,697.9 13,462.5 69,160.4
Dividends (Ps0.57 pesos per share). (2,438.0) (222.1) - (222.1)
Issuance of common stock (note 14A) - 52.8 - 52.8
Issuance of appreciation warrants (note 14F). e . - (63.9) - (63.9)
Share repurchase program (note 14A) .......... (133.7) (133.8) - (133.8)
Restatement of investments and other transactions
relating to minority interest - - 11,177.2 11,177.2
Investment by subsidiaries (note 8) - (1,897.4) - (1,897.4)
Comprehensive net income (loss) (note 14G)...........c.ovvunnn 10,614.5 2,341.9 828.1 3,170.0
Balances at December 31, 2000.....cciuiiueeerennneeerennnnans 84,047.9 55,775.4 25,467.8 81,243.2
Dividends (Ps0.66 pesos per share) (3,115.4) (179.4) - (179.4)
Issuance of common stock (note 14A) - 112.4 - 112.4
Share repurchase program (note 14A) (226.9) (227.1) - (227.1)
Restatement of investments and other transactions
relating to minority interest - - (6,832.7) (6,832.7)
Investment by subsidiaries (note 8) - 64.3 - 64.3
Comprehensive net income (loss) (note 14G) .........ceuvnnnnn 12,045.6 7,623.6 1,568.0 9,191.6

N}

Balances at December 31, 2001.....ciiuiiueeerennneeernnnnnens 92,751.2 63,169. 20,203.1 83,372.3



Dividends (Ps0.73 pesos per share) (3,467.8) (348.3) - (348.3)
Issuance of common stock (note 14A) - 73.8 - 73.8
Share repurchase program (note 14A3) (370.1) (370.4) - (370.4)

Restatement of investments and other transactions

relating to minority interest
Investment by subsidiaries (note 8)
Comprehensive net income (loss) (note 14G).........ccvvuunn.. 5,517.6 (1,853.

- (7,797.9) (7,797.9)
- 249.1 - 249.1
393.0 (1,460.7)

-

Balances at December 31, 2002 Ps 94,430.9 60,919.7 12,798.2 73,717.9
Dividends (Ps0.73 pesos per share) e (3,664.4) (61.7) - (61.7)
Issuance of common stock (note 14A) ........eiuiiiiniennnnnn. - 3.9 - 3.9
Share repurchase program (note 14A) .........c.iueiuennennenns - 197.2 - 197.2
Restatement of investments and other transactions
relating to minority interest - - (748.2) (748.2)
Investment by subsidiaries (note 8) - (341.0) - (341.0)
Comprehensive net income (loss) (note 14G) 4,103.6 2,091.4 115.8 2,207.2
Balances at June 30, 2003.... ... iuiiiiiiiiiiiii i Ps 94,870.1 62,809.5 12,165.8 74,975.3
See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
F-5
CEMEX, S.A. DE C.V. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Financial Position
(Millions of constant Mexican pesos as of December 31, 2003)
(Unaudited)
Years Ended December 31, Six Months Ended June 30,
2000 2001 2002 2002 2003
Operating activities
Majority interest net income Ps 10,614.5 12,045.6 5,517.6 3,586.7 4,103.6
Charges to operations which did not require resources:
Depreciation of properties, machinery and equipment....... 3,945.8 5,503.5 5,538.3 2,664.7 2,927.3
Amortization of deferred charges and credits, net... 1,248.1 2,604.0 2,577.2 1,160.2 1,111.7
Impairment of assets.. - - 95.1 - -
Pensions, seniority premium and other
postretirement benefits........... 319.4 322.7 210.9 58.4 79.3
Deferred income tax charged to results 664.9 217.9 (420.9) (137.5) 179.0
Equity in income of affiliates . . e . (268.7) (209.7) (325.6) (128.3) (147.9)
Minority interest...... ..ttt 828.1 1,568.0 393.0 181.8 115.8
Resources provided by operating activities.............. 17,352.1 22,052.0 13,585.6 7,386.0 8,368.8
Changes in working capital, excluding acquisition effects:
Trade accounts receivable, net.............oiiiiiinnnnnn. 687.6 782.5 2,273.6 (534.4) (660.5)
Other accounts receivables and other assets............... (74.3) (2,316.2) 1,101.8 (23.9) (1,167.5)
B0 L 182.6 591.5 (336.0) (254.4) (44.5)
Trade accounts payable. . ...ttt ennns 962.7 (1,124.1) 539.0 816.6 518.3
Other accounts payable and accrued €XpPenses............... (626.3) 4,153.1 479.4 39.5 (1,321.1)
Net change in working capital.............ccciiiunnionn. 1,132.3 2,086.8 4,057.8 43.4  (2,675.3)
Net resources provided by operating activities.......... 18,484.4 24,138.8 17,643.4 7,429.4 5,693.5
Financing activities
Proceeds from bank loans (repayments), net.................. 8,416.8 (8,787.2) 2,661.0 3,772.6  (4,599.8)
Notes payable, net, excluding foreign exchange effect
(NOLE 2D) i euuiieiineentoacnonasioaasosstsossansstonaonssans 2,851.2 3,947.3 (316.1) (245.4) 4,232.5
Investment by subsidiaries (1,805.7) (234.2) (4.6) 69.0 222.9
Dividends paid......oovuuiueiininiinnnnnneans (2,438.0) (3,115.4) (3,467.8) (3,467.4) (3,664.4)
Issuance of common stock from reinvestment of dividends...... 2,215.9 2,936.0 3,119.5 3,119.5 3,602.7
Issuance of common stock under stock option programs......... 52.8 112.4 73.8 73.4 3.9
Issuance (repurchase) of preferred stock by subsidiaries..... 16,072.3 (6,728.2) (4,282.5) (4,200.3) 13.1
Sale (acquisition) of common stock under repurchase program.. (133.8) (227.1) (370.4) - 197.2
Other financing activities, net.............iuiiiiininnnennn (2,987.3) (2,211.3) 3,128.7 219.4 3,484.2
Resources provided by (used in) financing activities.... 22,244.2 (14,307.7) 541.6 (659.2) 3,492.3
Investing activities
Properties, machinery and equipment, net.................... (4,230.3) (5,223.6) (4,496.6) (1,609.9) (1,744.7)
Acquisition of subsidiaries and affiliates. . e . (27,695.4) (2,056.8) (2,794.8) - -
Disposal of assetsS. ..ottt 1,479.7 748.0 569.1 - -
Minority dnterest..... ... i (5,628.0) (104.4) (3,024.1) (1,907.6) (761.3)
Deferred ChargesS. ... .u it tii ittt et (354.4) (4,148.4) (1,970.2) (711.4) 336.2
Other investments and monetary foreign currency effect....... (4,535.6) 2,062.6 (7,019.5) (2,023.7) (3,410.5)
Resources used in investing activities................. (40,964.0) (8,722.6) (18,736.1) (6,252.6) (5,580.3)
Increase (decrease) in cash and investments (235.4) 1,108.5 (551.1) 517.6 3,605.5
Cash and investments at beginning of year.............. 3,508.1 3,272.7 4,381.2 4,381.2 3,830.1
Cash and investments at end of year..................... Ps 3,272.7 4,381.2 3,830.1 4,898.8 7,435.6

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS-- (Continued)
December 31, 2000, 2001, 2002 and June 30, 2003
(Millions of constant Mexican Pesos as of June 30, 2003)

1. DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS

CEMEX, S.A. de C.V. (CEMEX or the Company) is a Mexican holding company
(parent) of entities whose main activities are oriented to the construction
industry, through the production and marketing of cement and ready-mix
concrete.

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
A) BASIS OF PRESENTATION AND DISCLOSURE

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
Generally Accepted Accounting Principles in Mexico ("Mexican GAAP"), which
include the recognition of the effects of inflation on the financial
information. The Company's financial statements and their related notes for the
interim periods as of and for the six months ended June 30, 2003 and 2002 have
not been audited. These statements and notes have been prepared on a basis that
is substantially consistent with the accounting principles applied in our
financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2002.

For purposes of disclosure, when reference is made to pesos or "Ps", it means
Mexican pesos; when reference is made to dollars or U.S.$, it means currency of
the United States of America ("United States"). Except when specific references

are made to "U.S. dollar millions"™, "U.S. dollar thousands", "earnings per
share" and "number of shares", all amounts included in these notes are stated
in millions of constant Mexican pesos as of the balance sheet date.

When reference is made to "CPO" or "CPOs", it means the Company's "Ordinary
Participation Certificates". Each CPO represents the participation in two
series "A" shares and one series "B" share of the Company's common stock. "ADS"
or "ADSs" refer to the Company's "American Depositary Shares", listed on the
New York Stock Exchange ("NYSE"). Each ADS represents 5 CPOs.

Certain amounts reported in the notes to the consolidated financial statements
as of December 31, 2000 and 2001 have been reclassified to conform to the 2002
presentation.

In 2002 and subsequent periods and partially during 2001, the expenses related
to the Company's products distribution were classified as selling expenses in
the income statement. Fully during 2000 and partially during 2001, such
expenses were recognized as part of cost of sales for an approximate amount of
Ps3,974.1 and Psl1,594.5, respectively. This reclassification has no effect in
operating income, net income and/or earnings per share for the years ended
December 31, 2000 and 2001, if the mentioned expenses had been recognized
consistently with the 2002 classification.

B) PRESENTATION OF COMPARATIVE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The restatement factors applied to the financial statements of prior periods
were calculated based upon the weighted average inflation and the fluctuation
in the exchange rate of each country in which the Company operates relative to
the Mexican peso. The weighted average inflation factor used to bring the
constant peso amounts as of June 30, 2002 into constant pesos as of June 30,
2003 was 1.0483, while the restatement factor for the same period considering
Mexican inflation-only was 1.0453.

December 31, June 30,
2000 2001 2002 2003
Restatement factor using weighted average inflation 1.0236 0.9900 1.0916 1.0217
Restatement factor using Mexican inflation............... 1.0903 1.0456 1.0559 1.0114

Common stock and additional paid-in capital are restated by Mexican inflation.
The weighted average inflation factor is used for all other restatement
adjustments to stockholders' equity.



C) PRINCIPLES OF CONSOLIDATION

The consolidated financial statements include those of CEMEX and the subsidiary
companies in which the Company holds a majority interest and/or has control.
All significant balances and transactions between related parties have been
eliminated in consolidation.

CEMEX, S.A. DE C.V. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (Continued)
December 31, 2000, 2001, 2002 and June 30, 2003
(Millions of constant Mexican Pesos as of June 30, 2003)

As of December 31, 2002, the main operating subsidiaries, ordered by holding
company, and the percentage of equity interest directly held by their immediate
holding company, are as follows:

% Equity
Subsidiary Country Interest
CEMEX Mexico, S.A. de C.V.. .. 1 Mexico 100.0
CEMEX Espana, S.A. .ttt uitennnenennnns 2 Spain 99.5
CEMEX Venezuela, S.A.C.A.... . eueen. Venezuela 75.7
CEMEX, INC ottt ettt eeeeeeaanaeeennn 3 United States 100.0
Cementos del Pacifico, S.A............ Costa Rica 98.4
Assiut Cement Company.........eeeeuon. 4 Egypt 95.8
CEMEX Colombia, S.A. ...ttt iiiennnnn. 5 Colombia 98.2
Cemento Bayano, S.A. ...t uunnnnnnn Panama 99.2
Cementos Nacionales, S.A......eueeunene.. Dominican Republic 99.9
Puerto Rican Cement Company, Inc...... Puerto Rico 100.0
CEMEX Asia Holdings Ltd............... 6 Singapore 92.3
Solid Cement Corporation............ 7 Philippines 94.6
APO Cement Corporation.............. 7 Philippines 99.9
CEMEX Thailand Co. Ltd.............. 7 Thailand 100.0
Latin Networks Holdings, B.V.............. 8 Netherlands 100.0
1. As of December 31, 2002, includes an approximately 0.6% equity interest
held by a trust in benefit of the Company (see note 14F). CEMEX Mexico,

S.A. de C.V. ("CEMEX Mexico"), an entity created during 1999 as a result
of a merger of most of the cement subsidiaries in Mexico, holds 100% of

the shares of Empresas Tolteca de Mexico, S.A. de C.V. ("ETM") and Centro

Distribuidor de Cemento, S.A. de C.V. ("Cedice"). In January 2001, CEMEX

Mexico acquired from the Company a majority interest in Cedice, which
indirectly holds the Company's operations in foreign countries. As a
result, as of December 31, 2001 and 2002, CEMEX Mexico indirectly holds
CEMEX Espana, S.A. and subsidiaries.

2. In June 2002, Compania Valenciana de Cementos Portland, S.A.
("Valenciana") changed its legal name to CEMEX Espana, S.A. ("CEMEX
Espana"). CEMEX Espana is a subsidiary of New Sunward Holdings, B.V., a

holding company in which the Company holds a 90% equity interest. In
addition, the Company's ownership includes a 6.82% equity interest of
CEMEX Espana, related to a financial transaction, pursuant to which the
Company retains 100% of the economic benefits related to such 6.82%
interest (see note 16A).

3. CEMEX, Inc. was created as a result of a merger between Southdown, Inc.
and CEMEX USA, Inc. (see note 8A).

4. In October 2001, CEMEX Espana made a capital contribution to Assiut Cement
Company in exchange for 79.87% of the common stock of such entity,
becoming its indirect parent company.

5. In August 2002, Cementos Diamante, S.A. changed its legal name to CEMEX
Colombia, S.A. ("CEMEX Colombia"). The 98.2% equity interest includes the
Company's ownership of 99.3% of the total ordinary shares.

6. In July 2002, as a result of a shares exchange transaction (see note 8A),
for accounting purposes beginning in July 2002, the Company's equity
interest in CEMEX Asia Holdings Ltd. ("CAH") increased to 92.25%.



7. Represents the Company's indirect economic benefits held through CAH. As a
result of a shares acquisition in July 2002, the indirect economic
benefits of the Company in Rizal Cement Company ("Rizal") increased to
94.58% (see note 8A). On December 23, 2002, Rizal was merged with its
subsidiary Solid Cement Corporation ("Solid"), where the surviving
corporation was Solid. In July 2002, Saraburi Cement Company Ltd. changed
its legal name to CEMEX (Thailand) Co. Ltd.

8. Latin Networks Holdings B.V. is the holding company of entities engaged in
the development of the Company's Internet strategy.

CEMEX, S.A. DE C.V. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (Continued)
December 31, 2000, 2001, 2002 and June, 30, 2003
(Millions of constant Mexican Pesos as of June 30, 2003)

D) FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSACTIONS AND TRANSLATION OF FOREIGN CURRENCY FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are recorded at the exchange
rates prevalent on the dates of their execution or liquidation. Monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are adjusted into pesos at
the exchange rates prevailing at the balance sheet date. The resulting foreign
exchange fluctuations are reflected in the results of operations, except for
the exchange fluctuations arising from foreign currency indebtedness directly
related to the acquisition of foreign entities and the fluctuations associated
with related parties balances denominated in foreign currency that are of a
long-term investment nature, which are recorded against stockholders' equity,
as part of the foreign currency translation adjustment of foreign subsidiaries.

The financial statements of consolidated foreign subsidiaries are restated for
inflation in their functional currency based on the subsidiary country's
inflation rate and subsequently translated into pesos by using the foreign
exchange rate at the end of the corresponding reporting period for balance
sheet and income statement accounts. The exchange rate of the peso against the
U.S. dollar used by the Company is based on a weighted average of the free
market rates available to settle its foreign currency transactions.

E) CASH AND INVESTMENTS (note 3)

Investments include fixed-income securities with original maturities of three
months or less, as well as marketable securities readily convertible into cash.

Investments in fixed-income securities are recorded at cost plus accrued
interest. Investments in marketable securities are recorded at market value.
Gains or losses resulting from changes in market values, accrued interest and
the effects of inflation are included in the income statements as part of the
Comprehensive Financing Result.

F) INVENTORIES AND COST OF SALES (note 6)

Inventories are recognized at the lower of replacement cost or market value.
Replacement cost is based upon the latest purchase price or production cost.
Cost of sales reflects replacement cost of inventories at the time of sale,
expressed in constant pesos as of the balance sheet date.

G) INVESTMENTS AND NONCURRENT RECEIVABLES (note 8)

Investments in affiliated companies are accounted for by the equity method,
when the Company holds between 10% and 50% of the issuer's capital stock, and
does not have effective control. Under the equity method, after acquisition,
the investment's original cost is adjusted for the proportional interest of the
holding company in the affiliate's equity and earnings, considering the effects
of inflation.

In May 2001, an available for sale investment recorded under the caption other
investments was sold. As a result, the income statement for the year ended
December 31, 2001, presents the reversal of the valuation effects that were



accrued in equity (see note 8B).
H) PROPERTIES, MACHINERY AND EQUIPMENT (note 9)

Properties, machinery and equipment are presented at their restated values
using the inflation index of the assets' origin country and the variation in
the foreign exchange rate between the country of origin currency and the
functional currency.

Interest incurred during the construction or installation period of fixed
asset, which is part of the Comprehensive Financing Result, is capitalized as
part of the carrying value of such assets.

Depreciation of properties, machinery and equipment is provided on the
straight-1line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets. The useful
lives of the assets are as follows:

Years
Administrative buildings........ii ittt eeeeeennnn 50
Industrial buildings, machinery and equipment............. 10 to 35

CEMEX, S.A. DE C.V. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (Continued)
December 31, 2000, 2001, 2002 and June 30, 2003
(Millions of constant Mexican Pesos as of June 30, 2003)

I) DEFERRED CHARGES AND AMORTIZATION (note 10)

Deferred charges are adjusted by inflation to reflect constant values.
Amortization of deferred charges is determined using the straight-line method
based on the restated value of the assets.

The excess of cost over the book value of subsidiaries acquired ("goodwill") is
amortized under the present worth or sinking fund method, which is intended to
provide a better matching of the goodwill amortization with the revenues

generated from the acquired companies. The amortization periods are as follows:

Years
Goodwill from acquisitions in years before 1992.............. 40
Goodwill from acquisitions since January 1, 1992............. 20

Deferred financing costs, associated with the Company's financing operations,
are amortized as part of the effective interest rate of each transaction over
its maturity. These costs include discounts on debt issuance, fees paid to
attorneys, printers and consultants, as well as commissions paid to banks in
the structuring process. Deferred financing costs are adjusted by inflation to
reflect constant values.

Likewise, the Company capitalizes the direct costs incurred in the development
stage of computer software for internal use. The capitalized amounts are
adjusted to reflect constant values and are amortized to the results of
operations during the estimated useful life of the software, which is estimated
as approximately 4 years.

J) PENSION PLANS, SENIORITY PREMIUM AND OTHER POSTRETIREMENT BENEFITS (note 13)

The costs related to benefits to which employees are entitled by pension plans,
seniority premiums and other postretirement benefits, legally or by Company
grant, are recognized in the results of operations on the basis of the present
value of the benefits determined under actuarial estimations, as services are
rendered. The amortization of unrecognized prior service cost, changes in
assumptions and adjustments based on experience that have not been recognized,
is based on the employee's estimated active service life. Other benefits to
which employees may be entitled, principally severance benefits and vacations,
are recognized as an expense in the year in which they are paid. In some
circumstances, however, provisions have been made for these benefits.



As part of the established pension plans, in some cases, certain irrevocable
trust funds have been created to cover future benefit payments under these
plans. The actuarial assumptions upon which the Company's employee benefit
liabilities are determined consider the use of real rates (nominal rates
discounted by inflation).

K) INCOME TAX ("IT"), BUSINESS ASSETS TAX ("BAT"), EMPLOYEES' STATUTORY PROFIT
SHARING ("ESPS") AND DEFERRED INCOME TAXES (note 17)

IT, BAT and ESPS expense recognizes the amounts incurred during the period, and
the effects of deferred IT and ESPS, in accordance with Bulletin D-4,
Accounting treatment of income tax, business assets tax and employees' profit
sharing ("Bulletin D-4"), effective January 1, 2000. Bulletin D-4 requires the
determination of deferred IT by applying the enacted statutory income tax rate
to the total temporary differences resulting from comparing the book and
taxable values of the assets and liabilities, considering when available, and
subject to a recoverability analysis, tax loss carryforwards as well as other
recoverable taxes and tax credits. Bulletin D-4 also requires a determination
of the effect of deferred ESPS for those temporary differences, which are of
non-recurring nature, arising from the reconciliation of the net income of the
period and the taxable income of the period for ESPS.

The cumulative initial deferred IT effects, arising from the adoption of the
Bulletin, were recognized on January 1, 2000 against stockholders' equity as
the "Cumulative initial deferred income tax effects". The effect of a statutory
tax rate change is recognized in the income statement of the period in which
the change occurs and is officially declared.

Consolidated balances of assets and liabilities and their corresponding taxable
amounts substantially differ from those of the Parent Company. The difference
between the Parent Company's accumulated initial effect of deferred income
taxes and the corresponding consolidated initial effects, which represents the
sum of the initial effects determined in each subsidiary, is presented in the
consolidated balance sheets under the caption "Deficit in equity restatement".
For disclosure purposes, the consolidated cumulative initial deferred income
tax effects are presented in the statements of changes in stockholders' equity.
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L) MONETARY POSITION RESULT

The monetary position result, which represents the gain or loss from holding
monetary assets and liabilities in inflationary environments, is calculated by
applying the inflation rate of each country in which the Company has operations
to the net monetary position in that country (difference between monetary
assets and liabilities).

M) DEFICIT IN EQUITY RESTATEMENT (note 14)

The deficit in equity restatement includes: i) the accumulated effect from
holding non-monetary assets; ii) the foreign currency translation effects from
foreign subsidiaries' financial statements, considering the exchange
fluctuations arising from foreign currency indebtedness directly related with
the acquisition of foreign subsidiaries, and the related parties foreign
currency balances that are of a long-term investment nature (see notes 2D and
14D) ; and iii) valuation and liquidation effects of certain derivative
financial instruments that qualify as hedge instruments, which are recorded
temporarily or permanently in stockholders' equity (see note 2N).

N) DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (notes 11, 12 and 16)

In compliance with the controls and procedures established by the units
associated with the financial risk management, the Company uses derivative
financial instruments such as interest rate and currency swaps, currency and
stock forward contracts, options and futures, in order to reduce risks
associated with changes in interest rates and foreign exchange rates of debt
agreements and as a vehicle to reduce financing costs (see notes 12A and B), as



well as hedges of: (i) forecasted transactions to purchase fuels and electric
power, (ii) the Company's net assets in foreign subsidiaries, (iii) the future
exercise of options under the Company's stock option programs, and (iv) as an
alternative source of financing (see note 16). These instruments have been
negotiated with institutions and corporations with significant financial
capacity; therefore, the Company considers that the risk of non-compliance with
the obligations agreed to by such counterparties to be minimal. Some of these
instruments have been designated as hedges of raw materials costs as well as
debt or equity instruments.

Effective January 1, 2001, the Company adopted Bulletin C-2 Financial
Instruments ("Bulletin C-2"), which requires the recognition of all derivative
financial instruments as assets and/or liabilities at their estimated fair
value, and the recognition of changes in such values in the income statement
for the period in which they occurred. The exceptions to the rule, as they
refer to the Company, are the following:

a) Beginning in 2002, changes in the estimated fair value of interest rate
derivative instruments, designated as accounting hedges of contractual
cash flows associated with debt reported on the balance sheet, as well as
those instruments negotiated to hedge the interest rate at which certain
forecasted or existing indebtedness is expected to be contracted or
renegotiated, are recognized in stockholders' equity (see note 14G) and
are reclassified to the income statement as the financial expense of the
hedged financing items is accrued. For the year ended December 31, 2001,
the effects of hedge-like instruments were recognized according to the
following paragraph. See notes 11 and 12.

b) In 2002 and 2001, derivative instruments negotiated to exchange fixed for
floating interest rates were accounted using the same valuation criteria
applied to the hedged liabilities; therefore, the derivative instruments'
effects were recognized in the income statement, net of the interest
expense generated by the hedged liabilities, based on their accrued
amounts.

c) The estimated fair value, and changes in such value, of the foreign
currency forwards designated as hedges of the Company's net investments
in foreign subsidiaries are recorded in the balance sheet as assets or
liabilities against stockholders' equity, as part of the foreign currency
translation result (see notes 2D and 14D). The accumulated effect in
stockholder's equity will be reversed through the income statement upon
disposition of the foreign investment.

d) The results derived from equity forward contracts on the Company's own
shares, as well as by other equity derivative instruments, such as the
appreciation warrants, are recognized in stockholders' equity upon
settlement. Beginning in 2001, changes in the estimated fair value of
those equity forward contracts that cover the executive stock option
programs are recorded through the income statement, in addition to the
costs related to such programs. See notes 15 and 16.
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As of December 31, 2001 and 2002, for balance sheet presentation purposes, the
portion of the assets or liabilities resulting from the recognition of the
estimated fair value of the derivative instruments of interest rates and
currency (Cross Currency Swaps) negotiated to change the profile of interest
rate and currency of existing financing debt, required to present the
indebtedness as if it had been originally negotiated in the exchanged interest
rates and currencies, is reclassified as part of the carrying amount of the
underlying debt instruments, thereby reflecting the cash flows expected to be
received or paid upon liquidation of such instruments. The non-reclassified
portion, resulting from the difference between the forward exchange rates
implicit in the contracts and those in effect as of the balance sheet date, is
recognized as other assets or other liabilities, both short and long term,
depending on the maturity of the contracts.

Until December 31, 2000, the results of the derivative financial instruments



described above were recorded in the income statement at the moment cash flows
were incurred or at settlement, except for foreign currency forwards designated
as accounting hedges of the net investment in foreign subsidiaries and the
equity forward contracts on the Company's own shares that were treated equally
as of December 31, 2001 and 2002.

The estimated fair value represents the amount at which a financial asset could
be bought or sold, or a financial liability could be extinguished, between
willing parties in an arm's length transaction. Occasionally, there is a
reference market that provides the estimated fair value; in the absence of a
market such value is determined using valuation techniques such as the net
present value of projected cash flows or through mathematical valuation models.
The estimated fair values of derivative instruments, used by the Company for
recognition and disclosure purposes in the financial statements and their
notes, are supported by the confirmations of these values received from the
financial counterparties.

Premiums paid or received on hedge derivative instruments are deferred and
amortized over the life of the underlying hedged instrument or immediately when
they are settled; in other cases, premiums are recorded in the income statement
at the moment in which they are received or paid.

O) REVENUE RECOGNITION

Revenue is recorded upon shipment of cement and ready-mix concrete to
customers. Income from activities other than the Company's main line of
business is recognized when the revenue has been realized and there is no
condition or uncertainty implying a reversal thereof.

P) CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

Obligations or material losses, related to contingencies and commitments, are
recognized when present obligations exist, as a result of past events, it is
probable that the effects will materialize and there are reasonable elements
for quantification. If there are no reasonable elements for quantification, a
qualitative disclosure is included in the notes to the financial statements.
The Company does not recognize contingent revenues, income or assets.

Q) COMPREHENSIVE NET INCOME (note 14G)

Beginning in 2001, Bulletin B-4 Comprehensive Net Income ("Bulletin B-4"),
requires the comprehensive net income presentation as a single item in the
Statement of Changes in Stockholders' Equity. Comprehensive net income
represents the change in stockholders' equity during a period for transactions
and other events not representing contributions, reductions or distributions of
capital.

R) USE OF ESTIMATES

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make estimates
and assumptions that affect reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the
financial statements date and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses

during the reported periods. Actual results could differ from these estimates.

S) CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISK

The Company sells its products primarily to distributors in the construction
industry, with no specific geographic concentration within the countries in
which the Company operates. No single customer accounted for a significant
amount of the Company's sales in 2000, 2001 and 2002, and there were no
significant accounts receivable from a single customer for the same periods. In
addition, there is no significant concentration of a specific supplier relating
to the purchase of raw materials.

CEMEX, S.A. DE C.V. AND SUBSIDIARIES
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T) OTHER INCOME AND EXPENSE



Other income and expense consists primarily of goodwill amortization,
anti-dumping duties, results from the sales of fixed assets, impairment charges
of long-lived assets, results from the early extinguishment of debt and, in
2001, the costs related to the restructuring of the executive stock option
programs (see note 15).

U) IMPAIRMENT OF LONG LIVED ASSETS

The Company periodically evaluates the physical state and performance of its
machinery and equipment, and analyzes the impact that its sales and production
forecasts may have over the expected future cash flows, in order to determine
if there are elements indicating that the restated book values of these assets
need to be adjusted for impairment. The provision for impairment is recorded in
the income statement during the period when its determined. The adjustment is
determined by the excess of the carrying amount of the assets or group of
assets over the net present value of estimated cash flows expected to be
generated by such assets.

Likewise, the Company continually evaluates the balances of goodwill and other
investments to establish if factors such as the occurrence of significant
adverse events, changes in the environment in which the business operates and
expectations of operating results for each business unit or affiliated
entities, provide, in the judgment of the Company, elements indicating that the
book value of goodwill or the investments may not be recovered, in which case
an impairment loss is recorded in the period when such determination is made,
resulting from the excess of the carrying amount of goodwill or the investments
over net present value of estimated cash flows. For the year ended December 31,
2002, the Company recognized in the income statement within other expenses,
net, an impairment loss of U.S.$9.0 million (Ps94.1) from goodwill related to
the business unit engaged in the software development projects.

3. CASH AND INVESTMENTS

Consolidated cash and investments consists of:

(Unaudited)
December 31, June 30,
2001 2002 2003
Cash and bank accounts........eeeeeeenn. Ps 2,869.1 1,798.3 6,033.1
Fixed-income securities..........cceoueeee.. 1,488.6 2,030.9 1,238.9
Investment in marketable securities...... 23.5 0.9 163.6

4. TRADE ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

The Company evaluates each of its customers' credit and risk profiles in order
to establish the required allowance for doubtful accounts. Trade accounts

receivable as of December 31, 2001, 2002 and June 30, 2003 (unaudited) include
allowances for doubtful accounts of Ps513.9, Ps488.9 and Ps538.6, respectively.

The Company has established sales of trade accounts receivable programs with
financial institutions ("securitization programs"). These programs were
negotiated in Mexico during 2002, in the United States during 2001 and in Spain
in 2000. Through the securitization programs, the Company effectively
surrenders control, risks and the benefits associated to the accounts
receivable sold; therefore, the amount of receivables sold is recorded as a
sale of financial assets and the balances are removed from the balance sheet at
the moment of sale, except for the amounts that the counterparties have not
paid, which are reclassified to other accounts receivable (see note 5). The
balances of receivables sold pursuant the securitization programs as of
December 31, 2001, 2002 and June 30, 2003 were Ps3,057.9 (U.S.$292.3 million),
Ps5,155.4 (U.S.$492.9 million) and Ps6,368.7 (U.S5.$608.9 million),
respectively. The accounts receivable qualifying for sale do not include
amounts over certain days past due or concentrations over certain limit to any
one customer, according to the terms of the programs. Expenses incurred under
these programs, originated by the discount granted to the acquirers of the
accounts receivable, are recognized in the income statements and were



approximately Ps84.9 (U.S.$8.1 million) in 2001 and Ps110.9 (U.S.$10.6 million)
in 2002.
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5. OTHER ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE AND OTHER ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUED EXPENSES

Other accounts receivable consist of:

(Unaudited)

December 31, June 30,

2001 2002 2003

Non-trade reCeivableS. ...t e e et ieenenaeeeeeneneeseeannansns Ps 1,461.4 1,146.8 1,080.1

Prepayments and valuation of derivative financial instruments.. 1,685.3 1,333.6 2,264.6

Interest and notes receivable..............ooiiiiiiiiiiinnann., 355.9 917.8 961.0

Advances for travel expenses and loans to employees.... 438.1 387.2 335.2
Refundable INCOME LaX. e w .t e e s eeeeeeenneeeeeeenneenneeennnannnnn 1,014.4 - -

Other refundable taxesS.......c..iiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiinnnenenenanns 159.7 499.8 582.2

Ps 5,114.8 4,285.2 5,223.2

As of December 31, 2001 and 2002, non-trade receivables primarily consist of
accounts receivable from the sale of fixed assets. Included in prepayments and
valuation of derivative financial instruments as of December 31, 2001, 2002 and
June 30, 2003 (unaudited), are advanced payments toward the final price of
forward contracts and that will be settled at maturity of approximately
Psl,552.5, Psl1,010.7 and Psl1l,064.2 (see note 16A), respectively. Included in
interest and notes receivables are amounts collectible to financial
institutions, arising from the securitization programs (see note 4) for
approximately Ps183.4 (U.S.$17.5 million), Ps891.2 (U.S.$85.2 million) and
Ps1,031.1 (U.S.$98.6 million), as of December 31, 2001, 2002 and June 30, 2003
(unaudited), respectively. Additionally, other refundable taxes as of December
31, 2002 include Ps279.8 corresponding to a final resolution related to a
business assets tax lawsuit.

Other accounts payable and accrued expenses consist of:

(Unaudited)
December 31, June 30,
2001 2002 2003
Other accounts payable and accrued €XPEenSES...........ceueos Ps 3,548.9 3,046.3 3,207.4
Interest Payable. vt ii it ii ittt 1,088.5 1,013.7 855.6
Tax payable.......... 2,110.7 1,182.9 2,091.4
Dividends payable.... 57.3 61.5 72.5
ProvisSionS......eeeee.. . 1,826.3 2,420.1 2,428.1
Advances from customers 597.0 719.7 866.1
Prepayments and valuation of derivative financial instruments 576.7 3,779.0 1,381.0
Ps 9,805.4 12,223.2 10,902.1
6. INVENTORIES
Inventories are summarized as follows:
(Unaudited)
December 31, June 30,
2001 2002 2003

Finished goodS. ..ttt ittt iie e e Ps 1,988.1 1,483.5 1,518.7



LT o R o ol = PP 813.4 1,591.8 1,788.1
Raw materials.......... . 693.1 637.4 555.7
Supplies and spare parts. 2,954.1 3,218.8 2,952.1
Advances to suppliers.. 341.0 349.2 379.0
Inventory in transit.......oeiiii it iiiiiiiii i 173.7 214.5 346.1
Ps 6,963.4 7,495.2 7,539.7
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7. OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

Other current assets consist of:

(Unaudited)
December 31, June 30,
2001 2002 2003
Advanced PaymMENTS .« v ettt inrentennenneneenneaneneenneanenns 645.6 476.8 706.4
Non-cement related assets 354.8 370.1 363.6
Ps 1,000.4 846.9 1,070.0

The non-cement related assets are stated at their estimated realizable value
and mainly consist of (i) non-cement related assets acquired in business
combinations, (ii) various assets held for sale received from customers as
payment of trade receivables, and (iii) real estate held for sale.

During 2000, the Company recognized in other expenses net, an approximate loss
of Ps28.2 from the sale of real estate in Puerto Vallarta, Mexico.

8. INVESTMENTS AND NONCURRENT RECEIVABLES
A) INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES AND AFFILIATED COMPANIES

Investments in affiliated companies accounted for by the equity method are
summarized as follows:

December 31, (Unaudited)
June 30,
2001 2002 2003
Book value at acquisition date........ ..o, Ps 2,983.2 3,324.7 3,453.5
Equity in income and other changes in stockholders' equity of
subsidiaries and affiliated companies.............cooiiiin.. 2,302.0 2,611.2 2,771.3
Ps 5,285.2 5,935.9 6,224.8

Investments held by subsidiaries in the Company's shares, amounting to
Ps7,543.8 (146,868,013 CPOs and 1,791,695 appreciation warrants) and Ps6,659.0
(144,870,296 CPOs and 1,793,725 appreciation warrants) as of December 31, 2001
and 2002, respectively, and Ps6,858.6 (144,870,296 CPOs and 30,709,083
appreciation warrants) as of June 30, 2003 (unaudited), are offset against
majority interest stockholders' equity in the accompanying financial
statements.

The Company's principal acquisitions and divestitures during 2000, 2001 and
2002, are the following:

I. On July 30, 2002, through a public tender offer and subsequent merger, a
subsidiary of the Company acquired 100% of the outstanding shares of Puerto



ITI.

III.

IV.

Rican Cement Company, Inc. ("PRCC"), a Puerto Rican cement producer, for
approximately U.S.$180.2 million (U.S.$35 per share). The consolidated
financial statements include the balance sheet of PRCC and the results of
operations as of and for the five-month period ended December 31, 2002.

On July 12, 2002, a subsidiary of CEMEX acquired 1,508,794 common shares
(approximately 15.1%) of CEMEX Asia Holdings Ltd. ("CAH"). Of this total,
25,429 shares were acquired for cash of approximately U.S.$2.3 million,
while the remaining 1,483,365 shares were acquired through a forward
contract requiring delivery of 28,195,213 CEMEX CPOs in four equal
quarterly transactions beginning on March 31, 2003. In April 2003, CEMEX
and its counterparties on the forward contracts amended the terms of the
July 12, 2002 agreements with respect to 1,398,602 CAH shares, which will
be purchased in four equal quarterly tranches commencing on March 31, 2004
instead of 2003, while 84,763 CAH shares will be purchased during 2003
under the original contracts. As of June 30, 2003 (unaudited), 42,381 CAH
shares have been purchased in exchange for 829,788 CEMEX CPOs for
approximately U.S.$3.4 million.
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For accounting purposes, the CAH shares to be received under the forward
are considered as owned by the Company and are consolidated effective July
12, 2002, generating an account payable for approximately U.S.$140 million,
the price of 28,195,213 CPOs on the date of the exchange agreements, which
has decreased as of June 30, 2003 (unaudited) to approximately U.S.$136.6
million as a result of the purchases made in 2003. The consolidation of
the CAH shares was deemed appropiate since the exchange price was fixed,
the physical delivery is a firm commitment and the CAH shareholders
relinquished their risks of ownership of the CAH shares. As a result of
these transactions, including the forward exchange, the indirect equity
interest of the Company in CAH increased to 92.25%. Before these
transactions, the indirect equity interest of CEMEX in CAH was 77.4%. CAH
is a subsidiary created in 1999 by CEMEX and institutional investors in
Asia to jointly invest in the region.

During 2000, the CAH investors and CEMEX contributed capital of
approximately U.S.$73 million and U.S.$251 million, respectively, in order
for CAH to acquire from a subsidiary of the Company its 25.5% equity
interest in PT Semen Gresik, Tbk. ("Gresik"), an Indonesian cement company,
as well as other cement assets in Asia. In 1999, the minority investors
contributed capital to CAH of approximately U.S.$142.9 million, and the
Company, through its subsidiaries, contributed to CAH the economic benefit
interest it held in its Philippines subsidiaries, Solid (formerly Rizal)
and APO Cement Corporation ("APO"), amounting 70.0% and 99.9%,
respectively. As a result, as of December 31, 2001 and 2000, the indirect
participation of the Company in Solid and APO decreased to 54.2% and 77.3%,
respectively.

In July 2002, a Company's subsidiary acquired the 30% remaining economic
interest of Solid from third parties for approximately U.S.$95 million. As
a result of this acgquisition and the increase in CAH's equity interest
previously detailed, as of December 31, 2002, the approximate indirect
economic interest of CEMEX in Solid is 94.58%. Prior to this acquisition,
the Company had a 70% economic interest in Solid through CAH.

During 2001 and 2002, CEMEX, Inc., a subsidiary of the Company in the
United States, sold aggregate quarries and other equipment for
approximately U.S.$42 million and U.S.$49 million, respectively. In March
2001, CEMEX, Inc. was formed as a result of the merger of Southdown, Inc.
("Southdown") and CEMEX USA, Inc. In November 2000, through a public tender
offer and subsequent merger, a subsidiary of the Company acquired 100% of
Southdown's outstanding shares at a price of U.S.$73 per share. The total
amount paid for the shares was approximately U.S.$2,628.3 million
(Ps27,492.0) . For the year ended December 31, 2000, the consolidated income
statements included Southdown's results of operations for the two-month
period ended December 31, 2000.



VI.

VIII.

In May 2001,
Ltd. ("CEMEX Thailand")
cement producer,

2001,

CAH acquired a 100% economic interest in CEMEX
(formerly Saraburi Cement Company Ltd.),
for approximately U.S.$73 million,
million was contributed by the CAH minority investors.

(Thailand)
a Thai
of which U.S.$13.7
At December 31,

Co.

the consolidated financial statements include CEMEX Thailand's

balance sheet and the results of operations for the eight-month period.

In addition, during 2001,
companies in diverse locations,
million, including real estate entities whose
buildings.

The consolidated financial statements as of December 31,

the Company acquired majority interests in
for an approximate amount of U.S.$141.5

principal assets are land and
2001,

include the balance sheets of the acquired companies at the same date and
the operating results of such companies for the periods from the

acquisition date to year-end.

.In January 2001,
Assiut Cement, Co. ("Assiut"),
November and June 2000,

its subsidiary

for an aggregate of U.S.$66.8 million,
interest to 92.9%. In November 1999,

the Company increased to 95.8%

its equity interest in
in Egypt. Previously, in

a 2.9% equity interest was acquired from Assiut's
employees and a 13% interest from the Egyptian government,

respectively,

increasing the Company's equity
the Company acquired from the Egyptian

government 77% of Assiut's outstanding stock for approximately U.S.$318.8

million.

In June 2000,
million, properties in the tourism industry,
interest in the Marriott Casa Magna hotels in
resulting a net loss of approximately Ps70.2,
expenses, net. In the year ended December 31,
statements of the Company include the hotels'
five-month period ended May 31, 2000.

CEMEX,

December 31, 2000, 2001, 2002 and

(Millions of constant Mexican Pesos as of June 30,

the Company sold to Marriott International,

for U.S.$113

including its 100% equity

Cancun and Puerto Vallarta,
which was recorded in other
2000, the consolidated income
operating results for the
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Certain condensed financial information of the companies acquired during 2001

and 2002,

the

year of acquisition, is presented below:

2001

and that was consolidated in the Company's financial statements in

2002

Saraburi Others PRCC Others
TOtAl ASSELS. et i tinnneeeeeeenneeereennnans Ps 360.8 2,387.8 3,864.7 221.1
Total liabilities.... .. 133.9 952.4 3,571.4 26.1
Stockholders' equity......ocvuiiinnennnnn. 226.9 1,435.4 293.3 195.0
S s Ps 144.4 290.2 655.1 2.2
Operating income (loss) 24.5 (8.4) 25.7 (5.8)
Net income (1OSS) e eeeeeinnneeeeeennnnnn (10.0) 130.5 25.6 (71.8)

As of December 31, 2001 and 2002, the information of the main affiliated
companies, and the restated investment recognized in the consolidated balance
sheet are as follows:
Equity

Activity Country interest % 2001 2002
PT Semen Gresik, ThK. ..o ieeeinnnnneeeennnnnnnn Cement Indonesia 25.5 Ps 2,109.0 2,467.8
Control Administrativo Mexicano, S.A. de C.V..... Cement Mexico 49.0 1,450.8 1,676.0
Trinidad Cement Limited............... Trinidad 20.0 318.7 314.6
Cementos Bio Bio, S.A................. Chile 11.9 263.2 307.0
Cancem, S.A. de C.V.iiuiurrennnunnnnn Mexico 10.0 145.0 161.7
Lehigh White Cement Company........... U.s. 24.5 128.5 131.2
Societe des Ciments Antillais..................... Antilles 26.1 88.8 110.9




Caribbean Cement Company Limited.................. Cement Jamaica 5.0 69.8 72.4

Lot TS o= - - - 711.4 694.3
Ps  5,285.2 5,935.9
As of June 30, 2003, PT Semen Gresik, Tbk ("Gresik"), an Indonesian cement

company in which CEMEX holds a 25.5% equity interest, has filed in the courts
of Indonesia, several lawsuits pertaining to the procedures adopted by the
former management of its subsidiary PT Semen Padang ("Padang"). The premise of
the lawsuits is that Padang, through different actions, has obstructed the
ownership rights of Gresik, including the failure to recognize the new
management of Padang, appointed by Gresik in the last stockholders' meeting, as
well as the compliance to provide timely and accurate financial information for
consolidation purposes. New management was able to assume its functions in
September 2003. As a result, CEMEX expects an improvement in the availability
of financial information. However, the legal matters are still pending and the
final outcome cannot be predicted. For the reasons described above, as of this
reporting date, CEMEX considers that, given the uncertainty related to the
success or failure that the legal actions undertaken by Gresik's management to
regain control of Padang operations, there is no reasonable basis to determine
if the Company's investment in Gresik is impaired and if so by what amount.
CEMEX has accounted for its investment in Gresik and its subsidiaries under the
equity method of accounting utilizing the financial information that was
available at date. As of June 30, 2003 (unaudited), the Company's investment in
Gresik amounts to Ps2,658.2.

B) NONCURRENT ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

As of December 31, 2001, 2002 and June 30, 2003 (unaudited), noncurrent
accounts receivable include approximately U.S.$105.3 million (Psl,101.4),
U.S.$71.4 million (Ps746.8) and U.S.$71.2 million (Ps745), respectively,
representing the estimated fair value gains of the Company's long-term
derivative financial instruments (see notes 12B and 16).

In May 2001, CEMEX sold to Citigroup, in accordance with the terms and
conditions of a public tender offer launched in Mexico, its Banacci shares that
were held in its long-term investments portfolio. The sale amount was
approximately U.S.$162.4 million (Psl1l,698.7) and generated a gain of
approximately U.S.$131 million (Psl1l,370.3) recognized in the Comprehensive
Financing Result at December 31, 2001. Of this gain, approximately Ps811.3
corresponds to the reversal of unrealized valuation gains previously recorded
in stockholders' equity.
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9. PROPERTIES, MACHINERY AND EQUIPMENT

As of December 31, 2001 and 2002, the Company had assets in Mexico and Colombia
that were adjusted for impairment during 1999. The assets subject to impairment
are valued at their estimated realizable value, net of the expenses estimated
for their disposal, and their depreciation has been suspended. As of December
31, 2002, the remaining book value of these assets is approximately Ps318.8,
and it is the Company's intention to dispose of those that were completely
closed. The impact of having suspended depreciation of these assets on 2000,
2001 and 2002 results was approximately Ps37.6, Ps39.0 and Ps37.7,
respectively.

10. DEFERRED CHARGES

Deferred charges are summarized as follows:

(Unaudited)
December 31, June 30,

2001 2002 2003




[T U Y 42,304.1 44,516.4 44,317.7
Cost of internally developed software. 1,486.9 2,508.0 1,404.3
Prepaid pension costs (note 13)........ 739.2 394.3 394.3
Additional minimum liability (note 13). 356.8 613.0 613.0
Deferred financing costsS............... 737.9 1,062.4 554.9
Deferred INCOME LaXES. ..ottt eeeeeeennneeneeeennnnnnn 1,550.7 2,378.8 4,436.6
Lot T o= U 4,834.8 4,875.7 3,418.8
Accumulated amOrtizZation. ... e .o ee e e neeeeennnnnns (8,444.7) (10,646.6) (8,827.8)

Ps 43,565.7 5,702.0 46,311.9

11. SHORT-TERM BANK LOANS AND NOTES PAYABLE

As of December 31, 2001 and 2002, consolidated short-term debt by type of
financing and currency, as well as the weighted-average interest rates, which
include the effects of derivative financial instruments negotiated to exchange
interest rates as well as interest rates and currencies (see note 12), are
summarized as follows:

2001 2002

Current maturities of Euro medium-term notes ............cc.ee... Ps 2,761.3 4,857.2
Revolving lines of credit...... ..o e 2,045.4 4,572.3
Commercial pPaper PrOGLaAMS. ... e eeeeennneeeennnnneeennnns . 1,840.9 3,175.2
Current maturities of other notes payable . 1,357.8 105.1
Syndicated loans.........coevuiuinn.n 870.4 719.1
Other loans and notes payable 1,633.1 1,347.7
Ps 10,508.9 14,776.6

2001 Weighted average 2002 Weighted average (unaudited)

interest rate interest rate June 30, 2003

9,123.4 4.56% 6,729.5 3.10% 12,563.3

- - 6,416.2 3.15% 6,219.9

899.5 4.07% 606.4 3.66% 1,885.3

Mexican pesosS......eeeenn. - - 689.6 8.79% 134.8

Egyptian pounds........... 362.4 11.42% 326.4 11.01% 89.7

Other currencies.......... 123.6 12.99% 8.5 8.72% 18.7
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As of December 31, 2001, 2002 and June 30, 2003 (unaudited), in order to: 1)
hedge contractual cash flows of certain financial debt with floating rates or,
exchange floating for fixed interest rates of a portion of debt, and ii) reduce
the financial cost of a portion of financial debt originally contracted in
dollars or pesos, the Company has contracted derivative financial instruments
related to short-term debt, which are listed below:

As of December 31, 2001, related to short-term debt, there were interest rate
swaps to exchange fixed for floating interest rates, with a notional amount of
U.S.$300 million and an estimated fair value gain of U.S.$0.2 million (Ps2.1),
which was not recognized in the balance sheet or in the income statement
pursuant to its hedging characteristics (see note 2N). These instruments were
settled during 2002, realizing an approximate loss of U.S.$0.3 million (Ps3.1),
recognized as part of the Comprehensive Financing Result. Likewise, as of
December 31, 2002, the Company held interest rate swaps to exchange floating
for fixed interest rates, negotiated and designated as accounting hedges of
contractual cash flows (interest payments) of the related debt, with a notional



amount of U.S.$306 million and an estimated fair value loss of U.S.$24.4
million (Ps255.2), recognized in other short-term accounts payable against
stockholders' equity. This amount will be reversed through the income statement
as the financial expense of the related financing debt is accrued. Periodic
cash flows generated by interest rate swaps are recorded in financial expense
as an adjustment to the effective interest rate of the related debt. As of
December 31, 2001 and 2002, outstanding interest rate swaps covered
approximately 34% and 48%, respectively, of the short-term debt denominated in
dollars.

During the first six months of 2003, the interest rate swaps held as of
December 31, 2002 for a notional amount of U.S.$306 million, related to
short-term debt and negotiated to exchange floating for fixed interest rates,
were reassigned to long-term facilities pursuant to the corresponding extension
in the maturities of the underlying debt agreements.

As of December 31, 2002, there are Cross Currency Swaps ("CCS"), through which

the Company exchanges the originally contracted interest rates and currencies
on certain notional amounts of short-term debt, and are described below:

Currencies Interest rates

Effective Estimated
(Amounts in millions) Notional Amount in new CEMEX CEMEX interest fair
Related debt Maturity dates amount currency receives* Pays rate value

Mexican peso to dollar
Short-term notes.........c.euuu.n. Jan 03 - Jun 03 Ps1,500 U.S.$145 TIIE+5bps L +29%ps 2.25% U.S.$(9.6)

Dollar to Yen
Short-term notes........coveuunen Jun 03 - Jun 05 U.S.$180 Yen 20,459 L + 183bps 3.16% 3.16% 6.1

* TIIE refers to Interbank Offering Rate in Mexico. LIBOR ("L") represents

the London Interbank Offering Rate. Basis points ("bps") are decimals of
interest rate, i.e., 1% = 100 basis points.

The periodic cash flows of CCS, arising from the exchange of interest rates as
determined over the notional amounts in the new currencies, are recorded in
financial expense as part of the effective interest rate of the related debt.
The CCS have not been designated as accounting hedges; therefore, the Company
recognizes the estimated fair value of the CCS as either assets or liabilities
in the balance sheet and the changes in fair value through the income
statement. Likewise, all financial assets and liabilities with the same
maturity and that are intended to be settled simultaneously, have been offset
for presentation purposes, in order to reflect the cash flows that the Company
expects to receive or pay upon settlement of these financial instruments.

In respect to the estimated fair value of the short-term CCS as of December 31,
2002, a net liability of U.S.$3.5 million (Ps36.6) was recognized, of which a
loss of approximately U.S.$2.9 million (Ps30.3), directly related to variations
in exchange rates between the inception of the CCS and the balance sheet date,
was offset for presentation purposes as part of the carrying amount of the
underlying debt, and income of U.S.$0.5 million (Ps5.2), identified with the
periodic cash flows for the interest rate swaps, was recognized as an
adjustment of the related financing interest payable. The remaining liability
of U.S.$1.1 million (Psll.5) is presented in the consolidated balance sheet,
decreasing other short-term receivables.

As of June 30, 2003 (unaudited), the notional amount of short-term CCS was
approximately U.S.$513.4 million (Ps5,370.2), with an estimated fair value gain
(net asset) of approximately U.S.$59.5 million (Ps622.4), of which
approximately U.S.$19.8 million (Ps207.1) is a prepayment made to yen
obligations under the CCS and is presented decreasing the carrying amount of
the related debt.
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In addition, as of December 31, 2001 and 2002, there are call option contracts
negotiated with financial institutions to exchange floating for fixed interest
rates (swaptions) for a notional amount of U.S.$1,506 million and U.S.$1,000
million, respectively. For the sale of these options, the Company received
premiums of approximately U.S.$12.2 million (Psl27.6) in 2001 and U.S.$57.6
million (Ps602.5) in 2002. These options had varying maturities until March
2003, and grant the counterparties the option to elect, at maturity of the
options and on market conditions, to receive from CEMEX fixed rates and pay to
CEMEX variable rates for a five-year period or request net settlement in cash.
As of December 31, 2001 and 2002, premiums received, as well as the changes in
the estimated fair value of these contracts, which represented losses of
approximately U.S.$30.1 million (Ps314.8) and U.S.$110.9 million (Psl,160.0),
respectively, were recognized in the Comprehensive Financing Result. During
2001 and 2002, the call options that expired resulted in losses of
approximately U.S.$3.4 million (Ps35.6) and U.S.$92.3 million (Ps965.5),
respectively, which were recognized in the Comprehensive Financing Result.

During the first six months of 2003 (unaudited), at maturity of several
swaption contracts for a notional amount of U.S.$800 million, the Company's
counterparties elected to physically exercise their options pursuant to which,
the Company entered with such counterparties into interest rate swaps, whereas
CEMEX will pay fixed rates and received variable rates for a five-year period.
The new interest rate swaps have been designated as cash flow hedges of related
long-term debt negotiated with variable rates. There were no gains or losses

in addition to the periodic fair value recognition arising from the physical
settlement. In addition, during the first six months of 2003, the Company sold
for approximately U.S.$25.0 million (Ps261.5) swaption contracts for a notional
amount of U.S.$400 million. The new options mature on various dates through
March 2011 and grant the counterparties the option to elect, at maturity of the
options and on market conditions, to receive from CEMEX fixed rates and pay to
CEMEX variable rates or request net settlement in cash. As of June 30, 2003,
there were swaption contracts for a notional amount of U.S.$600 million with a
fair value loss of approximately U.S.$72.2 million (Ps755.2 million).
Currently, the Company cannot predict if market conditions prevailing at
maturity of these options would cause the counterparties to exercise them or to
elect for a cash settlement.

12. LONG-TERM BANK LOANS AND NOTES PAYABLE
As of December 31, 2001 and 2002, the consolidated long-term debt and interest
rates, including the effects of derivative financial instruments negotiated to

exchange interest rates as well as interest rates and currencies, 1s summarized
as follows (note 12A and B):

Determination of

Original Weighted-average weighted-average
2001 rate interest rate rate
Bank loans
Syndicated loans, 2002 to 2005............. Ps 15,298.3 Floating 3.75% A LIBOR + 103 bps
Bank loans, 2002 to 2006 9,459.9 Floating 3.54% LIBOR + 87 bps
Bank loans, 2002 to 2005 305.2 Fixed 7 A -
25,063.4
Notes payable
Euro medium-term notes, 2002 to 2009....... 11,863.5 B Fixed 7.30% -
Medium term notes, 2002 to 2008 9,255.2 B Floating 3.65% A LIBOR + 204 bps
Medium term notes, 2002 to 2008 . 3,570.8 B Fixed 1.81% A -
Other notes, 2002 to 2011............. . 661.1 Floating 2.04% LIBOR + 11 bps
Other notes, 2002 to 2011...viuvuuvreennnnnn 617.4 Fixed 8.56% -
25,968.0

Current maturities.......c.cuuiieeeneennnnnn. (6,595.7
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Weighted- Determination of
Original average interest weighted-average

2002 rate rate rate

Bank loans

Syndicated loans, 2003 to 2007............ Ps 9,407.4 Floating 2.31% A LIBOR + 86 bps

Syndicated loans, 2003 to 2005............ 8,484.2 Fixed 4.13% -

Bank loans, 2003 to 2007 8,090.8 Floating 2.59% A LIBOR + 120 bps

Bank loans, 2003 to 2009 267.2 Fixed 6.50% -
26,249.6

Notes payable

Euro medium-term notes, 2003 to 2009...... 7,699.3 B Fixed 10.61%

Medium-term notes, 2003 to 2009........... 7,586.0 B Floating 2.19% LIBOR + 80 bps

Medium-term notes, 2003 to 2008........... 10,717.1 B Fixed 4.00% -

Other notes, 2003 to 2006................. 54.0 Floating 2.45% LIBOR + 96 bps

Other notes, 2003 to 2009................. 979.9 Fixed 4.20% -
27,036.3
53,285.9

Current maturities............ooiiiinnna.. (6,899.7)

Ps

In April 2002, the Company completed a tender offer for the early redemption of
the Company's 12.75% U.S.$300 million notes, maturing in 2006, pursuant to
which approximately U.S.$208.4 million was redeemed. As of December 31, 2002,
the outstanding balance of these notes is U.S.$91.6 million. In 2002, related
to the early redemption, an expense of approximately U.S.$54 million (Ps564.8)
was recognized in other expenses, net.

During the first six months of 2003 (unaudited), there was several debt
financing transactions including repayments and new borrowings, with a net
decrease in the Company's short-term and long-term consolidated financial debt
of Ps248.3 (U.S.$23.7 million) as of June 30, 2003 (unaudited), as compared to
the balance outstanding as of December 31, 2002. Included in cash and temporary
investments as of June 30, 2003 (unaudited) are the proceeds from a borrowing
obtained the last day of June 2003 for approximately Ps2,145.0 (U.S.$205.1
million), which were used to repay other financial debt during the first days
of July 2003.

As of December 31, 2001, 2002 and June 30, 2003 (unaudited), consolidated
long-term debt by currency, including the CCS effects, is summarized as follows
(note 12B):

2001 2002 (unaudited)
June 30, 2003

DOLlarS . vttt it it it it e Ps 32,389.7 35,312.4 31,348.8
S Bt = 3,555.3 6,722.9 5,765.8
Japanese YeN. ... ennnn 7,711.7 2,439.2 2,440.8
Mexican PeSOS......ouiieinnennnennnnn - 1,532.4 207.0
Egyptian Pounds.........oviiiuinnnn.. 695.5 375.9 240.4
Other currencies..................... 83.5 3.4 -

Ps 44,435.7 46,386.2 40,002.8

As of December 31, 2001 and 2002, the yen to dollar exchange rates were 131.57
and 118.80, respectively, and the euro to dollar exchange rates were 1.135 and
0.952, respectively. As of June 30, 2003, the yen to dollar exchange rate was
119.75, the euro to dollar exchange rate was 0.868 and the peso to dollar
exchange rate was 10.46.
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The maturities of long-term debt as of December 31, 2002 are as follows:

Consolidated
2004 e i e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e et e e e e e e e e e Ps 19,662.0
2200 T 6,547.6
200 6,408.6
2200 2,539.4
2008 and thereafter ...ttt ittt ittt ettt eie e 11,228.6
Ps 46,386.2

As of December 31, 2002, the Company and its subsidiaries have the following
lines of credit, both committed and subject to the banks' availability, at
annual interest rates ranging from 1.45% to 15.6%, depending on the negotiated
currency:

Line of Credit Available

European commercial paper (U.S.$600 million)........... Ps 6,363.1 5,122.3
U.S. commercial paper (U.S.$275 million).........ovvuu.. 2,916.4 954.5
Mexican commercial paper (Ps2,500 million)............. 2,554.3 664.1
Syndicated loan (U.S.$400 million) .......oeeiuiuiniuennnnn 4,242.1 -
Promissory notes (Ps5,000 million)...........ccoviinnnnn 5,108.5 3,418.6
Lines of credit of foreign subsidiaries................ 4,503.2 2,147.9
Other lines of credit from Mexican banks............... 848.4 -
Other lines of credit from foreign banks............... 4,560.3 737.1
Ps 31,096.3 13,044.5

In the consolidated balance sheet at December 31, 2001 and 2002, there were
short-term debt transactions amounting to U.S.$546 million (Ps5,711.2) and
U.S.$450 million (Ps4,707.0), classified as long-term debt due to the Company's
ability and the intention to refinance such indebtedness with the available
amounts of the committed long-term lines of credit.

As of December 31, 2001, 2002 and June 30, 2003 (unaudited), in order to: 1)
hedge contractual cash flows of certain financial debt with floating rates or
exchange floating for fixed interest rate of a portion of debt (see note 1234),
and ii) reduce the financial cost of debt originally contracted in dollars or
pesos (see note 12B), the Company has negotiated derivative financial
instruments related to long-term debt, which are described below:

A) Interest Rate Swap Contracts

The information of interest rate swaps related to long-term financial debt is
summarized as follows:

(U.S. dollars millions)

Effective

Notional Debt Maturity CEMEX CEMEX interest Estimated
Related debt amounts currency date receives* pays rate fair value
Interest rate swaps in 2001
Medium-term notes.............. 71 Dollar Mar 06-Mar 08 7.80% L + 249 bps 4.18%
Bank loans........... 850 Dollar Oct 2002 L + 33.5 bps 2.71% 4.52%
Syndicated loans 722 Euro Dec 2004 E + 77 bps L + 24 bps 2.06%

2,283

Interest rate swaps in 2002



Bank 1loanS......oeieiinenenannnn 300 Dollar Jul 2007 LIBOR 4.15% 5.53% U.5.$(20.1)
Syndicated loans................ 500 Dollar Aug 2007 LIBOR 4.07% 4.07% (28.0)

* EURIBOR ("E") represents the Euro Interbank Offering Rate. LIBOR ("L")

represents the London Interbank Offering Rate. Basis points ("bps") are
decimals of interest rate, i.e., 1% = 100 basis points.
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Periodic cash flows generated by these instruments are recorded in interest
expense, as part of the effective interest rate of the related debt. As of
December 31, 2001, the estimated fair value gain of the interest rate swaps was
not recognized for accounting purposes given their hedge characteristics (see
note 2N), except for a portion of the estimated fair value loss of the swap
related to the Euro, given that the line of credit in Euros equivalent to
U.S.$722 million was not entirely withdrawn. As of December 31, 2002, the
estimated fair value of the interest rate swaps to exchange floating for fixed
rates, designated as accounting hedges to the contractual cash flows of the
related debt (interest payments), had an approximate loss of U.S.$48.1 million
(Ps503.1) that was recognized in other long-term accounts payables against
stockholders' equity, and will be reversed through the income statement as the
financial expense of the related financing debt is accrued. During 2001 and
2002, in agreement with the financial counterparties, the Company settled the
swap contracts it had outstanding at the end of the prior year, realizing
approximate gains of U.S.$20.5 million (Ps214.4) in 2001 and U.S.$14.5 million
(Ps151.7) in 2002, equivalent to the estimated fair value as of the ligquidation
date, and which were recorded in the Comprehensive Financing Result.

During the first six months of 2003 (unaudited), the notional amount of
long-term interest rate swap contracts increased approximately U.S.$1,999.3
million, as compared to the contracts held as of December 31, 2002. The reasons
for this increase are explained by the following: 1) short-term contracts for a
notional amount of U.S.$306 million held at the end of 2002, were reassigned
during the first six months of 2003 to long-term credits, 2) as previously
mentioned in note 11, the Company entered into new long-term interest rate
swaps for a notional amount of U.S.$800 million, as a result of the physical
settlement of swaption contracts held as of December 31, 2002, 3) additional
interest rate swap contracts, net of other terminations, for a notional amount
of approximately U.S.$893.3 million, pursuant the termination of Forward Rate
Agreement contracts ("FRAs") and floor and cap option contracts, which are
described below, as part of the Company's strategy to fix the funding cost at
levels of 4.5% for an average period of 5 years, relating existing debt
agreements bearing variable rates. As of June 30, 2003 (unaudited), the
notional amount of interest rate swaps assigned to short and long-term debt was
approximately U.S.$2,799.2 million.

As of December 31, 2001 and 2002, the Company held Forward Rate Agreement
contracts ("FRAs") for a notional amount of U.S.$800 million and U.S.$650
million, respectively, with maturities on different dates until June 2003,
negotiated to fix the interest rate of debt issuances that are expected to be
negotiated in the short-term. Likewise, there are floor and cap option
contracts for a notional amount of U.S.$711 million in both years, with
maturity in March 2008, structured as part of an interest rate swap for the
same notional amount that was settled during 2002. The changes in the estimated
fair value of these contracts represented losses of approximately U.S.$68.8
million (Ps719.6) in 2001 and U.S.$88.9 million (Ps929.9) in 2002, and were
recognized in the balance sheet against the Comprehensive Financing Result,
except for a loss in 2002 of approximately U.S.$42.4 million (Ps443.5), which
was recognized in stockholders' equity given that it corresponds to the change
in valuation after these contracts were designated as accounting hedge of
forecasted cash flows (interest payments) related to new debt issuances. This
amount will be recognized in the income statement as the effects of the related



forecasted debt have an impact on the financial expense through the accrued
interest or immediately when there is evidence that the new debt will not be
contracted.

During the first six months of 2003 matured Forward Rate Agreement contracts
("FRAs") for a notional amount of U.S.$650 million and the Company
early-terminated floor and cap option contracts for a notional amount of
U.S.$711lmillion, held as of December 31, 2002. Upon maturity of the FRAs and
termination of the floor and cap option contracts, the Company entered into new
interest rate swaps to exchange fixed for variable rates. There were no gains
or losses, in addition to the periodic fair value recognition, arising from
this renegotiation.

B) Cross Currency Swap Contracts

As of December 31, 2001 and 2002, and as of June 30, 2003 there are Cross
Currency Swaps ("CCS"), through which the Company exchanges the originally
contracted interest rates and currencies on notional amounts of related
long-term debt. During the life of the contracts, the cash flows originated by
the exchange of interest rates under the CCS, match, in interest payment dates
and conditions, those of the underlying debt. If there is no early settlement,
at maturity of the contracts and the underlying debt, the Company and the
counterparty will exchange notional amounts, so the Company will receive the
cash flow in the currency of the underlying debt necessary to cover its primary
obligation, and will pay the notional amount in the exchanged currency. As a
result, the original financial risk profile related to interest rates and
foreign exchange variations of the underlying debt has been effectively
exchanged.
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The CCS information is as follows:

(Amounts in millions) Currencies Interest rates
Related debt Maturity date Notional  Amount in new CEMEX CEMEX Effective Estimated
amount currency Receives Pays interest rate fair value
CCS in 2001
Mexican peso to dollar
Medium-term notes.......... Nov 04 - Nov 06 Ps1,800 U.S.$194 12.20% L+63 bps 1.73% U.S.$ 13.7

Mexican peso to yen
Medium-term notes.......... Jan 05 - Jan 06 Ps3,004 Yen 34,739 13.32% 2.65% 0.52% 83.7

Dollar to yen
Euro medium-term notes..... Jun 03 - Jul 03 U.S.$ 600 Yen 64,468 7.77% 3.18% 3.98% 145.5

CCs in 2002

Mexican peso to dollar

Medium-term notes.......... Nov 04 - Dec08 Ps2,465 U.S.5$230 TIIE+54bps L+101 bps 2.86% U.S.$ 16.0
Mexican peso to dollar

Medium-term notes.......... Apr 05 - Apr 07 Ps4,225 U.S5.$377 10.93% L+26 bps 1.34% 51.8
Mexican peso to yen

Medium-term notes.......... Jun 05 - Jan 06 Ps3,058 Yen 27,308 11.76% 2.55% 3.78% 83.4
Dollar to yen

Euro medium-term notes..... Jul 2003 U.S.$500 Yen 51,442 8.75% 3.14% 3.14% 93.7

The periodic cash flows on these instruments arising from the exchange of
interest rates, as determined over the new currency amounts, are recorded in
interest expense as part of the effective interest rate of the related debt.
The CCS have not been designated as accounting hedges; therefore, the Company
recognizes the estimated fair values of the CCS as assets or liabilities in the
balance sheet, and the changes in such estimated fair values through the income
statement. All financial assets and liabilities with the same maturity and that



are intended to be settled simultaneously have been offset for presentation
purposes in order to reflect the cash flows that the Company expects to receive
or pay upon settlement of the financial instruments.

As of December 31, 2001, in respect of the estimated fair value recognition of
the CCS, the Company recorded a net asset of U.S.$242.9 million (Ps2,484.2)
against the Comprehensive Financing Result, of which a gain of approximately
U.S.$175.9 million (Psl,798.9) directly related to variations in exchange rates
between the inception of the CCS and the balance sheet date was offset for
presentation purposes as part of the underlying debt carrying amount and a gain
of approximately U.S.$14.8 million (Psl151.3) related to periodic cash flow
exchanges (interest payments) was recognized as an adjustment of the related
financing interest payable. The remaining net asset of U.S.$52.2 million
(Ps533.8) was recognized in the consolidated balance sheet within other
long-term receivables.

As of December 31, 2002, related to the estimated fair value of the CCS, the
Company recognized a net asset of U.S.$244.9 million (Ps2,597.3), of which
U.S.$194.2 million (Ps2,059.5) relates to a prepayment made to a yen obligation
and is presented decreasing the carrying amount of the related debt, while
U.S.$50.7 million (Ps537.7), which represents the CCS' estimated fair value
before prepayment effects, includes a loss of approximately U.S.$17.1 million
(Ps181.4), which is directly related to variations in exchange rates between
the inception of the CCS and the balance sheet date, and was offset for
presentation purposes as part of the related debt carrying amount, and a gain
of approximately U.S.$25.4 million (Ps269.3), identified with the periodic cash
flows for the interest rates swap, was recognized as an adjustment of the
related financing interest payable. The remaining net asset of U.S.$42.4
million (Ps449.7) was recognized within other short and long-term receivables
for U.S.$12.1 million (Psl128.3) and U.S.$30.3 million (Ps321.3), respectively.
For the years ended December 31, 2001 and 2002, the changes in the CCS'
estimated fair value, excluding prepayment effects in 2002, resulted in a a
gain of approximately U.S.$191.6 million (Psl1,959.5) and a loss of
approximately U.S.$192.2 million (Ps2,038.3), respectively, which were
recognized within the Comprehensive Financing Result.
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As of December 31, 2001, 2002, and as of June 30, 2003 (unaudited) the effect
of having made the accounting assets and liabilities offset, mentioned above,
is that the book value of the financial indebtedness directly related to the
CCS is presented as if it had been effectively negotiated in the exchanged
currencies instead of in the originally negotiated currencies. Assuming the
early liquidation of the CCS, the financial liabilities and related financial
expense in respect of the underlying financial indebtedness, would be
established beginning as of the settlement, in the rates and currencies
originally contracted.

During the first six months of 2003, the aggregate notional amount of long-term
CCS contracts decreased approximately U.S.$150.9 million, as compared to the
contracts outstanding as of December 31, 2002, mainly as a result of changes in
the currency mix of the underlying debt instruments. The estimated fair value
of the Company's long-term CCS as of June 30, 2003 was a gain (net asset) of
approximately U.S.$19.7 million, not considering prepayments of approximately
U.S.$371.0 million made to the Company's obligations under the CCS.

Additionally, as of December 31, 2001 and 2002, there are other currency
instruments with notional amounts of U.S.$100 million and U.S.$104.5 million,
respectively, maturing in July and August 2003, related to financial debt
expected to be negotiated in the near future. These contracts had an estimated
fair value gain of U.S.$8.9 million (Ps91.0) in 2001 and a loss of U.S.$6.8
million (Ps72.1) in 2002, recognized within the Comprehensive Financing Result.
As of June 30, 2003 these instruments are included in the foreing exchange
options disclosed in note 16 B.

The estimated fair values of derivative instruments used for the exchange of
interest rates and/or currencies fluctuate over time and will be determined by
future interest rates and currency prices. These values should be viewed in



relation to the fair values of the underlying transactions and as part of the
overall Company's exposure to fluctuations in interest rates and foreign
exchange rates. The notional amounts of derivative instruments do not
necessarily represent amounts exchanged by the parties and consequently, there
is no direct measure of the Company's exposure to the use of these derivatives.
The amounts exchanged in cash are determined based on the basis of the notional
amounts and other terms included in the derivative financial instruments.

C) Guaranteed Debt

As of December 31, 2001 and 2002, CEMEX Mexico, S.A. de C.V. and Empresas
Tolteca de Mexico, S.A. de C.V. jointly, fully and unconditionally guarantee
indebtedness of the Company for an aggregate amount of U.S.$2,196 million and
U.S.$2,339 million, respectively. The combined summarized financial
information of these guarantors as of December 31, 2001 and 2002 is as
follows:

2001 2002
N =T o= T Ps 123,536.6 116,497.8
Liabilities . ettt it ittt e i 103,319.0 55,558.2
Stockholders' equity.....coviiiin.. 20,217.6 60,939.6
Net SAleS .t ittt ittt tteeenenenenn Ps 23,094.8 22,225.3
Operating income........oviiiinnneennn 1,651.7 3,479.3
Net 1nCOmME. . v it ittt ittt ettt eeeeennn 10,582.4 443 .6

Certain debt contracts guaranteed by the Company and/or some of its
subsidiaries, contain restrictive covenants limiting sale of assets,
maintenance of controlling interest on certain subsidiaries, limiting liens,
and requiring compliance with financial ratios. The Company obtains waivers
prior to the occurrence of events of default.
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13. PENSION PLANS, SENIORITY PREMIUM AND OTHER POSTRETIREMENT BENEFITS

The net periodic cost of pension plans, seniority premium and other
postretirement benefits, for the years ended December 31, 2000, 2001 and 2002
(see note 2J), are as follows:

Components of net periodic cost: 2000 2001 2002

B e o 1o Ps 235.2 332.1 280.4

Interest cost.......oeiiiiiii i, 166.1 295.6 288.8

Actuarial return on plan assets (111.6) (355.6) (369.9

Amortization of prior service cost, changes in assumptions and 6

experience adjusStmentS. ...ttt ii it ittt 29.7 50.6 56.

Results from extinguishment obligations...............c..iviunnnn. - - (45.0

Ps 319.4 322.7 210.8 9

The following table presents the reconciliation of the actuarial value of
postretirement benefit obligations and the funded status (see note 2J), as of
December 31, 2001 and 2002:

2001 2002

Change in benefit obligation:



Projected benefit obligation ("PBO") at beginning of year...........ccvuiiiuiininnnn Ps 4,945.7 5,333.1
SErVICE COStuun it ittt it ittt ettt e 332.1 280.5
Interest cost... 295.6 288.8
Actuarial result.. 15.8 200.2
ACUISIEIONS . ettt e e e - 406.1
Initial valuation of other postretirement benefits...... 159.0 11.0
Foreign exchange fluctuations and inflation adjustments. (15.6) 64.4
Extinguishment of obligations... . - (162.9)
Benefits Pald. et i i i i e et ettt e (399.5) (333.8)
Projected benefit obligation ("PBO") at end Of year......oeiiuiininnnennennennnn 5,333.1 6,087.4
Change in plan assets:
Fair value of plan assets at beginning Of year.........uiiuiieinniniennennennennnn 4,095.2 4,874.4
398.2 (287.2)
Real return ON PLlan @S SEES . u ittt ettt ettt eeeneeaneeaeneenneanennennenn (287.2)
ACqUISItIONS. .ttt ittt i i e i et e, - 299.2
Foreign exchange fluctuations and inflation adjustments. (67.0) 69.9
Employer contributions............oiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiian.. . 650.3 103.6
Extinguishment of obligations. . - (181.6)
Benefits paid from the FUNAS. .....veiuieienii ittt teeenenenenenenenennenenens (202.2) (196.3)
Fair value of plan assets at end of year........iuiie i ii i nnennennns 4,874.5 4,682.0
Amounts recognized in the balance sheets consist of:
FUNAEA SEAEUS . i it ettt ettt ettt ettt ettt aae e e a e et e 458.6 1,405.4
Unrecognized prior service cost (876.7) (799.7)
Unrecognized net actuarial resulfs.....eeeiiiiiiiit ittt rnnnneeennnnneeeennnns (677.9 (1,613.0)
Accrued benefit liability (Prepayment) .......ieeeeiie i i nnennennennennennenns (1,096.0) 1,007.3)
Additional minimum 1iability. e eee e in ittt ittt i 356.8 613.0
Net liability (prepayment) recognized in the balance sheet.................. Ps (739.2) (394.3)

As of December 31, 2001 and 2002, the actual benefit obligation ("ABO"),
equivalent to the PBO not considering salaries increases, amounted to Ps4,539.0
and Ps4,703.6, respectively, of which the vested portion was Psl,125.2 as of
December 31, 2001 and Psl1,194.0 in 2002.

The Company recognizes an additional minimum liability and an intangible asset
or charge to stockholders' equity in those individual cases when the net
projected liability (funded status less amortizing items) exceeds the net
actual liability (ABO less plan assets). As of December 31, 2001 and 2002, the
Company recognized a minimum liability and an intangible asset of Ps356.8 and
Ps613.0, respectively.

CEMEX, S.A. DE C.V. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (Continued)
December 31, 2000, 2001, 2002 and June 30, 2003
(Millions of constant Mexican Pesos as of June 30, 2003)

As of December 31, 2001 and 2002, the net periodic cost and the actuarial value
of postretirement benefits, include the cost and obligations of postretirement
benefits other than pensions, such as seniority premiums granted by law, as
well as health care and life insurance benefits that the Company has granted to
retirees. For the years ended December 31, 2001 and 2002, the net periodic cost
includes Ps49.1 and Ps75.3, representing the approximate cost corresponding to
postretirement benefits other than pensions, respectively.

Prior service cost and net actuarial results are amortized over the estimated
service life of the employees under plan benefits. The estimated service life
for pension plans is 18 years and for other postretirement benefits is 13
years.

As of December 31, 2001 and 2002, the plan assets are mainly composed of fixed
return instruments and stock of companies traded in formal stock exchanges.

The Company applies real rates (nominal rates discounted for inflation) in the
actuarial assumptions used to determine postretirement benefit obligations. The
most significant assumptions used during the last three years in the
determination of net periodic cost were the following:



Range of discount rates used to reflect
the obligations' present value 3.5 % - 7.8% 3.5 % - 7.1%
Weighted average rate of return on plan assets........ 8% 8%

During 2002, the subsidiary of CEMEX in Spain, in agreement with its employees,
changed the structure of most of its defined benefit plans, replacing them with
defined contribution structures. In connection to this change, the subsidiary
contributed, on behalf of its employees covered by the new plans, assets for an
amount equivalent to the obligation value as of the date of the exchange. These
assets were already restricted within the previous plans. As a result of
writing off the projected benefit obligations and the non-amortized items, net
of the assets contributed, as of December 31, 2002, for the change in the
plans' structure, no significant effect was reflected in the income statement.

14. STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
A) CAPITAL STOCK

The authorized capital stock of the Company as of December 31, 2002 was as
follows:

Series A (1) Series B (2)
Subscribed and paid SharesS. . ... ...ttt ittt ittt e 3,331,300,154 1,665,650,077
Treasury ShAreS (3) cuuui ittt iiiie ettt e eenaeeennnnaeeennnnnns 166,400,476 83,200,238
Unissued shares authorized for Executive Stock Option Plans............... 116,526,096 58,263,048

3,614,226,726 1,807,113,363

The authorized capital stock of the Company as of June 30, 2003 (unaudited) was
as follows:

Series A (1) Series B (2)
Subscribed and paid Shares.......iuiiiiiiiii ittt ittt 3,537,851,042 1,768,925,521
Treasury ShareS (4) cuuut ittt int it ine it onneneentonseneeneennnn 293,735,112 146,867,556
Unissued shares authorized for Executive Stock Option Plans............... 116,240,096 58,120,048
3,947, 826,250 1,973,913,125
(1) Series "A" or Mexican shares must represent at least 64% of capital
stock.
(2) Series "B" or free subscription shares must represent at most
36% of capital stock.
(3) Includes the shares acquired under the share repurchase program, and those

shares authorized by the Ordinary Stockholders' Meeting of April 25, 2002,
which have not been subscribed.

(4) Includes the shares acquired under the share repurchase program, and those
shares authorized by the Ordinary Stockholders' Meeting of April 24, 2003,
which have not been subscribed.

Of the total number of shares as of December 31, 2002 and June 30, 2003
(unaudited), 3,267,000,000 correspond to the fixed portion in both periods and
2,154,340,089 and 2,654,739,375 correspond to the variable portion,
respectively.

CEMEX, S.A. DE C.V. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (Continued)
December 31, 2000, 2001, 2002 and June 30, 2003
(Millions of constant Mexican Pesos as of June 30, 2003)

On April 24, 2003, the Annual Stockholders' Meeting approved: (i) a reserve for



share repurchase of up to Ps6,000.0 (nominal amount); (ii) an increase in the
variable capital stock through the capitalization of retained earnings for up
to Ps3,664.4 (nominal amount), by the issuance of shares, as a stock dividend,
equivalent to up to 250,000,000 CPOs, at a subscription value of Ps36.449
(nominal amount) per CPO, or instead, stockholders could have chosen to receive
Ps2.20 (nominal amount) in cash for each CPO. As a result, shares equivalent to
98,841,944 CPOs were subscribed and paid, representing an increase in common
stock of approximately Ps3.3 and in additional paid-in capital of Ps3,599.4,
while a cash payment of approximately Ps6l.7 was made during the first six
months of 2003; and (iii) the cancellation of the shares that were held in the
Company's treasury.

On April 25, 2002, the Annual Stockholders' Meeting approved: (i) a reserve for
share repurchase of up to Ps5,000.0 (nominal amount), under which, as of
December 31, 2002, shares equivalent to 7,609,200 CPOs have been repurchased,
representing a reduction in the repurchase reserve of Ps370.4; (ii) an increase
in the variable capital stock through the capitalization of retained earnings
for up to Ps3,213.1 (nominal amount), by the issuance of shares, as a stock
dividend, equivalent to up to 140,000,000 CPOs, at a subscription value of
Ps46.336 (nominal amount) per CPO, or instead, stockholders could have chosen
to receive Ps2.00 (nominal amount) in cash for each CPO. As a result, shares
equivalent to 64,408,962 CPOs were subscribed and paid, representing an
increase in common stock of Ps2.2 and in additional paid-in capital of
Ps3,117.3, while a cash payment of approximately Ps237.5 was made during 2002;
and (iii) the cancellation of 169,206,112 Series "A" shares and 84,603,056
Series "B" shares that were held in the Company's treasury.

In September 2000, the Company established a share repurchase program through
the Mexican Stock Exchange ("MSE"), approved by its board of directors, for up
to U.S.$500 million. This program was effective from October 2000 to December
2001. During 2000 and 2001, under this program, a total of 3,086,000 CPOs and
4,978,000 CPOs, respectively, were acquired, resulting in a common stock
reduction of Ps0.l1 in 2000 and Ps0.2 in 2001, and in the repurchase reserve of
Ps130.9 in 2000 and Ps222.1 in 2001. On April 26, 2001, at the Annual
Stockholders' Meeting, shares equivalent to 3,086,000 CPOs were cancelled. The
4,978,000 remaining CPOs were acquired in 2001 after the meeting.

B) RETAINED EARNINGS

Retained earnings as of December 31, 2002, include Ps71,401.9 of earnings
generated by subsidiaries and affiliated companies that are not available to be
paid as dividends by CEMEX until these entities distribute such amounts to
CEMEX. Additionally, retained earnings include a share repurchase reserve in
the amount of Ps5,249.0. Net income for the year is subject to a 5% allocation
toward a legal reserve until such reserve equals one fifth (20%) of the common
stock. As of December 31, 2002, the legal reserve amounted to Psl,276.7.

Earnings distributed as dividends in excess of tax earnings will be subject to
tax payment at a 34% rate, in which case, only 66% of retained earnings may be
distributed to the shareholders.

C) EFFECTS OF INFLATION

The effects of inflation on majority interest stockholders' equity as of
December 31, 2002 and June 30, 2003 (unaudited) are as follows:

December 31, 2002

Historical Inflation Total
cost adjustment
{6707 111117) o HE =3 ule o) - Ps 55.2 3,344.3 3,399.5
Additional paid-in capital.................. .. 17,177.4 14,072.3 31,249.7
Deficit in equity restatement................. .. - (62,850.8) (62,850.8)
Cumulative initial deferred income tax effects.. (4,799.8) (509.8) (5,309.6)
Retained earnings.........cooiiiiiiininnnnn .. 51,184.9 37,728.4 88,913.3
Net INnCOME. vt tneeneeeenennanosonnnanns Ps 5,455.8 61.8 5,517.6
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December 31, 2000, 2001, 2002 and June 30, 2003
(Millions of constant Mexican Pesos as of June 30, 2003)

June 30, 2003 (Unaudited)

Historical Inflation Total
cost adjustment
COMMON STOCK . 4ttt ettt eeeee et eeeaeeeesnenaeseeennanens Ps 58.9 3,344.3 3,403.2
Additional paid-in capital.................. .. 20,785.8 14,264.0 35,049.8
Deficit in equity restatement................. .. - (65,204.0) (65,204.0)
Cumulative initial deferred income tax effects.. (4,697.9) (611.7) (5,309.6)
Retained earnings.......ooiiiiiiiiiinnnne.s .. 51,773.4 38,993.1 90,766.5
Net INCOME. i ittt ettt ettt e e e eaaaeeaneaenanaannns Ps 4,077.6 26.0 4,103.6

D) FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSLATION

The foreign currency translation results recorded in stockholders' equity is
summarized as follows:

December 31, (Unaudited
June 30,

Foreign currency translation adjustment... Ps (891.3) (2,491.4) 6,508.4 3,854.8 2,251.1
Foreign exchange gain (loss) (1) ......... (185.7) 767.6 (2,632.6) (1,761.0) (147.4)

ps  (1,077.0) (1,723.8) 3,875.8 2,093.8 2,103.7

(1) Foreign exchange results from the financing identified with the
acquisitions of foreign subsidiaries.

The foreign currency translation adjustment includes foreign exchange results
of financing related to acquisitions of foreign subsidiaries made by the
Company's subsidiary in Spain of expense of Ps674.2 in 2000 and Ps45.8 in 2001
and income of Psl154.7 in 2002, Ps95.7 and Ps28.4 for the six months ended June
30, 2002 and 2003 (unaudited), respectively.

E) PREFERRED STOCK

In February 2002, CEMEX renegotiated the preferred stock issued in November
2000 by a Dutch subsidiary for U.S.$1,500 million with an original maturity in
May 2002; as a result, preferred stock in the amount of U.S.$250 million was
redeemed and the maturity of the balance outstanding as of December 31, 2002 of
U.S.$650 million (Ps6,893.4) was extended, of which U.S.$195 million will
mature in February 2004 and U.S.$455 million will mature in August 2004. The
Company also negotiated the possibility of increasing the program up to
U.S.$1,200 million. During 2001, the Company redeemed a portion of the then
outstanding preferred stock in the amount of U.S.$600 million, and at year-end
2001, the balance outstanding was U.S.$900 million (Psl10,047.6). The preferred
stock, which is mandatorily redeemable upon maturity, grants its holders 10% of
the subsidiary's voting rights, as well as the right to receive a guaranteed
variable preferred dividend. Holders of the preferred stock have the option, in
certain circumstances, to subscribe for additional preferred stock or common
shares for up to 51% of the subsidiary's voting rights. This transaction is
included as minority interest. Preferred dividends declared during 2000, 2001,
2002 and for the six months ended June 30, 2003 (unaudited) of approximately
U.S.$17 million (Psl178.4), U.S.$76 million (Ps795.4), U.S.$23.2 million
(Ps240.5) and U.S.$11.0 million (Psll15.1), respectively, were recognized as
minority interest in the consolidated income statements.

Related to the capital securities issued in 1998 by a subsidiary of CEMEX in
Spain for U.S.$250 million with an annual dividend rate of 9.66%, in April
2002, through a tender offer, U.S.$184 million of capital securities were
redeemed. The amount paid to the holders in excess of the nominal amount of the
capital securities pursuant the early redemption of approximately U.S.$20
million (Ps209.2) was recorded against stockholders' equity. The balance
outstanding at December 31, 2001 and 2002 was U.S.$250 million (Ps2,556.8) and
U.S.$66 million (Ps700.0), respectively. The Company has an option to
repurchase the remaining securities on November 15, 2004, or on any subsequent



dividend payment date. Additionally, the holders have the right to sell them to
the Company on May 15, 2005. This transaction is recorded as minority interest.
Capital securities dividends during 2000, 2001, 2002 and for the six months
ended June 30, 2003 (unaudited) of approximately U.S.$24.2 million (Ps258.6),
U.S.$24.2 million (Ps250.9), U.S.$11.9 million (Psl122.6) and U.S.$3.0 million
(Ps31.4), respectively, were recognized as part of minority interest in the
consolidated income statements.
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F) OTHER EQUITY TRANSACTIONS

In December 2001, the Company concluded a simultaneous and voluntary public
purchase and sale offer for its warrants and an exchange offer for its ADWs,
outstanding as of the offer date, in exchange for new warrants and new ADWs
maturing in December 2004, under a one for one exchange ratio. Of the total 105
million warrants and ADWs, originally issued in December 1999 by means of a
public offer in the MSE and the NYSE for a term of three years maturing in
December 2002, 103,790,945, representing 98.85% of the total warrants under
this program, were presented and exchanged for new warrants and ADWs. The new
warrants and new ADWs trade on the MSE and the NYSE, respectively, meeting the
distribution requirements of both exchanges, while the old warrants and old
ADWs that were not exchanged expired in December 2002. During 2001, except for
the normal fees required to carry out the previously mentioned public offer,
the Company did not incur any gain or loss on this transaction. The warrants
permit the holders to benefit from the future increases in the market price of
the Company's CPO above the strike price, which originally was 6.20 dollars per
warrant, within certain limits and subject to technical adjustments. The
benefit, should any exist, will be paid in CPOs of the Company. The warrants
were subscribed as American Depositary Warrants ("ADWs") listed on the NYSE;
each ADW is equivalent to 5 warrants. All the CPOs and ADSs required to cover
the warrants future exercises, are available through equity forward contracts
with financial institutions (see note 16A).

As of December 31, 2001, 2002 and June 30, 2003 (unaudited), there is a
transaction totaling U.S.$96.3 million (Ps984.9), U.S.$90.6 million (Ps960.7)
and U.S.$67.2 million (Ps704.0), respectively, through which, in December 1995,
the Company transferred financial assets to a trust, while simultaneously
investors contributed U.S.$123.5 million in exchange for notes representing a
beneficial interest in the trust. The Company has the option to reacquire the
related assets at different dates until maturity in 2007. This transaction is
included as minority interest. The Company's cost of retaining its option to
reacquire the related assets during 2000, 2001, 2002 and for the six months
ended June 30, 2003 (unaudited) was U.S.$14.4 million (Psl152.9), U.S.$13.8
million (Psl141.1), U.S.$13.2 million (Ps139.8) and U.S.$12.3 million (Psl128.6),
respectively, and was recorded as part of the financial expense in the
consolidated income statements.

G) COMPREHENSIVE NET INCOME (LOSS)

The main items included in the comprehensive net income (loss) are as follows:

December 31, (Unaudited)
June 30,
2000 2001 2002 2003

Majority interest net income..........iiiiiiiiiiiiiiiinn.n Ps 10,614.5 12,045.6 5,517.6 4,103.6
Deficit in equity restatement:

Effects from holding non-monetary assets................. (3,022.7) (2,686.5) (9,890.8) (3,363.4)

Foreign currency translation adjustment...... (891.3) (2,491.4) 6,508.4 2,251.1

Capitalized foreign exchange result (note 14D). . (185.7) 767.6 (2,632.6) (147.4)

Additional minimum liability............oieiiiiiniiaana.. (212.9) 212.9 - -

Valuation of investments available for sale (note 8B).... 219.9 (811.3) - -

Hedge derivative instruments (notes 11,12 and 16)........ 94.3 - (2,218.1) (752.5)

Deferred income tax of the year charged directly to

stockholders'equity (note 17) ...vuiiininiinnnnnennnn 1,039.0 448.9 1,038.8 -

Equity instruments' early redemption results. - - (212.1) -
Inflation effect on equity l.....vuiiiiniiiinininnnnnnnnnn (3.6) 137.8 35.1 -




Deficit in equity restatement...............iiiiiini.. (2,963.0) (4,422.0) (7,371.3) (2,012.2)

Cumulative initial deferred income tax effects............ (5,309.6) - - -
Other comprehensive income (1OSS) ....iuiieennennennnnnn (8,272.6) (4,422.0) (7,371.3) (2,012.2)
Majority comprehensive net income (loSS)............... 2,341.9 7,623.6 (1,853.7) 2,091.4
Minority interest...... ..ottt 828.1 1,568.0 393.0 115.8
Total comprehensive net income (loSS).......oveuvvnnnnn Ps 3,170.0 9,191.6 (1,460.7) 2,207.2

1. Corresponds to the adjustment resulting from the use of the weighted
average index for the restatement of stockholders' equity and for the use
of the index of inflation in Mexico to restate common stock and additional
paid-in capital (see note 2B).
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15. EXECUTIVE STOCK OPTION PROGRAMS

The information relating to stock option programs, presented in terms of
equivalent CPOs and considering the effect of the options' exchange program
described below, are summarized as follows:

Fixed program Special program Variable Voluntary

Options (A) (B) program (C) Programs (D)
As of December 31, 2000............... 56,468,650 - - 22,077,878
Changes in 2001:
Granted 13,040,992 - 88,937,805 -
REACEMEA. v et eet et eereee e eenannns (57,448,219) - - -
CanCeled. s v veeineernnnneeoennnnannenn (237,538) - - -
Exercised......oviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiia, (3,128,489) - - (1,861,918)
As of December 31, 2001............... 8,695,396 - 88,937,805 20,215,960
Changes in 2002:
Granted......oiiiiiiiniiniiniiiaan - 4,963,775 16,949,800 2,120,395
Exercised.......ooiiiiiiiiiiiiiiii (2,119,871) - (7,294,781) (6,287,050)
As of December 31, 2002............... 6,575,525 4,963,775 98,592,824 16,049,305
Changes during the six months ended
June 30, 2003 (unaudited):
Granted.....eeeieeennnnn - - 7,105,753 38,583,989
Exercised (118, 626) - - (9,700,280)
As of June 30, 2003.........0iiuinn.. 6,456,899 4,963,775 105,698,577 44,933,014
Exercise prices in 2002:
Exercise price in pesos *............. 28.86 - - -
Exercise price in dollars *........... - 5.01 5.04 4.78
At December 31, 2002:
Exercise price in pesos *............. 30.19 - - -
Exercise price in dollars *........... - 5.01 5.14 4.65
Exercise price.............. .. Fixed Fixed Floating Floating
Remaining average life 4.2 years 9.0 years 9.1 years 1.8 years

* Weighted average exercise price per CPO.

A) Fixed program

Through October 31, 2001, the Company had granted to its executives a stock
option program ("fixed program") for the acquisition of the Company's common
stock in the form of CPOs. This program was replaced in November 2001 through a
voluntary exchange program (see "variable program"). In 1995, the Company was
authorized to grant to eligible executives, stock option rights, for a 10 year
tenure after issuance, to subscribe for up to 72,100,000 CPOs, which would be
issued through the exercise of the options, increasing the balance of common
stock, additional paid-in capital and the outstanding number of shares. The



exercise price of the options granted, established in Mexican pesos and fixed
throughout the life of the program, was equivalent to the market price of the
CPO at the grant date. Exercise prices reflect technical antidilution
adjustments for stock dividends. The executives' option rights may be exercised
up to 25% annually during the first four years after having been granted. The
CPOs issued upon the exercise of options were paid at their assigned exercise
prices, generating additional paid-in capital of Psl112.3 and Ps73.7 during 2001
and 2002, respectively.

B) Special program

During 2002, as part of the agreements resulting from the acquisition of CEMEX,
Inc. (formerly Southdown), a stock option program to purchase CEMEX ADSs
("special program"), was established for CEMEX, Inc.'s executives. The options
granted have a fixed exercise price in dollars, equivalent to the market price
of the ADS as of the grant date, and have a 10 year tenure. The executives'
option rights may be exercised up to 25% annually during the first four years
after having been granted. The options exercises are hedged with shares
currently owned by subsidiaries, potentially increasing the stockholders'
equity balance and the outstanding number of shares.
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C) Variable program

In order to better align the executives' interests with those of the
shareholders, in November 2001, the Company implemented a voluntary options
exchange to establish a stock option program with exercise prices denominated
in U.S. dollars with annual increases during the option's life ("variable
program"), reflecting the funding cost in the market, and with a 10 year
tenure. The participating executives in the options exchange, representing
57,448,219 options, resigned their rights to subscribe and/or acquire shares of
the Company's common stock, by the issuance of new CPOs, in exchange for cash
equivalent to the intrinsic value of their options at the exchange date and the
issuance of new options, equivalent in number to the time value of their
redeemed options, determined by the appropriate valuation model for each
particular executive, which resulted in 2001 in the issuance of 88,937,805
options under the variable program. Except for the options issued through the
exchange, where 50% of the option's exercise rights were vested, with an
additional 25% annual vesting over the next two anniversaries, for subsequent
option grants, executive' option rights may be exercised up to 25% annually
during the first four years after having been granted. During 2001, by means of
the exchange program, a compensatory cost of approximately Ps674.2 was
recognized in other expenses, net.

D) Voluntary programs

During 1998 and 1999, the Company established voluntary stock option programs
("voluntary programs"), through which the executives elected to purchase
options covering a total of 36,468,375 CPOs (7,293,675 ADSs). These options are
exercisable quarterly over a 5-year period and have a predefined exercise price
which increases quarterly in dollars, taking into account the funding cost in
the market. For the sale of the options, the Company received a premium
equivalent to a percentage of the CPO price. As of June 30, 2003 (unaudited),
there were options oustanding under these programs covering 4,228,630 CPOs
(845,726 ADSs) .

Likewise, during 2002, a voluntary stock option program was established,
through which the executives elect to purchase, on a monthly basis, new options
for up to a number equivalent to those exercised in the same period within the
variable program and that were originated by the exchange. During 2002, the
Company sold 2,120,395 options and received a premium equivalent to a
percentage of the CPO price, which amounted to U.S.$1.5 million (Psl5.7). The
options under this program begin with the same characteristics, regarding
remaining tenure, as those exercised within the variable program and with an
exercise price equivalent to the price of the CPO on the issuance date of the
options.



In January 2003, the Company sold 38,583,989 options to its executives with a
strike price of U.S.$3.58 per CPO, equal to the CPO price at the grant date.
The options, which cover an equivalent amount of CPOs, have tenure of five
years, and the strike price increases annually reflecting the funding cost in
the market (5% annual). For the sale of these options, the Company received a
premium equivalent to a percentage of the CPO price, which amounted to
approximately U.S.$9.7 million (Psl101.5). The appreciation of the options, if
any, will be delivered in CPO equivalents, which will be restricted for sale or
transfer during the first two years from the exercise date as to 50% with the
remaining 50% one more year from the exercise. The new options contain a
knocking trigger in the event the CPO price reaches certain level, in which
case, all options will be automatically exercised.

E) Options hedging activities

The requirement of CPOs or ADSs underlying the potential exercise of options
under the variable and voluntary programs, has been hedged through equity
forward contracts in the Company's own shares (see note 16A), in order to
guarantee that shares would be available at prices equivalent to those
established in the options, without the necessity of issuing new CPOs into the
market. Consequently, these programs do not increase the number of shares
outstanding and consequently do not result in dilution in basic earnings per
share.

Beginning in 2001, the Company recognizes as compensation cost in the income
statement, the intrinsic appreciation of the options under all variable and
voluntary programs, which results from the difference between the CPO's market
price against the exercise prices established in the options. For the years
ended December 31, 2001, 2002 and the six months ended June 30, 2003
(unaudited), the expense was U.S.$14.7 million (Psl150.9), U.S.$5.0 million
(Ps53.0) and U.S.$43.1 million (Ps450.8), respectively. Likewise, the Company
recognizes, through the income statement, the changes in the estimated fair
value of the equity forward contracts designated as hedges of these plans (see
note 16A), which resulted in a gain of approximately U.S.$28.7 million
(Ps293.5) in 2001, a loss of approximately U.S.$47.1 million (Ps499.5) in 2002
and a gain of approximately U.S.$33.0 million (Ps345.2) for the six months
ended June 30, 2003 (unaudited).
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16. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The derivative financial instruments negotiated by the Company, other than
those related to financial debt (see notes 11 and 12), are summarized as
follows:

In millions of U.S. dollars 2001 2002 (Unaudited)
June 30, 2003

Notional Estimated Notional Estimated Notional Estimated

amount fair value amount fair value amount fair value
A) Equity forward contracts......... 1,395.9 81.0 1,445.1 (90.6) 1,543.7 25.1
B) Foreign exchange instruments .... 424.0 4.4 1,325.7 (201.4) 1,525.3 (228.3)
C) Derivatives on fuel oil.......... 9.5 - - - - -

D) Derivatives related to energy
ProjectsS. et iiiiiaas 177.0 (4.6) 177.0 (0.5) 177.0 (5.6)

Upon liquidation and at the Company's option, the equity forward contracts
provide for physical settlement or net cash settlement of the estimated fair
value, and the effects at settlement are recognized in the income statement or
as part of stockholders' equity, according to their designation and the
underlying instrument or program being hedged. At maturity, if these forward
contracts are not settled or replaced, or if the Company defaults on the
agreements established with the financial counterparties, such counterparties
may sell the shares underlying the contracts. If any such sale were to occur,



it may have an adverse effect on CEMEX and/or its subsidiaries' stock market
price, may reduce the amount of dividends and other distributions that the
Company would receive from its subsidiaries, and/or may create public minority
interests that may adversely affect the Company's ability to realize operating
efficiencies as a combined group.

A)

As of December 31, 2001, 2002 and June 30, 2003 (unaudited), the Company
had forward contracts for notional amounts of U.S.$491.0 million,
U.S.$461.1 million and U.S.$454.9 million, respectively, with an original
maturity in December 2002 that was extended until December 2003, covering
21,000,000 ADSs (105,000,000 CPOs) in 2001, 24,008,392 ADSs (120,041,960
CPOs) in 2002 and 25,457,378 ADSs (127,286,890 CPOs) in June 30, 2003
(unaudited) as well as 33.8 million of CEMEX Spain's shares in all periods.
These contracts were negotiated to hedge future exercises under the 105
million warrants program, which maturity was extended to December 2004 (see
note 14F). The shares underlying these forward contracts were sold by the
Company during 1999 for approximately U.S.$905.7 million, and CEMEX
simultaneously prepaid approximately U.S.$439.9 million toward the
forwards' final price. Until December 2002, when the contracts were
renegotiated to extend their maturity, prepayments toward the forwards
final price of approximately U.S.$193.6 million were made. In December
2002, in order to conclude the renegotiation, the estimated fair value of
the forwards was settled, resulting in the recognition in stockholders'
equity of a loss of approximately U.S.$98.3 million (Psl1l,028.2), arising
from changes in the value of the underlying shares. In the financial
statements as of December 31, 2001 and 2002, anticipated effect has been
given to the liquidation of the forwards for the portion corresponding to
CEMEX Spain's shares, due to the prepayment on the forwards and the
withholding of all economic and voting rights over such shares. All
additional effects arising from these contracts will be recognized at
maturity as an adjustment to stockholders' equity. As of December 31, 2001,
2002 and June 30, 2003 (unaudited), the estimated fair value of these
contracts were gains of approximately U.S.$98.8 million, U.S.$69.1 million
and U.S.$117.3 million, respectively. As of the same dates, considering the
renegotiation in 2002, prepayments for approximate amounts of U.S.$151.8
million (Ps1,587.8), U.S.$95.3 million (Ps996.8) and U.S.$101.7 million
(Ps1,064.2), respectively, have been made and are included in other
short-term accounts receivable (see note 5).

As of December 31, 2001 and 2002, there are forward contracts with
different maturities until October 2006, for notional amounts of U.S.$408.3
million and U.S.$338.7 million, respectively, covering 15,986,689 ADSs in
2001 and 12,379,377 ADSs in 2002, negotiated to hedge the future exercise
of the options under the variable stock option programs (see note 15).
Starting in 2001 the estimated fair value of these contracts is recognized
in the balance sheet as assets or liabilities against the income statement,
in addition to the costs generated by the option programs, which the
forwards are hedging. As of December 31, 2001 and 2002, the estimated fair
value of these contracts was a gain of approximately U.S.$3.3 million
(Ps33.8) and a loss of approximately U.S.$32.8 million (Ps347.9),
respectively.
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As of December 31, 2001 and 2002, there are forward contracts with
different maturities until May 2003, for a notional amount of U.S.$101.8
million and U.S.$97.4 million, respectively, covering a total of 4,699,061
ADSs in 2001 and 3,626,243 ADSs in 2002, negotiated to hedge the future
exercise of the options granted under the voluntary stock option programs
(see note 15). Starting in 2001, the estimated fair value of these
contracts is recognized in the balance sheet as assets or liabilities
against the income statement, in addition to the costs generated by the
option programs. As of December 31, 2001 and 2002, the estimated fair value
was a gain of approximately U.S.$25.4 million (Ps259.7) and a loss of
approximately U.S.$14.2 million (Psl150.6), respectively. As of June 30,
2003 (unaudited), the notional amount of forwards designated to hedge the
variable and voluntary stock option programs was U.S.$678.3 million,



covered 27,545,158 ADSs and had an estimated fair value loss of
approximately U.S.$4.0 million (Ps41.8).

As of December 31, 2002, there are forwards maturing in August and
September 2003, for a notional amount of U.S.$95.5 million covering
21,510,500 CPOs, negotiated to hedge the purchase of CAH shares through the
exchange for CEMEX CPOs that will be liquidated during 2003 (see note 8A).
The effects to be generated upon settlement of the forward contracts will
be recognized as an adjustment to the purchase price for the CAH shares. As
of December 31, 2002, the estimated fair value of these contracts, which is
not periodically recorded, had an approximate loss of U.S.$2.1 million
(Ps22) . As of June 30, 2003 (unaudited), pursuant to the extension in the
exchange of CAH shares until 2004, described in note 8A, these contracts
were reassigned to other purposes (see paragraph below) .

As of December 31, 2001 and 2002 and June 30, 2003 (unaudited), there are
forwards for notional amounts of U.S.$394.8 million, U.S.$452.4 million and
U.S.$405.2 million, respectively, with different maturities until June
2006, covering a total of 13,069,855 ADSs in 2001, 15,316,818 ADSs in 2002
and 15,229,615 ADSs at June 30, 2003. Based on the Company's intention at
maturity, which is to physically settle these contracts, the estimated fair
value of these contracts is not periodically recognized. The effects of
these contracts will be recognized at maturity as an adjustment to
stockholders' equity. As of December 31, 2001, 2002 and June 30, 2003
(unaudited), the estimated fair value reflected losses of approximately
U.S.$46.5 million, U.S.$110.6 million and U.S.$88.2 million, respectively.
In addition, as of December 31, 2002, the Company had a third party equity
forward contract for a notional amount of U.S.$7.1 million, with an
estimated fair value loss of approximately U.S.$0.1 million (Psl1.0). This
contract was net cash settled during the first six months of 2003
(unaudited) without material effects.

To protect itself from variations in foreign exchange rates, CEMEX has
entered into foreign exchange forwards for an approximate amount of
U.S.$424.0 million, U.S.$1,266.0 million and U.S.$534.7 million as of
December 31, 2001, 2002 and June 30, 2003 (unaudited), respectively, with
different maturities until July 2006. These contracts have been designated
as hedges of the Company's net investment in foreign subsidiaries. The
estimated fair value of these instruments is recorded in stockholders'
equity as part of the foreign currency translation effect (see note 14D).
In addition, as of December 31, 2002 and June 30, 2003 (unaudited), the
Company held foreign exchange options for notional amounts of U.S.$59.7
million and U.S.$990.6 million, with different maturities until June 2005
and estimated fair value losses as of December 31, 2002 and June 30, 2003
(unaudited) of approximately U.S.$44.4 million (Ps470.9) and U.S.$52.9
million (Ps553.3), which were recorded in the Comprehensive Financing
Result.

As of December 31, 2001, there were fuel oil forward contracts for a
notional amount of U.S.$9.5 million (Ps99.4), with an estimated fair value
of U.S.$26 thousand (Ps0.3).

As of December 31, 2001, 2002 and June 30, 2003 (unaudited), CEMEX had an
interest rate swap maturing in May 2017 for a notional amount of U.S.$177
million in all periods, negotiated to exchange floating for fixed interest
rates, in connection with agreements entered into by the Company for the
acquisition of electric energy for a 20-year period starting in 2003 (see
note 21F). During the life of the derivative contract and over its notional
amount, the Company will pay LIBOR rates and received a 7.33% fixed rate
until February 2003 and will receive a 7.53% fixed rate from March 2003 to
May 2017. In addition, during 2001 the Company sold a floor option for a
notional amount of U.S.$177 million, related to the interest rate swap
contract, pursuant to which, starting in 2003 and until 2017, the Company
will pay the difference between the 7.53% fixed rate and the LIBOR rates.
Through the sale of this option, the Company received a premium of
approximately U.S.$22 million (Ps225). As of December 31, 2001 and 2002,
the premium received and the combined estimated fair value of the swap and
floor contracts, amounting to approximate losses of U.S.$4.6 million and
U.S.$0.5 million, respectively, were recorded in the Comprehensive
Financing Result for each period. As of December 31, 2001, 2002 and June
30, 2003 (unaudited), for purposes of the table above, the notional amount
of both contracts is not aggregated, considering that there is only one
notional amount with exposure to changes in interest rates and the effects
of one instrument are inversely related to the changes in the other one.
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The estimated fair values of derivative financial instruments fluctuate over
time, and are based on estimated settlement costs or quoted market prices.
These values should be viewed in relation to the fair values of the underlying
instruments or transactions, and as part of the Company's overall exposure to
fluctuations in foreign exchange rates, interest rates and prices of shares.
The notional amounts of derivative instruments do not necessarily represent
amounts exchanged by the parties and, therefore, are not a direct measure of
the exposure of the Company through its use of derivatives. The amounts
exchanged are determined on the basis of the notional amounts and other terms
included in the derivative instruments.

17. INCOME TAX (IT), BUSINESS ASSETS TAX (BAT), EMPLOYEES' STATUTORY PROFIT
SHARING (ESPS) AND DEFERRED INCOME TAXES

In accordance with the effective tax legislation in Mexico, corporations must
pay either income tax ("IT") or business assets tax ("BAT") depending on which
amount is greater for their operations in Mexico. Both taxes recognize the
effects of inflation, though in a manner different from Mexican GAAP. ESPS is
calculated on similar basis as IT, but without recognizing the effects of
inflation.

A) IT, BAT AND ESPS

The Company and its Mexican subsidiaries, for purposes of the Income Tax Law,
generate IT or BAT on a consolidated basis; therefore, the amounts of these
items included in the accompanying financial statements, with respect to the
Mexican subsidiaries, represent the consolidated result of these taxes. For
ESPS purposes, the amount presented is the sum of the individual results of
each company. Beginning in 1999, the determination of the consolidated IT for
the Mexican companies considers a maximum of 60% of the taxable income or loss
of each of the subsidiaries. In addition, commencing in 1999, the taxable
income of those subsidiaries that have tax loss carryforwards generated before
1999 have been included according to equity ownership at the end of the period.
Beginning in 2002, in the determination of consolidated IT, 60% of the taxable
result of the controlling entity should be considered, unless such entity
obtains taxable income, in which case 100% should be considered, until the
restated balance of the individual tax loss carryforwards before 2001 are
amortized. Beginning in 2002, a new IT law became effective in Mexico,
establishing that the IT rate will be decreased by 1% each year, beginning in
2003 until it reaches 32% in 2005.

The IT (expense) benefit, presented in the accompanying income statements,
is summarized as follows:

For the years ended December 31,

2000 2001 2002
Current INCOME LaAX . et vv et tneeeeenneeennnnnn Ps (1,075.4) (1,437.9) (973.7)
Deferred IT. ...ttt i enneeneeeneenn (614.3) (204.4) 402.0
Effects of inflation (note 2B) ............. 12.1 (63.7) (9.9)
Ps (1,677.6) (1,706.0) (581.6)

Total consolidated IT includes Psl,265.1, Psl1l,410.5 and Ps795.6 from foreign
subsidiaries, and Ps412.5, Ps295.5 and (Ps214) from Mexican subsidiaries, for
2000, 2001 and 2002, respectively. In addition, the Company recognized a
consolidated tax benefit, without including deferred taxes, of Ps313.8 in 2000,
Ps685.4 in 2001 and Ps942.3 in 2002.



For its operations in Mexico, the Company has accumulated IT loss carryforwards
which, restated for inflation, can be amortized against taxable income in the
succeeding ten years according to Income Tax Law. The Company and its
subsidiaries in Mexico must generate taxable income to preserve the benefit of
the tax loss carryforwards generated beginning in 1999.

The tax loss carryforwards at December 31, 2002 are as follows:

Amount of Year of
Year in which tax loss occurred carryforwards expiration
S Ps 1,774.4 2005
2000 . i e e e e e e 631.0 2010
22 O 4,157.7 2011
2002 . i e e e e 3,297.2 2012
Ps 9,860.30
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The BAT Law establishes a 1.8% tax levy on assets, restated for inflation in
the case of inventory and fixed assets, and deducting certain liabilities. BAT
levied in excess of IT for the period may be recovered, restated for inflation,
in any of the succeeding ten years, provided that the IT incurred exceeds BAT
in such period. The recoverable BAT as of December 31, 2002 is as follows:

Year in which BAT exceeded IT Amount of Year of
carryforwards expiration
S Ps 162.3 2007
S 58.6 2009
Ps 220.9

B) DEFERRED IT AND ESPS (see note 2K)

The deferred income tax result in the income statement represents the
difference between the beginning of year balance and the year-end balance of
the deferred tax assets or liabilities, and is recognized in nominal pesos. The
tax effects of the main temporary differences that generate the consolidated
deferred tax assets and liabilities are presented below:

2001 2002
Deferred tax assets:
Tax loss carryforwards and other tax credits Ps 1,698.7 4,445.2
Accounts payable and accrued eXPENSEeS..........eeeeeenn . 213.3 248.4
Trade accounts receivable............. s 47.7 24.5
Properties, plant and equipment - (30.4) (39.1)
L0 0= o 42.3 71.3
Total deferred tax assets........... e 1,971.6 4,750.3
Less - Valuation allowance (420.9) (2,371.5)
Net deferred Lax GSSeLS. ..ttt iennnneteeeenneeeseenneeeeseannesasonnnnens 1,550.7 2,378.8
Deferred tax liabilities:
Tax loss carryforwards and other tax credits 3,173.8 6,284.7
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 905.3 4,352.0
Trade accounts receivable............. . 13.7 87.8
Properties, plant and equipment....... e (12,879.3) (17,788.5)
INVEeNtOTIeS .t ittt ittt et eaaeeaneenn (1,429.9) (1,253.8)
Lot T o= U (558.6) (936.3)
Total deferred tax 1iabilities. i it iinnieteenneeeenennneeeeennaeeeennnns (10,775.0) (9,254.1)
Less — Valuation GllOWanCe. v e et v oo oeeeenaeosesnnaasseennnassseanneassons (729.1) (2,308.9)

Net deferred tax 1iabilifieS . vt eennee e tennneeeeeennneeeseenneoeeeenaeeseannns (11,504.1) (11,563.0)



Net deferred LaK. oo u oot eteeeeteeeeneeeeseenneeesoeeneeeesoenansoesennanssesnnns (9,953.4) (9,184.2)
Less - Deferred IT of acquired subsidiaries at the acquisition date.......... (3,705.0) (4,132.2)

Total effect of deferred income tax in stockholders' equity. (6,248.4) (5,052.0)
Less - Deferred IT recognized as of December 31, 1999..... (1,183.3) (1,183.3)
Less - Accumulated initial effect of deferred IT in equity.............ovinnnn. (5,309.6) (5,309.6)
Change in deferred IT for the period......ciuiueiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiennnnneeeennnns Ps 244.5 1,440.9

The components of consolidated deferred income tax for the period are as
follows:

2001 2002
Deferred income tax charged (credited) to the income statement. Ps (204.4) 402.0
Deferred income tax applied directly to stockholders' equity............covvunn 448.9 1,038.8
Ps 244.5 1,440.8

Bulletin D-4 states that all items whose effects are recorded directly in
stockholders' equity should be recognized net of their deferred income tax
effects. Bulletin D-4 does not allow the offsetting of deferred tax assets and
liabilities relating to different tax jurisdictions.
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Management considers that there is existing evidence that in the future, the
Company will generate sufficient taxable income to realize the tax benefits
associated with the deferred income tax assets, and the tax loss carryforwards,
prior to their expiration. In the event that present conditions change, and it
is determined that future operations would not generate enough taxable income,
or that tax strategies are no longer viable, the deferred tax assets' wvaluation
allowance would be increased against the income statement.

Additionally, for the years ended December 31, 2001 and 2002, temporary
differences between the net income of the period and taxable income for ESPS
generated a deferred ESPS expense of Psl3.5 and Psl8.9, respectively, reflected
in the income statement.

C) EFFECTIVE TAX RATE

The effects of inflation are not recognized for income tax purposes in some
countries in which the Company operates or are recognized differently from the
methodology used for financial reporting. These effects, as well as other
differences between the book and the income tax basis, arising from the several
income tax rates and laws to which the Company is subject in the countries in
which it has operations, give rise to permanent differences between the
approximated statutory tax rate and the effective tax rate presented in the
consolidated income statement, as follows:

December 31, 2000 2001 2002

Approximated consolidated statutory tax rate..........iuiiiiiiiiiiiinninnnn 35.0 35.0 34.0

Additional deductions and tax credits..... .. (1.9) (1.8) (6.6)
Expenses and other non deductible items................... .. 3.4 0.8 1.0
Non-taxable sale of marketable securities and fixed assets. .. 0.2 - (10.2)
Difference between book and tax inflation................. .. (15.0) (15.8) (5.6)
Minimum taxes... (0.1) 0.2 -
Depreciation. . 0.3 (0.6) -
Inventories...........ooouuiun.. .. 0.2 - -

IT effect on stockholders' equUity....c.oiiiiii it iinnnnaeeennnnan (5.0) (1.4) (5.3)



Others (5.3) 2.0

Effective consolidated tax rate........euiiiieiiniuninnnennenneennennnenns 12.7 11.1 9.3

Includes the effects generated by differences among income tax rates and
laws to which the Company is subject in the countries in which it has

operations.
18. FOREIGN CURRENCY POSITION
The exchange rate of the Mexican peso to the dollar as of December 31, 2000,

2001 and 2002 was Ps9.62,

of January 15,
30, 2003, the

As of December
denominated in
foreign origin

Ps9.17 and Psl10.38 per dollar, respectively. As
2003, the exchange rate was Psl0.51 per dollar and as of June
exchange rate was Psl0.46 per dollar.

31, 2002 and June 30, 2003 (unaudited), the principal balances
foreign currencies, as well as non-monetary assets in Mexico of
, are presented as follows:

Millions of U.S. dollars December 31, 2002 June 30, 2003 (Unaudited)
Mexico Foreign Total Mexico Foreign Total
Current assets............ 572.2 2,179.5 2,751.6 9 2,165.1 2,174.0
Non current assets........ 834.0 (1) 9,247.7 10,081.7 858.4 9,872.1 10,730.5
Total assets............ 1,406.2 11,427.2 12,833.3 867.3 12,037.2 12,904.5
Current liabilities....... 1,406.3 1,247.7 2,654.0 1,705.1 1,402.3 3,107.4
Long-term liabilities..... 2,264.8 3,349.9 5,614.8 1,796.8 2,755.2 4,522.0
Total liabilities....... 3,671.1 4,597.6 8,268.8 3,501.9 4,157.5 7,659.4
(1) Non-monetary assets in Mexico of foreign origin.
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Additionally,
foreign curren
2002 and 2003

transactions of the Company's Mexican operations denominated in
cies during 2000, 2001, 2002 and the six months ended June 30,
(unaudited), are summarized as follows:

Millions of U.S. dollars

Export sales........covuuunnn

Import purchases...
Financial income...

Financial expense...........

(Unaudited)
Six Months Ended

Years Ended December 31, June 30,
2000 2001 2002 2002 2003
........ 107.4 85.0 73.7 40.0 30.2
19.0 42.7 94.5 40.0 23.0
17.8 107.4 11.3 24.8 0.1
........ 195.5 308.7 281.6 59.9 182.5

19. GEOGRAPHIC
The Company is
the production
tables present
by the Company
Company by geo
and the six mo

SEGMENT DATA

engaged principally in the construction industry segment through
and marketing of cement and ready-mix concrete. The following

in accordance with the information analyzed for decision-making
's management, selected condensed financial information of the
graphic area for the years ended December 31, 2000, 2001 and 2002
nths ended June 30, 2002 and 2003 (unaudited):



Net Sales

(Unaudited)
Years Ended December 31, Six Months Ended June 30,

2000 2001 2002 2002 2003
Ps 28,702.8 27,426.1 26,333.5 12,785.2 14,286.2
9,127.9 8,067.4 10,433.4 4,922.1 5,941.6
8,272.2 20,559.3 18,561.8 9,127.8 8,411.0
4,991.1 4,752.1 3,219.8 1,396.5 1,436.0
2,233.7 2,211.1 2,056.7 1,077.7 1,041.6
4,998.4 4,530.9 5,315.6 2,334.0 3,058.4
1,505.6 1,382.0 1,383.6 770.6 722.6
1,834.2 1,430.5 1,589.3 787.9 578.3
3,918.3 8,545.4 8,033.9 4,049.5 4,634.9
65,584.2 78,904.8 76,927.6 37,251.3 40,110.6
Eliminations................. ..., (5,881.0) (8,098.6) (7,536.3) (3,238.4) (3,608.4)
Consolidated.....oevvuunnnennnnnn Ps 59,703.2 70,806.2 69,391.3 34,012.9 36,502.2

In order to present integrally the operations of each geographic area, net
sales between geographic areas are presented under the caption "eliminations".

Operating Income

(Unaudited)
Years Ended December 31, Six Months Ended June 30,
2000 2001 2002 2002 2003
MexiCOo. i Ps 12,304.2 10,961.5 10,056.4 5,048.6 5,537.5
2,574.5 1,964.8 2,433.4 1,176.9 1,369.9
1,247.2 3,272.7 2,860.8 1,466.8 460.9
1,385.9 1,584.0 1,042.3 440.6 722.8
902.4 937.8 857.8 426.9 410.7
800.0 686.4 1,000.0 500.9 514.8
131.9 132.0 (66.9) 66.4 (82.3)
680.2 352.7 205.1 117.5 85.0
(2,459.7) (2,982.9) (4,491.7) (1,808.5) (1,722.5)
Consolidated..........coovvuiunnn. Ps 17,566.6 16,909.0 13,897.2 7,436.1 7,296.8
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Depreciation and Amortization
(Unaudited)
Years Ended December 31, Six Months Ended June 30,
2000 2001 2002 2002 2003
LSS G o Ps 1,370.3 1,747.5 1,645.7 767.8 779.8
860.7 807.6 1,040.4 476.3 570.6
697.3 2,253.5 1,786.7 850.8 901.8
767.8 670.5 536.9 230.7 279.2
558.5 515.5 491.4 255.8 266.8
254.7 383.4 410.0 150.7 267.1
287.1 364.8 430.5 211.8 229.4
226.4 485.3 449.9 221.8 163.1
171.1 879.4 1,324.0 659.2 581.2
Consolidated...ooeeeriuinneennnnnns Ps 5,193.9 8,107.5 8,115.5 3,824.9 4,039.0

For purposes of the table above, goodwill amortization reported by holding
companies has been allocated to the business geographic segment that originated
such goodwill amounts. Therefore, this information is not directly comparable
with the information of the individual entities, which are comprised in each



segment. Additionally,

net

Total assets by geographic segment are summarized as follows:

United States.
Venezuela. .

Philippines
Other Asian
Egypt....
Others (1)

Eliminations

Consolidated

Includes,
assets,

2003 (unaudited),

CEMEX,

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31,

in addition to trade maritime
related party balances of the Parent Company of Ps74,781.4,
Ps34,645.0 and Ps38,385.7 as of December 2001,
respectively,

Total Assets

in the Company's consolidated income statement,
amortization is recognized as part of other expenses,

goodwill

Years Ended December 31,

(Unaudited)

Six Months Ended June 30,

2001 2002 2002 2003
64,559.1 58,252.5 61,235.9 57,066.9
19,928.2 22,259.0 21,458.6 25,239.1
49,208.9 45,685.3 46,071.1 42,792.9
11,900.4 8,028.0 7,597.1 8,004.7
8,650.0 6,150.8 7,780.2 5,231.8
7,527.9 10,898.0 7,095.6 11,111.
8,130.5 8,651.4 8,079.7 8,473.2
3,350.5 3,735.7 3,933.1 3,911.5
8,545.7 5,838.4 7,217.7 3,958.4
107,214.0 73,223.5 132,124.1 76,503.0
289,015.6 242,722.6 302,593.1 242,292.5
(123,026.4) (73,733.5) (134,423.8) (67,601.0)
165,989.2 168,989.1 168,169.3 174,691.5

S.A. DE C.V. AND SUBSIDIARIES

2000, 2001, 2002 and June 30

operating assets and other

2002 and as of June 30
which are eliminated in consolidation.

(Continued)
, 2003
(Millions of constant Mexican Pesos as of June 30,

2003)

Total investment in fixed assets by geographic segment are summarized as

follows:

Caribbean and Central America.

Philippines
Other Asian

(2)

inflation. As a result,

in "Properties,

machinery and equipment,

Investment in Fixed Assets (2)
(Unaudited)
Years Ended December 31, Six Months Ended June 30,
2001 2002 2002 2003
905.6 993.6 279.4 420.8
563.4 639.2 222.8 274.1
1,865.0 1,045.0 566.6 593.3
292.0 141.2 52.0 46.2
58.7 53.9 18.6 0.8
378.8 298.6 109.5 185.7
245.8 126.2 48.7 1.6
120.3 110.4 90.5 4.5
381.4 282.1 123.1 103.3
241.3 632.0 310.2 141.5
5,052.3 4,322.2 1,821.4 1,771.8

Corresponds to fixed assets investments not considering the effects of

this balance differs from the amount presented as
investing activities in the Statement of Changes in the Financial Position

net",

inflation effects in accordance with Bulletin B-10.

As of December 31, 2001 and

to Ps54,944.7 and Ps61,162.8,
in 2002 is in the Parent Company,

2002,
respectively,
26% and 24%

which considers the

of the consolidated financial debt amounting
approximately 55% in 2001 and 57%
in the United States,

11% and 12%



in Spain and 8% and 7% in other countries, respectively. As of June 30, 2003
(unaudited), of the consolidated financial debt amounting to Ps60,914.5,
approximately 55%, 25% and 15% was held in the Parent Company, Spain and the
United States respectively.

20. EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing majority interest net
income for the year by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding
during the year. Diluted earnings per share reflects on the weighted average
number of common shares outstanding, the effects of any transactions carried
out by the Company which have a potentially dilutive effect on such number of
shares.

The weighted-average number of shares utilized in the calculation is as
follows:

Majority Basic Diluted

Basic number of Diluted number interest net earnings earnings
shares of shares income per share per share

June 30, 2002 (unaudited) (1)......... 4,406,332,652 4,426,937,410 Ps 8,502.1 Ps 1.93 Ps 1.92
June 30, 2003 (unaudited) (1)......... 4,582,293,551 4,720,868,959 6,034.6 1.32 1.28
December 31, 2000.........00iuuinennnns 4,123,703,259 4,143,760,773 10,614.5 2.57 2.56
December 31, 2001........ccciuiinnnnnns 4,264,724,371 4,299,689,171 12,045.6 2.82 2.80
December 31, 2002.......0utiniinnnnnnn 4,487,527,392 4,496,213,613 5,517.6 1.23 1.23
(1) In accordance with Mexican GAAP, earnings per share as of June 30, 2002

and 2003 (unaudited) was calculated based on net income for the prior
twelve month periods.

The difference between the basic and diluted average number of shares in 2000,
2001, 2002 and the six months ended June 30, 2002 (unaudited), is attributable
to the additional shares to be issued under the Company's executive stock
option fixed program (see note 15). In addition, beginning in 2003, the Company
includes the dilutive effect on the basic number of shares resulting from the
equity forward contracts in the Company's own stock, determined under the
inverse treasury method.
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21. CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS
A) GUARANTEES

As of December 31, 2002 and June 30, 2003 (unaudited), CEMEX, S.A. de C.V. has
signed as guarantor of loans made to certain subsidiaries for approximately
U.S.$55.2 million (Ps577.4) and U.S.$23.0 million (Ps240.6), respectively. As
of the same dates, the Company and certain subsidiaries have guaranteed the
risks associated with certain financial transactions, assuming contingent
obligations under standby letters of credit, issued by financial institutions
for a total of U.S.$175.0 million (Ps1,830.5) and U.S.$155.0 million
(Psl1l,621.3), respectively.

B) TAX ASSESSMENTS

As of December 31, 2002 and June 30, 2003 (unaudited), CEMEX and some of its
subsidiaries in Mexico have been notified of several tax assessments determined
by the Tax Authorities related to different tax periods, for approximately
Ps5,343.3 and Ps4,756.5, respectively. The tax assessments result primarily
from: (i) recalculation of the inflationary tax deduction, since the tax
authorities claim that "Advance Payments to Suppliers" and "Guaranty Deposits"
are not by their nature credits; (ii) disallowed restatement of tax loss
carryforwards in the same period in which they occurred; (iii) disallowed
determination of tax loss carryforwards and; (iv) disallowed reduction of BAT
by the controlling entity for considering it should be in proportion to the



equity interest it has over the controlled entities. The companies involved are
using all available defense actions granted by law in order to cancel the tax
claims.

On May 27, 2003, the Bureau of Internal Revenue (BIR) of the Philippines,
assessed APO Cement Corp. for deficiency income tax. The assessment covers the
taxable years 1998 through 2001 with deficiency tax amounting to Philippine
Pesos 741.1 million (approximately U.S.$13.8 million). The assessment disallows
APO Cement Corp's income tax holiday related income. We have contested BIR's
findings. Our next recourse is to question the assessment with the Court of Tax
Appeal. We believe that these claims will not have a material adverse effect on
us.

C) ANTI-DUMPING DUTIES

In 1990, the United States Department of Commerce ("DOC") imposed an
anti-dumping duty order on imports of gray Portland cement and clinker from
Mexico. As a result, certain of the Company's subsidiaries, as importers of
record, have been subject to payment of anti-dumping duty deposits estimated on
imports of gray Portland cement and clinker from Mexico since April 1990. The
order is likely to continue for an indefinite period, until the United States
government determines, taking into consideration the World Trade Organization
new rules, that conditions for imposing the order no longer exist; the
cancellation or suspension of the order would follow. In the last quarter of
2000, the United States government continued the order, a resolution that will
prevail until it makes a new review. During December 2001, the United States
government (International Trade Commission) denied the Company's request to
initiate a new review. As of December 31, 2002, the Company has accrued a
liability of U.S.$112 million, including accrued interest, for the difference
between the amount of anti-dumping duties paid on imports and the latest
findings by the DOC in its administrative reviews for all periods under review.

As of December 31, 2002, the Company was in the twelfth administrative review
period by the DOC and expects a preliminary resolution in the second half of
2003. As of June 30, 2003, the Company is in the thirteenth administrative
review period by the DOC and a preliminary resolution in not expected until the
second half of 2004. The United States government published, during September
2002, the preliminary determination with respect to the eleventh administrative
review period, and the final resolution was issued on January 8, 2003. With
respect to the first four review periods, the DOC has issued a final resolution
of the anti-dumping duties. Referring to the remaining review periods, the
final resolutions are suspended until all the procedures before the North
America Free Trade Agreement Panel are concluded. As a result, the final
amounts may be different from those recorded in the accompanying consolidated
financial statements. The Company and its subsidiaries have defended their
position in this matter and will continue to do so through available means in
order to determine the actual dumping margins within each period of the
administration reviews carried out by the DOC.
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During 2001, five Taiwanese cement producers filed before the Tariff Commission
under the Ministry of Finance ("MOF") of Taiwan an anti-dumping case involving
imported gray Portland cement and clinker from the Philippines and Korea. In
July 2001, the MOF informed the petitioners and the producers that a formal
investigation had been initiated. Among the producers are the Company's
subsidiaries, APO Cement Corporation, Rizal Cement Co. Inc. ("Rizal") and Solid
Cement Corporation ("Solid"), which received their anti-dumping questionnaires
from the International Trade Commission under the Ministry of Economic Affairs
("ITC-MOEA"™) and the MOF in August 2001. Rizal and Solid replied to the
ITC-MOEA by confirming that they have not been exporting cement or clinker
during the review period. Furthermore, APO contested the allegation of "injury"
in the anti-dumping proceedings before the ITC-MOEA. On December 23, 2002,
Rizal was merged into its subsidiary Solid.

In a communication dated October 2001, the ITC-MOEA informed the petitioners



and the producers about the results of the preliminary investigation, and it
was determined that there are reasonable indicators that the Taiwanese industry
has incurred material damage due to imports of cement and clinker from South
Korea and the Philippines that allegedly is sold in Taiwan at a price below
market price. In order to comply with regulations of anti-dumping duties in
Taiwan, the ITC-MOEA transferred this investigation to the MOF. In November
2001, APO received supplemental questionnaires by the MOF. The answer to these
questionnaires was presented by APO during November and December 2001. In
January 2002, the MOF gave notice the petitioners and the producers, on a
preliminary resolution, of findings that there might be dumping and that the
investigation would continue, but without imposing any anti-dumping duty. In
June 2002, the ITC-MOEA informed in its final resolution that the imports from
South Korea and the Philippines had caused material damage to the Taiwanese
industry. In July 2002, the MOF informed of a cement and clinker import duty of
42%, on imports from South Korea and the Philippines, beginning on July 19,
2002. In September 2002, these entities appealed the anti-dumping duty before
the Taipei High Administrative Council (THAC).

D) LEASES

The Company has entered into various non-cancelable operating leases, primarily
for the lease of operating facilities, cement storage and distribution
facilities and certain transportation and other equipment, in which it is
required to make annual rental payments plus the payment of certain operating
expenses. Future minimum rental payments due under such leases are summarized
as follows:

Year Ending December 31, million

200 3 e e e e e e e e e e e e e 60.0
200 . e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e 56.1
200 0 49.8
2O O 40.1
7200 O 37.5
2008 and thereafter. . ...ttt i i it i it 125.9
369.4

Rental expense for the years ended December 31, 2000, 2001, and 2002 was
approximately U.S.$52 million, U.S.$67 million and U.S.$57 million,
respectively.

E) PLEDGE ASSETS

As of December 31, 2002, there are liabilities amounting to U.S.$80.8 million
secured by properties, machinery and equipment.

F) COMMITMENTS

As of December 31, 2002, subsidiaries of the Company have future commitments
for the purchase of raw materials for an approximate amount of U.S.$86.4
million.
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During 1999, the Company entered into agreements with an international
partnership, which contracted to build and operate an electrical energy
generating plant. These agreements establish that when the plant begins
operations, CEMEX will purchase, starting in 2003, all the energy generated by
the plant for a term of no less than 20 years. As part of these agreements,
CEMEX has committed to supply the electrical energy plant with all fuel
necessary for its operations, a commitment that has been hedged through a
20-year agreement entered into by the Company with Petroleos Mexicanos. By
means of this transaction, CEMEX expects to have significant decreases in its
electrical energy costs, and the supply is expected to be sufficient to cover



approximately 60% of the electrical energy needs of 12 cement plants in Mexico.
The Company is not required to make any capital investment in the project.

On December 14, 2001, the put option held by the Indonesian government to
require the Company to purchase its 51% interest in Gresik for approximately
U.S.$418 million, plus accrued interest from October 1998 at 8.2% per annum,
expired without being exercised.

In March 2002, the distribution contract in Taiwan that the Company had with
Universal Company since March 31, 2000, was terminated. As a result, for the
year ended December 31, 2002, CEMEX recognized an approximate loss of U.S$17.3
million (Psl183.5) within the caption other expenses, net.

G) OTHER CONTINGENCIES

At December 31, 2002, CEMEX, Inc. has accrued liabilities specifically relating
to environmental matters in the amount of U.S.$23.9 million. The environmental
matters relate to a) in the past, in accordance with industry practice,
disposing of various materials, which might be categorized as hazardous
substances or wastes, and b) the cleanup of sites used or operated by the
Company, including discontinued operations, in regard to the disposal of
hazardous substances or wastes, either individually or jointly with other
parties. Most of the proceedings are in the preliminary stage, and a final
resolution might take several years. For purposes of recording the provision,
the subsidiary considers that it is probable that a liability has been incurred
and the amount is reasonably estimable, whether or not claims have been
asserted, and without giving effect to any possible future recoveries. Based on
information developed to date, the subsidiary does not believe it will be
required to spend significant sums on these matters in excess of the amounts
recorded. Until all environmental studies, investigations, remediation work,
and negotiations with or litigation against potential sources of recovery have
been completed, however, the ultimate cost that might be incurred to resolve
these environmental issues cannot be assured.

In December 2002, an ex-maritime broker for Puerto Rican Cement Company, Inc.
("PRCC"), the main subsidiary of CEMEX in Puerto Rico, filed a lawsuit in
Puerto Rico against CEMEX, PRCC and other individuals not affiliated with
CEMEX, including Puerto Rican authorities. The plaintiff contends that the
defendants conspired to break antitrust laws so that one of the defendants, who
is not a CEMEX related party, could have control of the maritime broker market
in Port of Ponce, Puerto Rico. The plaintiff has asked for relief in the amount
of approximately U.S.$18 million. The CEMEX companies involved are in the
process of determining the appropriate legal strategy for a response.
Typically, proceedings of this nature take several years before a final
resolution is reached.

In May 2001, a subsidiary in Colombia received a civil liability suit from 42
transporters, alleging that this subsidiary is responsible for alleged damages
caused by the breach of provision of raw materials contracts. The plaintiffs
have asked for relief in the amount of U.S.$45.8 million. The Company filed a
timely defense response. This proceeding is in a preliminary stage. Typically,
proceedings of this nature take several years before a final resolution is
reached.

In May 1999, several companies filed a lawsuit against two subsidiaries of the
Company based in Colombia, alleging that the Ibague plants were causing
capacity production damage to their lands due to the pollution they generate.
The plaintiffs demand relief in the amount of U.S.$8.8 million. This proceeding
is in the evidentiary stage. Typically, proceedings of this nature take several
years before a final resolution is reached.
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22. NEW ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

In December 2001, the Mexican Institute of Public Accountants issued the new



Bulletin C-9, "Liabilities, Accruals, Contingent Assets and Liabilities and
Commitments". This Bulletin is effective January 1, 2003 and supersedes former
Bulletin C-9, "Liabilities" and Bulletin C-12, "Contingencies and Commitments".
New Bulletin C-9 establishes additional guidance clarifying the accounting for
liabilities, accruals and contingent assets and liabilities, and establishes
new standards for the use of present value techniques to measure liabilities,
and the accounting for the early settlement of liabilities and convertible
debt. Additionally, new Bulletin C-9 establishes new rules for disclosing
commitments arising from current business operations. As a result of the
adoption of Bulletin C-9 as of June 30, 2003 (unaudited), the Company
identified an asset retirement obligation in its subsidiary in the United
States, recording a liability of approximately U.S.$34.9 million (Ps365.1)
against an asset of approximately U.S.$23.4 million (Ps244.6) and a cumulative
effect from the change in accounting principle in equity of approximately
U.S.$11.5 million (Psl120.3), representing the accumulated depreciation of the
asset as of the adoption date.

In January 2002, the Mexican Institute of Public Accountants issued the new
Bulletin C-8, "Intangible Assets", which is effective January 1, 2003 and
supersedes former Bulletin C-8, "Intangibles". New Bulletin C-8 establishes
that development costs should be capitalized as intangible assets if the
criteria for intangible asset recognition are met. The main elements for
capitalization are that costs incurred should be properly identified, there are
expected future benefits, and that the company has control over such benefits.
Expenditures not meeting the new criteria and incurred after the effective date
of new Bulletin C-8 should be expensed as incurred. Pre-operating expenses
previously recognized under former Bulletin C-8 will continue to be amortized,
subject to periodic impairment evaluations. Development costs incurred in a
pre-operating stage may be capitalized after meeting the new criteria under new
Bulletin C-8. In addition, this Bulletin also requires that intangible assets
acquired in a business combination be accounted for at fair value at the date
of the purchase and be separately reported, unless their cost cannot be
reasonably determined, in which case they should be reported as goodwill. Also,
if there is no active market for these assets, they should be reduced to the
amount of goodwill (excess of cost over book value) or to zero. These assets
are also subject to periodic impairment evaluations. Amortization of goodwill
should be reported in operating expenses. Resulting from the adoption of
Bulletin C-8 in 2003 (unaudited), there was no material impact on the Company's
financial information.

In May 2003, the Mexican Institute of Public Accountants issued the new
Bulletin C-12, "Financial Instruments with Characteristics of Liabilities,
Equity or Both", which is effective January 1, 2004. Bulletin C-12 requires an
issuer to classify financial instruments as liabilities when there is an
ineludible obligation of transfer assets (cash, goods or services) at a
specified future date to redeem such obligations. Resulting from the adoption
of Bulletin C-12 commencing in 2004, the Company will likely have to classify
its preferred stock and capital securities instruments (see note 14E) as
separate components within liabilities. Bulletin C-12 does not change the
current accounting for equity forward contracts in the Company's own shares.

23. DIFFERENCES BETWEEN MEXICAN AND UNITED STATES ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES

The Company's consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in Mexico (Mexican GAAP), which differ
in certain significant respects from those applicable in the United States
(U.S. GAAP).

The Mexican GAAP consolidated financial statements include the effects of
inflation as provided for under Bulletin B-10 and Bulletin B-15, whereas
financial statements prepared under U.S. GAAP are presented on a historical
cost basis. The reconciliation to U.S. GAAP includes (i) a reconciling item for
the reversal of the effect of applying Bulletin B-15 for the restatement to
constant pesos for the years ended December 31, 2000, 2001, 2002 and the six
months ended June 30, 2002, and (ii) a reconciling item to reflect the
difference in the carrying value of machinery and equipment of foreign origin
and related depreciation between the methodology set forth by the fifth
amendment to Bulletin B-10 (modified) and the amounts that would be determined
by using the historical cost/constant currency method. As described below,
these provisions of inflation accounting under Mexican GAAP do not meet the
requirements of Rule 3-20 of Regulation S-X of the Securities and Exchange
Commission. The reconciliation does not include the reversal of other Mexican
GAAP inflation accounting adjustments as these adjustments represent a
comprehensive measure of the effects of price level changes in the inflationary
Mexican economy and, as such, is considered a more meaningful presentation than



historical cost-based financial reporting for both Mexican and U.S. accounting
purposes.
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The other principal differences between Mexican GAAP and U.S. GAAP, and their
effect on consolidated net income and earnings per share, are presented below:

(Unaudited)
Six Months Ended
Year Ended December 31, June 30,
2000 2001 2002 2002 2003
Net income as reported under Mexican GAAP........... Ps 10,614.5 12,045.6 5,517.6 3,586.7 4,103.6
NCPI inflation adjustment (II).........oviuivinnnnnnnn 120.1 (511.5) (55.6) (10.2) -
Net income after NCPI adjustments................... 10,734.6 11,534.1 5,462.0 3,576.5 4,103.6
Approximate U.S. GAAP adjustments:
1 Amortization of goodwill (see 23a). (70.5) (534.9) 1,684.0 702.3 752.6
2. Deferred income taxes (see 23b)... (100.8) (278.3) 2,255.9 51.8 (234.7)
3. Deferred ESPS (see 23b)....... (77.1) (185.8) (189.3) (66.1) 19.8
4 Other employee benefits (see 23c). (45.7) (9.4) (30.9) (24.9) (24.9)
5. Capitalized interest (see 23d) .....eiiueiuennennnnnn (81.7) 14.7 (38.9) (15.8) 9.5
6. Minority interest (see 23e):
a) Financing transactions............eeiiiiiinineonnn 73.3 295.6 (162.6) (121.6) (12.1)
b) Effect of U.S. GAAP adjustments.................. 196.7 131.8 32.7 (157.7) (45.1)
7. Hedge accounting (see 231).......cuiiiiiiniinannnnnns (1,569.3) 616.7 (2,488.1) (1,357.4) 255.2
8. Depreciation (see 23f) ... ..., (56.9) (17.6) 12.7 8.9 29.3
9. Accruals for contingencies (see 23q). (124.0) (9.3) 7.4 85.7 (15.3)
10. Equity in affiliated companies' net income (see 23h) (63.0) 0.6 11.6 5.1 0.4
11. 1Inflation adjustment of fixed assets (see 23(i)).... (453.3) (468.7) (367.2) (189.8) (136.9)
12. Temporary equity from forward contracts (see 23j). (494.3) (449.5) (523.9) (169.5) (68.9)
13. Derivative financial instruments (see 231) - 31.5 - (54.4) -
14. Other U.S. GAAP adjustments (see 23K)............... 194.4 (399.8) (481.3) (246.8) (192.8)
15. Monetary effect of U.S. GAAP adjustments............ 1,211.5 482.0 528.2 311.9 156.0
Total approximate U.S. GAAP adjustments before the
cumulative effect of accounting change........... (1,460.7) (780.4) 250.3 (1,238.3) 492.1
Approximate net income under U.S. GAAP before the
cumulative effect of accounting change........... 9,273.9 10,753.7 5,712.3 2,338.2 4,595.7
Cumulative effect of accounting change (see 23k and
2 1 P - = = = (647.5)
Approximate net income under U.S. GAAP after the
cumulative effect of accounting change........... Ps 9,273.9 10,753.7 5,712.3 2,338.2 3,948.2
(Unaudited)
Six Months Ended
Year Ended December 31, June 30,
2000 2001 2002 2002 2003
Basic U.S. GAAP earnings per share before the
cumulative effect of accounting change........... Ps 2.26 2.53 1.27 0.54 1.00
Diluted U.S. GAAP earnings per share before the
cumulative effect of accounting change........... Ps 2.21 2.47 1.27 0.54 0.97
Basic U.S. GAAP earnings per share after the
cumulative effect of accounting change........... Ps 2.26 2.53 1.27 0.54 0.86
Diluted U.S. GRAP earnings per share after the
cumulative effect of accounting change........... Ps 2.21 2.47 1.27 0.54 0.84

CEMEX, S.A. DE C.V. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (Continued)
December 31, 2000, 2001, 2002 and June 30, 2003
(Millions of constant Mexican Pesos as of June 30, 2003)



The other principal differences between Mexican GAAP and U.S. GAAP, and their
effect on consolidated stockholders' equity, with an explanation of the
adjustments, are presented below:

(Unaudited)
December 31, June 30,
2001 2002 2003
Total stockholders' equity reported under Mexican GAAP. 83,372.3 73,717.9 74,975.3
NCPI inflation adjustment (II).....euiuiiniiniineinennennennennns (3,539.6) (743.0) -
Total stockholders' equity after NCPI adjustment................. 79,832.7 72,974.9 74,975.3
Approximate U.S. GRAP adjustments:
1. Goodwill net (see 23a)......... (4,965.6) (1,887.2) (1,087.2)
2. Deferred income taxes (see 23b) (4,286.7) (865.3) (1.6)
3. Deferred employees' statutory profit sharing (3,218.8) (3,227.1) (3,171.0)
4. Other employee benefits (see 23C) ...uiuiiiiiiniiiiiiininennnenns (306.3) (319.7) (341.0)
5. Capitalized interest (see 23d) (414.3) (467.9) (453.0)
6. Minority interest--effect of financing transactions (see 23e).... (942.7) (951.0) (704.4)
7. Minority interest--U.S. GAAP presentation (see 23€).............. (19,586.5) (12,770.7) (12,136.1)
8. Depreciation (see 23f) ... .uiiiiiiiiiiiiniiinennn, (19.0) (202.6) (189.2)
9. Accruals for contingencies (see 23g) 85.6 117.7 112.9
10. 1Investment in net assets of affiliated companies (see 23h) (76.3) (212.5) (219.9)
11. Inflation adjustment for machinery and equipment (see 23i)....... 9,445.7 6,187.8 4,125.2
12. Temporary equity from forward contracts (see 233).......ccvuvuun.. (5,932.7) (5,724.0) (5,764.2)
13. Derivative financial instruments (see 231) 31.7 - -
14. Other U.S. GAAP adjustments (see 23k) 48.9 (367.4) (50.2)
Approximate U.S. GAAP adjustments before the cumulative effect
of accounting Change. .. vttt ittt ittt iii i ineenennnn (30,137.0) (20,689.9) (19,880.0)
Approximate stockholders' equity under U.S. GRAP before the
cumulative effect of accounting change...............ociiiinnn. 49,695.7 52,285.0 55,095.7
Cumulative effect of accounting change (see 23v) - - (527.5)
Total approximate stockholders' equity under U.S. GAAP after the
cumulative effect of accounting change ............cciiuieiiinn. Ps 49,695.7 52,285.0 54,568.2
(IT) Relates to the adjustment that removes the restatement to constant pesos

of prior periods as of June 30, 2003, using the CEMEX weighted average
inflation factor (see note 2B), and recognizes such restatement using
the Mexican-only inflation factor, according to requirements of
Regulation S-X. For purposes of the financial information presented
throughout note 23, the Mexican and U.S. GAAP prior periods amounts were
restated using the Mexican-only inflation factor, with the exception of
those Mexican GAAP amounts of prior periods that are also disclosed in
notes 1 to 22. Such amounts were not restated using the Mexican
inflation index, pursuing more straightforward cross-references between
note 23 and the other Mexican GAAP notes.

Net income and stockholders' equity reconciliations to U.S. GAAP for the six
months ended June 30, 2002 and 2003 were not audited. These reconciliations
were prepared on a basis that is substantially consistent with the accounting
principles applied in our Annual Report on Form 20-F for the year ended
December 31, 2002, except for the adoption of SFAS 143 Accounting for Asset
Retirement Obligations ("SFAS 143") and SFAS 150 Accounting for Certain
Financial Instruments with Characteristics of both Liabilities and Equity
("SFAS 150"), as of and for the six months ended June 30, 2003, see notes 23 (k)
and 23(v). The term "SFAS" as used herein refers to Statements of Financial
Accounting Standards.

(a) Goodwill

The Company's goodwill recognized under Mexican GAAP has been adjusted for U.S.
GAAP purposes for (i) the effect of the U.S. GAAP adjustments as of the dates
of acquisition on the goodwill of the subsidiaries acquired; (ii) until
December 31, 2001, for the difference between sinking fund amortization of
goodwill over 20 to 40 years for Mexican GAAP purposes (see note 2(I)) and the
straight-line method over 40 years for U.S. GAAP purposes; beginning January 1,
2002, SFAS 142 "Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets", eliminates the
amortization of goodwill under U.S. GAAP, see note 23(s), and (iii) the
conversion of goodwill applicable to foreign subsidiaries in accordance with
SFAS 52 "Foreign Currency Translation", utilizing inflation of each country to
restate the goodwill for inflation purposes.
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In addition, for purposes of the condensed financial information under U.S.
GAAP for the years ended December 31, 2000 and 2001 presented in note 23 (o),
amortization of goodwill is reflected as an operating expense for U.S. GAAP
versus other expense, net for Mexican GAAP.

For purposes of reconciliation to U.S. GAAP, the Company adopted in 2002, SFAS
142 and SFAS 144, "Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived
Assets", see note 23(s). Pursuant to this adoption, effective January 1, 2002,
amortization ceased for goodwill under U.S. GAAP; therefore, beginning in 2002,
goodwill amortization recorded under Mexican GAAP is removed for purposes of
the reconciliation of net income and stockholders' equity to U.S. GAAP.

The Company assesses goodwill for impairment annually unless events occur that
require more frequent reviews. Discounted cash flow analyses are used to assess
goodwill impairment (see note 23(s)). If an assessment indicates impairment,
the impaired asset is written down to its fair market value based on the best
information available. Estimated fair market value is generally measured with
discounted estimated future cash flows. Considerable management judgment is
necessary to estimate discounted future cash flows. Assumptions used for these
cash flows are consistent with internal forecasts.

(b) Deferred Income Taxes and Employees' Statutory Profit Sharing

For U.S. GAAP purposes, the Company accounts for income taxes utilizing SFAS
109 "Accounting for Income Taxes", which requires the asset and liability
method of accounting for income taxes. Under the asset and liability method,
deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax
consequences of "temporary differences", which result from applying the enacted
statutory tax rates applicable in future years to differences between the
financial statement carrying amounts and the tax basis of existing assets and
liabilities and operating loss carryforwards. The deferred income tax charged
or credited to operations is determined by the difference between the beginning
and the year-end balance of the deferred tax assets or liabilities, and is
recognized in nominal pesos. The effect on deferred taxes of a change in tax
rates is recognized in income in the period that includes the enactment date.

The tax effects of temporary differences that give rise to significant portions
of the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities under U.S. GAAP at
December 31, 2001 and 2002 are presented below:

December 31,
2001 2002
Deferred tax assets:

Net operating loss and assets tax carryforwards...........eeiiiiniiiinintnnnnennennnns Ps 4,665.6 7,032.3
Trade accounts receivable..............oiiiiniinniann, 58.9 111.2
Investment in affiliated companies... - 295.0
Accounts payable and accrued expenses.. 610.1 4,349.8
L 3T PP 725.5 610.0
Total gross deferred tax @SSeLS. ...ttt ittt ittt ettt et 6,060.1 12,398.3
Less vValuation @lloWanCe. v v v v v e e et e ettt e e e e e et eeeeee et aaaeee e 1,101.1 1,043.7

Total deferred tax assets UNder U.S. GAAP. . ...ttt eneeeeeeennneeeeeennaeeeeeennnns 4,959.0 11,354.6

Deferred tax liabilities:

Property, plant and equipment 18,708.4 21,279.2
Inventories........ouveiuninnnann.. 1,368.6 1,240.1
L0 T o 892.6 880.1

Total deferred tax 1liability uUnder U.S. GRAP. . ... uttuetnitenetneeneeneeneeneennenannns 20,969.6 23,399.4
Net deferred tax liability under U.S. GAAP. . ...ttt it eeeennnneeeeennnaeenennnns 16,010.6 12,044.8
Deferred tax recognized under Mexican GAAP affecting equity (see note 17B)............. 6,185.4 5,001.2
Excess of liability under U.S. GRAP over that recognized under Mexican GAAP............ 9,825.2 7,043.6
Less--U.S. GAAP deferred income taxes of acquired subsidiaries at date of acquisition.. 5,711.8 6,178.3
Inflation adjustment (NOLE 2B) . ..iuiuinitetiteen et eneneneneneenenenenenenenenennnns 173.3 -

Net adjustment to stockholders' equity under U.S. GRAP........iuieinitintrneeneennennenns Ps 4,286.7 865.3
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For the six months ended June 30, 2002 and 2003 (unaudited), deferred IT
amounts represents income of Ps51.8 and expense of Ps234.7, respectively, with
a net effect on stockholders' equity under U.S. GAAP of Ps(l.6) at June 30,
2003.

Management considers that there is existing evidence that, in the future, the
Company will generate sufficient taxable income to realize the tax benefits
associated with the deferred tax assets, and the tax loss carryforwards, prior
to their expiration. In the event that present conditions change, and it is
determined that future operations would not generate enough taxable income, or
that tax strategies are no longer viable, the deferred tax assets' valuation
allowance would be increased by a charge to income.

The Company records a valuation allowance for the estimated amount, of the
recoverable tax on assets, which may not be realized due to the expiration of
tax loss carryforwards. Through its continual evaluation of the effects of tax
strategies, among other economic factors, during 2001 the Company increased the
valuation allowance by approximately Ps470.9.

As mentioned in notes 2K and 17B, beginning in 2000, Bulletin D-4 requires the
determination of deferred income tax through the asset and liability method, in
a manner similar to U.S. GAAP. Nonetheless, there are certain specific
differences in the application of Bulletin D-4 as compared to the calculation
under SFAS 109 that give rise to differences in the reconciliation to U.S.
GAAP. These differences arise from (i) the recognition of the accumulated
initial balance as of January 1, 2000, which is recorded directly to
stockholders' equity and, therefore, does not consider the provisions of APB
Opinion 16 for the deferred tax consequences in business combinations made
before January 1, 2000; (ii) the effects of deferred tax on the reconciling
items between Mexican and U.S. GAAP, and (iii) for the years ended December 31,
2000 and 2001, some adjustments to Mexican GAAP recorded in the foreign
subsidiaries for consolidation purposes were treated as permanent differences.
For Mexican GAAP presentation purposes, deferred tax assets and liabilities are
long-term items.

As of December 31, 2001 and 2002, net deferred tax liabilities under Bulletin
D-4 of Ps6,248.4 and Ps5,052.0, respectively, affecting the Company's Mexican
GAAP stockholders' equity after considering the deferred income tax effects of
subsidiaries acquired recognized in Goodwill, were reversed for purposes of the
U.S. GAAP reconciliation of stockholders' equity. In the reconciliation of net
income for the years ended December 31, 2000, 2001 and 2002, deferred tax
expenses of Ps614.3, Ps204.4 and income of Ps402.0, respectively, arising from
Bulletin D-4 were reversed.

The Company also recorded a deferred tax liability for U.S. GAAP purposes,
related to employees' statutory profit sharing ("ESPS") in Mexico, under the
asset and liability method at the statutory rate of 10%. The principal effects
of temporary differences that give rise to significant portions of the deferred
ESPS liabilities at December 31, 2001 and 2002 are presented below:

December 31,

2001 2002
Deferred assets:
Employee benefits. .ttt it e e e e e Ps 40.3 48.1
Trade accounts receivable....... ... 14.1 14.6
L o8 o 41.3 54.1

Gross deferred assets under U.S. GAAP. ... .ttt tiitnneennennns 95.7 116.8



Deferred liabilities:

Property, plant and equipment....... ...t iinnnnnnnns 2,994.2 2,929.7
D oD o i 122.9 144.3
L o8 o 197.4 269.9
Gross deferred liabilities under U.S. GAAP . ... i ittt eeeennenennn 3,314.5 3,343.9
Net deferred liabilities under U.S. GAAP . ... ittt tteeeennenennnnn Ps 3,218.8 3,227.1

For the six months ended June 30, 2002 and 2003 (unaudited), deferred
employees' statutory profit sharing represents expense of Psé66.1 and income of
Ps19.8, respectively, with a net effect on stockholders' equity under U.S. GAAP
of Ps(3,171.0) at June 30, 2003 (unaudited). For purposes of the condensed
financial information presented under U.S. GAAP in note 23 (o), ESPS expense,
both current and deferred, is included in the determination of operating
income. For Mexican GAAP presentation, ESPS expense, both current and deferred,
is considered as a separate line item equivalent to income tax.
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Bulletin D-4, for Mexican GAAP purposes, requires recognition of deferred ESPS
for those temporary differences arising from the reconciliation of net income
of the period and the taxable income for ESPS. In the reconciliation of net
income to U.S. GAAP, a deferred ESPS expense of Ps50.6 in 2000 and Psl13.5 in
2001 and income of Psl18.9 in 2002, determined under Mexican GAAP, was reversed.

(c) Other Employee Benefits
Vacations

Under Mexican GAAP, vacation expense 1is recognized when taken rather than
during the period the employees earn it. In order to comply with SFAS 43, for
the years ended December 31, 2000, 2001, 2002 and the six months ended June 30,
2002 and 2003 (unaudited), the vacation expense recorded for U.S. GAAP purposes
was Ps9.0, Psl.7, Ps5.5 and Ps4.5 and Ps4.5, respectively, with an accrual of
Ps54.8 and Ps57.1 at December 31, 2001 and 2002, respectively, and Ps6l.0 at
June 30, 2003 (unaudited).

Severance

Under Mexican GAAP (Bulletin D-3), severance payments should be recognized in
earnings in the period in which they are paid, unless such payments are used by
an entity as a substitution of pension benefits, in which case, should be
considered as a pension plan. Under U.S. GAAP, post-employment benefits for
former or inactive employees, excluding retirement benefits, are accounted for
under the provisions of SFAS 112, which requires recognition of certain
benefits, including severance, over an employee's service life. For the years
ended December 31, 2000, 2001, 2002 and the six months ended June 30, 2002 and
2003 (unaudited), the severance provisions recorded for U.S. GAAP purposes were
expenses of Ps42.0, Ps7.7, Ps25.4 and Ps20.4 and Ps20.4, respectively, with an
accrual of Ps251.5 and Ps262.6 at December 31, 2001 and 2002, respectively, and
Ps280.0 at June 30, 2003 (unaudited). Severance payments relating to any
specific event or restructuring are excluded from the SFAS 112 calculation.

Pension and other benefits

The Company accounts for employee pension benefits under Bulletin D-3, based on
the net present value of the obligations determined by independent actuaries
(see notes 2J and 13), in a manner similar to SFAS 87 "Employers' Accounting
for pensions" under U.S. GAAP. Nonetheless, certain differences in assumptions
led to minor differences in prior years between the amounts recognized under
Mexican GAAP and those obtained under U.S. GAAP. These discrepancies were
eliminated in the actuarial computations of 2000. For purposes of the U.S. GAAP
reconciliation of net income, the Company recognized income of Ps5.3 in 2000,
which was required to reverse the accrued adjustment.



In addition, as a result of the Company's acquisition of CEMEX, Inc. (formerly
Southdown (see note 8A)) in 2000 and Puerto Rican Cement Company, Inc. ("PRCC")
in 2002, the Company assumed a package of employee benefits, which include
Pension, Retirement Savings Plan, Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan and
Health and Life Insurance benefits. The benefit obligation and the net pension
cost arising from CEMEX, Inc.'s and PRCC's employee benefits, have been
recorded under Mexican GAAP and are included in the consolidated information
with respect to the Company's pension plans, seniority premium and other
postretirement benefits (see note 13).

Most of the Company's health care benefits are self-insured and administered on
cost plus fee arrangements with major insurance companies or provided through
health maintenance organizations. The Company also provides life insurance
benefits to its active and retired employees. Generally, life insurance
benefits for retired employees are reduced over a number of years from the date
of retirement to a minimum level.

(d) Capitalized Interest

Under Mexican GAAP, CEMEX capitalizes interest on property, machinery and
equipment under construction. The amount of financing cost to be capitalized is
comprehensively measured in order to include properly the effects of inflation.
Therefore, the amount capitalized includes: (i) the interest cost of the debt
incurred, plus (ii) any foreign currency fluctuations that results from the
related debt, and less (iii) the monetary position result recognized on the
related debt. Under U.S. GAAP, only interest is considered an additional cost
of constructed assets to be capitalized and depreciated over the lives of the
related assets. The U.S. GAAP reconciliation removes the foreign currency gain
or loss and the monetary position result capitalized for Mexican GAAP derived
from borrowings denominated in foreign currency.
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(e) Minority Interest
Financing Transactions

For U.S. GAAP presentation purposes, see note 23(o), the preferred stock
described in note 14E for a notional amount of U.S.$900 million (Psl10,047.6)
and U.S.$650 million (Ps6,893.4) at December 31, 2001 and 2002, respectively,
is presented as a separate component of mezzanine items, which are those
included between the liabilities and the equity section on the balance sheets.
As of June 30, 2003 (unaudited), resulting from the adoption of SFAS 150,
preferred stock for a notional amount of U.S.$650 million (Ps6,799.0) is
considered as a separate component within liabilities, see note 23 (v). Under
Mexican GAAP this instrument is presented as part of the minority interest
stockholders' equity. Preferred dividends declared for the years ended December
31, 2000, 2001, 2002 and the six months ended June 30, 2002 (see note 14E) were
recognized as part of the minority interest in the consolidated income
statements under both Mexican and U.S. GAAP, while for the six months ended
June 30, 2003 (unaudited), preferred dividends were classified as interest cost
under U.S. GAAP.

For U.S. GAAP presentation purposes, see note 23(0o), the capital securities
described in note 14E for a notional amount of U.S.$250 million (Ps2,556.8) and
U.S.$66 million (Ps700.0) at December 31, 2001 and 2002, respectively, are
presented as a separate component of mezzanine items. As of June 30, 2003
(unaudited), resulting from the adoption of SFAS 150, capital securities for a
notional amount of U.S.$66 million (Ps690.4) are considered as a separate
component within liabilities, see note 23(v). Under Mexican GAAP these
instruments are presented as part of the minority interest in stockholders'
equity. Capital securities dividends declared during the years ended December
31, 2000, 2001, 2002 and June 30, 2002 (see note 14E) were recorded as part of
the minority interest in the consolidated income statements under both Mexican
and U.S. GAAP, while for the six months ended June 30, 2003 (unaudited),
capital securities dividends were classified as interest cost under U.S. GAAP.



As described in note 14F, related to a transaction entered into in December 31,
1995, the Company had outstanding obligations of U.S.$96.3 million (Ps984.9),
U.S.$90.6 million (Ps960.7) and U.S.$67.3 million (Ps704.0) at December 31,
2001, 2002 and June 30, 2003, respectively. For U.S. GAAP purposes the amount
outstanding under this arrangement is treated as debt. Under Mexican GAAP this
transaction has been treated as minority interest. The Company's cost of
retaining its option to reacquire the contributed assets during the years ended
December 31, 2000, 2001, 2002 (see note 14F) and the six months ended June 30,
2002 and 2003 (unaudited), was recorded as part of the financial expense in the
consolidated income statements under both Mexican and U.S. GAAP.

U.S. GAAP adjustments on minority interest

Under Mexican GAAP the minority interest in consolidated subsidiaries is
presented as a separate component within the stockholders' equity section in
the consolidated balance sheets. According to U.S. GAAP, minority interest is
excluded from consolidated stockholders' equity and classified as a separate
component between total liabilities and stockholders' equity in the
consolidated balance sheets (see note 23(0o)). The U.S. GAAP adjustment to
stockholders' equity included herein represents the minority interests in the
Company's subsidiaries determined in accordance with U.S. GAAP.

(f) Depreciation

One of the Company's subsidiaries in Colombia records depreciation expense
utilizing the sinking fund method. This methodology for depreciation was in
place before CEMEX acquired the subsidiary in 1997. For Mexican GAAP purposes,
CEMEX has maintained this accounting practice due to tax consequences in
Colombia arising from a change in methodology and the immateriality of the
effects in the Company's consolidated results. For U.S. GAAP purposes,
depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful
lives of the assets. As a result, for the years ended December 31, 2000, 2001,
2002 and for the six months ended June 30, 2002 and 2003 (unaudited), expense
of Ps84.9, expense of Ps43.3, income of Psl2.7, expense of Ps5.0 and income of
Ps29.3, respectively, have been reflected in the reconciliation of net income
to U.S. GAAP.

Additionally, as a result of the application of APB 16 in the acquisition of
Solid (formerly Rizal), one of the Company's subsidiaries in the Philippines,
for U.S. GAAP purposes, the Company reduced the value of its fixed assets by
Ps210.1 in 2001 and Ps212.7 in the six months ended June 30, 2002 (unaudited),
net of depreciation, corresponding to the portion of the appraisal value,
determined at the acquisition date, related to the minority owners.
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The change in the appraised fixed assets amount under U.S. GAAP resulted in a
decrease in the depreciation expense under U.S. GAAP of Ps28.0 and Ps25.7 for
the years ended December 31, 2000 and 2001, respectively, and Psl13.9 in June
30, 2002 (unaudited). As mentioned in note 8A, during July 2002, CEMEX acquired
the remaining 30% economic interest in Solid from the minority shareholders. As
a result, the Company reversed the adjustment made to the fixed assets
appraised amount against minority interest, given that the reversed amount is
part of the proportional net assets fair value assigned to the 30% economic
interest acquired. Resulting from the minority interest acquisition during
2002, there is no further effect on earnings under U.S. GAAP related to the
decrease in the depreciation expense and the adjustment was eliminated in the
year—-end 2002.

(g) Accruals for Contingencies

For Mexican GAAP purposes, the Company has recorded accruals for certain
contingencies that do not meet the accrual criteria of SFAS 5 of U.S. GAAP. Our
Spanish subsidiary has recorded a liability for guarantees given to third
parties by former subsidiaries and other general accruals. At the balance sheet
dates the likelihood of a loss occurring is considered to be possible but not
probable. Therefore, the Company does not consider that the criteria of SFAS 5
"Accounting for Contingencies" for accrual was met, and the recorded



liabilities were reversed for U.S. GAAP purposes.

In addition, with respect to the contingencies described in note 21, for which
an accrual has not been provided under Mexican GAAP, as of December 31, 2001
and 2002, the Company considers that while it is reasonably possible for a loss
to occur as a result of these assessments, the likelihood of a loss is not
probable. Therefore, the Company does not consider that the criteria of SFAS 5
for accrual were met.

(h) Affiliated Companies

The Company has adjusted its investment and equity in the earnings of
affiliated companies for the Company's share of the approximate U.S. GAAP
adjustments applicable to these affiliates.

(1) Inflation Adjustment of Machinery and Equipment

For purposes of the reconciliation to U.S. GAAP, fixed assets of foreign origin
are restated by applying the inflation rate of the country that holds the
assets, regardless of the assets' origin countries, instead of using the
methodology of Bulletin B-10, under which fixed assets of foreign origin are
restated by applying a factor that considers the inflation of the asset's
origin country, not the inflation of the country that holds the asset, and the
fluctuation of the functional currency (currency of the country that holds the
asset) against the currency of the asset's origin country. Depreciation expense
is based upon the revised amounts.

(3) Temporary Equity from Forward Contracts

As mentioned in notes 14F and 16A to the financial statements, during 1999 the
Company entered into equity forward contracts with an original maturity in
December 2002, in connection with its appreciation warrants transaction. In
December 2002, prior to their expiration, CEMEX renegotiated the extension of
the forward contracts until December 2003. As a condition of this extension,
the Company agreed to pay U.S$98.3 million (Psl1,028.2) to the counterparties,
an amount charged to stockholders' equity under Mexican GAAP, representing the
difference between the cash redemption amount of the forward contracts and the
market value of the underlying shares at the date of the agreements. The
U.S.$98.3 million was deducted by the counterparties from the prepayments that
the Company made periodically toward the forwards final price since the
inception of the contracts. Until December 31, 2002, according to EITF 00-19,
forward contracts involving the Company's own stock that will be physically
settled by delivering cash should be initially measured at fair value and
recorded in permanent equity, and an amount equivalent to the cash redemption
at the date of reporting, should be reclassified to temporary equity, which is
to be considered as a mezzanine item for balance sheet presentation under U.S.
GAAP. As a result, for purposes of reconciliation, the Company presents a
reduction to its stockholders' equity under Mexican GAAP of approximately
Ps5,932.7 (U.S.$605.8) in 2001 and Ps5,724.0 (U.S.$545.2) in 2002, which
represents the cash obligation plus the advanced payments of the Company under
the forward contracts at the reporting date and is presented as a mezzanine
item (Temporary equity) for purposes of note 23(0o). As a result of the adoption
of SFAS 150 in 2003, see note 23(v), as of June 30, 2003 (unaudited), the cash
redemption amount gross of the advanced payments of Ps5,764.2 (U.S.$551.1
million), was reclassified from permanent equity to a separate component within
liabilities. The obligation presented, which is net of prepayments, amounts to
Ps4,707.1 (U.S.$450.0 million). Under Mexican GAAP, since inception, the shares
sold to the counterparties have been treated as permanent equity.
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Under Mexican GAAP, since inception, these forward contracts have been treated
as equity transactions, and gains or losses are recognized upon settlement as
an adjustment to stockholders' equity. Under Mexican GAAP the difference
between the original proceeds of the sale and the forward price, which is
periodically paid to the counterparties, is treated as a prepayment toward the
forward contracts' final price and is presented as accounts receivable. For
purposes of the net income reconciliation to U.S. GAAP, the amount prepaid and



considered as accounts receivable, has been also considered as a preferred
dividend, in a manner similar to a mandatorily redeemable preferred stock, and
has been charged to net income under U.S. GAAP against stockholders' equity,
resulting in an interest cost for the years ended December 31, 2000, 2001, 2002
and for the six months ended June 30, 2002 and 2003 (unaudited) of
approximately Ps494.3, Ps449.5, Ps523.9 and Psl69.5 and Ps68.9, respectively
(Ps417.0, Ps372.9, Ps434.9 and Psl43.7 and Ps57.2, respectively, after the
related deferred income tax effect). There was no change in the income
statement accounting treatment of this transaction resulting from the adoption
of SFAS 150 during 2003, see note 23(v). The amount of US$98.3 recognized as a
loss in stockholders' equity under Mexican GAAP during 2002 was not
reclassified through net income in the reconciliation to U.S. GAAP, since such
amount has been periodically charged to earnings under U.S. GAAP as part of the
preferred dividends. At maturity of the forward contracts, assuming the shares
are repurchased, the reacquired shares will be treated as an equivalent of
treasury shares.

(k) Other U.S. GAAP Adjustments

Inventory costs--Until December 31, 1999, as permitted by Mexican GAAP, certain
inventories of manufactured product were valued under the direct cost system,
which includes material, labor and other direct costs. For purposes of
complying with U.S. GAAP, inventories must be valued under the full absorption
cost method, including all costs and expenses necessary for the manufacturing
process. Beginning January 1, 2000, the Company adopted the full absorption
cost method in all its producing facilities; therefore, for the year ended
December 31, 2000, the reconciling item arising from this difference was
eliminated, recognizing an expense of Ps70.2 in the reconciliation of net
income to U.S. GAAP.

Capitalization of costs of computer development under U.S. GAAP--Statement of
Position 98-1 "Accounting for the Costs of Computer Software Developed or
Obtained for Internal Use", requires that certain costs related to the
development or purchase of internal-use software be capitalized and amortized
over the estimated useful life of the software and that costs related to the
preliminary project stage and the post-implementation/operations stage (as
defined in SOP 98-1) in an internal-use computer software development project
be expensed as incurred. The estimated average useful lives period to amortize
these capitalized costs is between 3 and 5 years.

For the years ended December 31, 2000, 2001, 2002 and the six months ended June
30, 2002 and 2003 (unaudited), the effect of capitalizing these costs in the
reconciliation of net income to U.S. GAAP, net of amortization, led to income
of Psl27.0 and expense of Ps222.6, Psl198.2, Psl08.6 and Psl192.8, respectively,
with an effect of income in the stockholders' equity reconciliation to U.S.
GAAP at December 31, 2001, 2002 and June 30, 2003 (unaudited) of Ps429.9,
Ps265.5 and Ps81.1, respectively. Beginning in 2001, in connection with the
Company's decision to significantly enhance and/or replace, on a worldwide
basis, all of its critical software systems under an effort denominated "CEMEX
Way", for accounting purposes under Mexican GAAP, the Company began the
capitalization of costs associated with developing and implementing new
software (see note 9) resulting in a capitalization under Mexican GAAP for the
years ended December 31, 2001 and 2002 of Psl,423.7 and Psl1l,692.0, net of
amortization. As a result, in the reconciliation of net income to U.S. GAAP for
the years ended December 31, 2001, 2002 and the six months ended June 30, 2002
and 2003 (unaudited), the reconciling item refers exclusively to the
amortization of the accrued capitalized amount until December 2000.

Deferred charges--Other deferred charges, net of accumulated amortization, that
did not qualify for deferral under U.S. GAAP were reversed through earnings
under U.S. GAAP in the period incurred, resulting in income of Psl137.6 in 2000,
expense of Psl77.2 in 2001, expense of Ps283.1 in 2002, expense of Psl38.2 and
in the six months ended June 30, 2002; during the first six months ended June
30, 2003 (unaudited) under Mexican GAAP nothing which did not qualify for
deferral under U.S. GAAP was deferred. The net effect in the stockholders'
equity reconciliation to U.S. GAAP was a decrease of Ps381.0, Ps632.9 and
Ps131.3 at December 31, 2001, 2002 and June 30, 2003 (unaudited), respectively.
Mexican GAAP allowed the deferral of these items.
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Asset Retirement Obligations--Effective January 1, 2003, SFAS 143 "Accounting
for Asset Retirement Obligations", requires entities to record the fair value
of an asset retirement obligation as a liability in the period in which it
incurs a legal obligation associated with the retirement of tangible long-lived
assets that result from the acquisition, construction, development, and/or
normal use of the assets. Such liability would be recorded against a
corresponding asset that is depreciated over the life of the long-lived asset.
Subsequent to the initial measurement of the asset retirement obligation, the
obligation will be adjusted at the end of each period to reflect the passage of
time and changes in the estimated future cash flows underlying the obligation.
Resulting from the adoption of SFAS 143, the Company identified an obligation
in its subsidiary in the United States, recording a liability of approximately
U.S.$34.9 million (Ps365.1) against an asset of approximately U.S.$23.4 million
(Ps244.6) and a cumulative effect from the change in accounting principle in
earnings of approximately U.S.$11.5 million (Psl120.3), representing the
accumulated depreciation of the asset as of the adoption date. Also effective
January 1, 2003, Mexican GAAP's Bulletin C-9 adopted the same requirement but,
the cumulative effect from the adoption, should be recognized as an adjustment
to equity; therefore, the reconciling item presented in the reconciliation of
net income to U.S. GAAP refers to the reclassification of the cumulative effect
from adoption from stockholders' equity under Mexican GAAP to net income under
U.S. GAAP.

Monetary position result--Monetary position result of the U.S. GAAP adjustments
is determined by (i) applying the annual inflation factor to the net monetary
position of the U.S. GAAP adjustments at the beginning of the period, plus (ii)
the monetary position effect of the adjustments during the period, determined
in accordance with the weighted average inflation factor for the period.

Reclassifications—--Non-cement related assets under Mexican GAAP (see note 7) of
Ps354.8, Ps370.0 and Ps363.6, as of December 31, 2001, 2002 and June 30, 2003
(unaudited), respectively, were reclassified to long-term assets for purposes
of the condensed financial information under U.S. GAAP in note 23 (o). These
assets are stated at their estimated fair value. Estimated costs to sell these
assets are not significant.

(1) Financial Instruments
Derivative Financial Instruments (see notes 2N, 11, 12 and 16)

Effective January 1, 2001, companies reporting under U.S. GAAP adopted SFAS 133
"Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities", as amended,
which establishes that all derivative instruments (including certain derivative
instruments embedded in other contracts) should be recognized in the balance
sheet as assets or liabilites at their fair values and changes in fair wvalue
are recognized immediately in earnings, unless the derivatives qualify as
hedges of future cash flows. For derivatives qualifying as hedges of future
cash flows, the effective portion of changes in fair value is recorded
temporarily in equity, and then recognized in earnings along with the related
effects of the hedged items. Any ineffective portion of a hedge is reported in
earnings as it occurs.

Under Mexican GAAP, effective January 1, 2001, the Company adopted Bulletin C-2
"Financial Instruments" (see note 2N), which establishes a methodology similar
to that of SFAS 133. The main differences between SFAS 133 and Bulletin C-2
relate to the rules for hedge accounting. SFAS 133 provides specific rules for
qualifying for hedge accounting and is precise as to which transactions are
outside the scope of the statement, while under Bulletin C-2, hedge accounting
is based on the Company's intention and designation, providing that the
underlying hedged asset or liability is already recognized in the balance
sheet. Bulletin C-2 does not provide guidance for hedging forecasted
transactions, for cash flow hedges, for own equity derivative instruments nor
for risk management instruments entered into to protect the Company's net
investment in foreign subsidiaries; therefore, such contracts have been
accounted for in accordance to SFAS 133 or with other U.S. GAAP accounting
pronouncements as appropriate. Fair value hedges as defined by U.S. GAAP are
precluded by Mexican GAAP since it is not permitted to record primary hedged
instruments at fair value.

As of December 31, 2001, 2002 and June 30, 2003 (unaudited), the differences in
derivative instruments' hedge accounting between Mexican and U.S. GAAP, as they
relate to the Company, led to certain adjustments in the reconciliations of



stockholders' equity and net income to U.S. GAAP, as well as reclassifications
in the condensed financial information under U.S. GAAP of note 23(o), which are
explained as follows:
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o During 2001, the estimated fair value of interest rate swaps negotiated to
exchange fixed for floating rates, or vice versa, designated as hedges of
underlying debt transactions under Mexican GAAP, was not recognized in the
balance sheet pursuant to the hedge designation (see note 2N). For the year
ended as of December 31, 2001 and the six months ended June 30, 2002
(unaudited), for purposes of the reconciliation of stockholders' equity and
net income to U.S. GAAP, the Company did not designate these interest rate
swaps as accounting hedges under SFAS 133; therefore, changes in the
estimated fair value were recognized, resulting in income of approximately
Ps31.5 (U.S.$3.2 million) and expense of Ps54.4 million (U.S.$5.2 million),
respectively (see notes 11 and 12A). Beginning in 2002, the Company applied
under Mexican GAAP the accounting provisions of cash flow hedges, in a
manner equivalent to the rules set forth in SFAS 133. As a result, after
fulfilling the hedging documentation requirements and effectiveness tests,
beginning as of the designation date in June 30, 2002, the estimated fair
value of the hedging instruments and changes thereon have been recognized in
the balance sheet against the deficit in equity restatement within
stockholders' equity, which is equivalent in Mexico to Other Comprehensive
Income ("OCI") as defined in U.S. GAAP (see notes 11 and 12). For the year
ended December 31, 2002 and the six months ended June 30, 2003 (unaudited),
changes in the estimated fair value of interest rate derivatives, other than
those designated as cash flow hedges, have been recorded through the income
statement under Mexican GAAP (see notes 11 and 12), consistently with U.S.
GAAP.

o As discussed in notes 11 and 12B, the Company recorded net assets of
U.S.$242.9 million (Ps2,484.2), U.S.$244.9 million (Ps2,597.3) and U.S.$79.2
million (Ps828.4) as of December 31, 2001, 2002 and June 30, 2003
(unaudited), related to the fair value adjustments of certain Cross Currency
Swaps. Under U.S. GAAP, the amounts do not qualify for net presentation and
thus have been shown gross for purposes of the condensed financial
information under U.S. GAAP presented in note 23 (o).

As a result, under U.S. GAAP as of December 31, 2001, long-term debt
increased U.S.$175.9 million (Psl1,798.9) against non-current assets,
representing the portion of the estimated fair value attributable to the
changes in the exchange rates between the beginning of the CCS and year-end;
and U.S.$14.8 million (Psl151.3), corresponding to the portion of the
estimated fair value attributable to accrued interest, was reclassified and
increased current liabilities against current assets. Likewise, at December
31, 2002, in respect to the portion of the estimated fair value attributable
to changes in the exchange rates, short-term debt decreased U.S.$2.9 million
(Ps30.7) against current assets and long-term debt increased U.S.$177.1
million (Psl1,878.2), including prepayments, against non-current assets;
while in respect of the portion of the estimated fair value attributable to
accrued interest, current liabilities increased U.S.$25.9 million (Ps274.6)
against current assets. As of June 30, 2003 (unaudited), in respect to the
portion of the estimated fair value attributable to changes in the exchange
rates, short-term debt decreased U.S.$52.9 million (Ps553.3) against current
assets and long-term debt increased U.S.$63.7 million (Ps666.3), including
prepayments, against non-current assets; while in respect of the portion of
the estimated fair value attributable to accrued interest, current
liabilities increased U.S.$19.1 million (Ps199.8) against current assets.

See note 23 (v) for changes in accounting principles regarding the Company's
equity forward contracts in its own shares resulting from the adoption of SFAS
150.

All other derivative instruments, with the exception of those described above
and the equity forwards described in note 23(j) and 23(v), entered into by the
Company and disclosed in notes 11, 12 and 16, have been accounted under Mexican
GAAP consistently with the provisions of U.S. GAAP. In respect to the interest



rate derivative instruments that hedge forecasted debt transactions (see note
127A), as of December 31, 2002, the maximum length of time over which the
Company 1is hedging its exposure to the variability in future cash flows
associated with the interest rates of new debt issuances or debt renegotiations
is up to six months between the settlement date of the instrument and the
occurrence of the underlying debt transaction.

For all hedging relationships for accounting purposes, the Company formally
documents the hedging relationship and its risk-management objective and
strategy for undertaking the hedge, the hedging instrument, the item, the
nature of the risk being hedged, how the hedging instrument's effectiveness in
offsetting the hedged risk will be assessed, and a description of the method of
measuring ineffectiveness. This process includes linking all derivatives that
are designated as cash-flow, or foreign-currency hedges to specific assets and
liabilities on the balance sheet or to specific firm commitments or forecasted
transactions. As of December 31, 2001, 2002 and June 30, 2003 (unaudited), the
Company has not designated any derivative instrument as a fair value hedge for
accounting purposes under both Mexican GAAP and U.S. GAAP.
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The Company also formally assesses, both at the hedge's inception and on an
ongoing basis, whether the derivatives that are used in hedging transactions
are highly effective in offsetting changes in cash flows of hedged items. When
it is determined that a derivative is not highly effective as a hedge or that
it has ceased to be a highly effective hedge, the Company discontinues hedge
accounting prospectively.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The carrying amount of cash, trade accounts receivable, other accounts
receivable, trade accounts payable, other accounts payable and accrued expenses
and short-term debt, approximates fair value because of the short-term maturity
of these financial assets and liabilities.

Marketable securities and long-term investments are accounted for at fair
value, which is based on quoted market prices for these or similar instruments.

The carrying value of the Company's long-term debt and the related fair value
based on quoted market prices for the same or similar instruments or on current
rates offered to the Company for debt of the same remaining maturities (or
determined by discounting future cash flows using borrowing rates currently
available to the Company) at December 31, 2002 is summarized as follows:

Carrying amount Estimated fair value
Bank 1oans......uue et nennnnnn Ps 26,249.6 26,237.4
Notes payable........covivio.. 27,036.3 27,054.0

As discussed in notes 2D and 14D, the Company has designated certain debt as
hedges of its investment in foreign subsidiaries and, for Mexican GAAP
purposes, records foreign exchange fluctuations on such debt in equity. For
purposes of the U.S. GAAP net income reconciliation, expense of Psl,569.3 in
2000, income of Ps616.7 in 2001 and expense of Ps2,488.1 in 2002, were
recognized as foreign exchange results since the related debt does not meet the
conditions set forth in SFAS 52 for hedge accounting purposes, given that the
currencies involved do not move in tandem.

(m) Stock Option Programs

Beginning in 2001, for financial reporting under Mexican GAAP, the Company
accounts for its stock option programs (see note 15) using a methodology that
is consistent with the rules set forth by APB Opinion No. 25 ("APB 25") under
U.S GAAP. According to APB 25, compensation cost should be recognized in the
financial statements under the intrinsic cost method, which represents the
difference between the strike price and the market price of the stock at the
reporting date, for all plans that do not meet the following characteristics:



(i) the exercise price established in the option is equal to the quoted market
price of the stock at the measurement date, (ii) the exercise price is fixed
for the option's life, and (iii) the option's exercise is hedged through the
issuance of new shares of common stock. After taking into account these
characteristics, no compensation cost is recognized for the Company's fixed
program (see note 15A), while compensation cost is periodically determined,
beginning in 2001, for the Company's variable program (see note 15C) and
voluntary programs (see note 15D) and beginning in 2002, for its special
program (see note 15B). Stock options activity during 2001 and 2002, the
balance of options outstanding as of December 31, 2001 and 2002 and other
general information regarding the Company's stock option programs is presented
in note 15.

The Company covers the potential future exercise of its programs, with the
exception of the fixed program, through equity forward contracts in the
Company's own stock that have been designed as hedges of the programs. For the
years ended December 31, 2001 and 2002, the Company recognized in the income
statement under Mexican GAAP a gain of approximately U.S.$28.7 million
(Ps293.5) and a loss of approximately U.S.$47.1 million (Ps499.5),
respectively, from changes in the estimated fair value of the forward
contracts.

Under U.S. GAAP, SFAS 123 "Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation", requires
compensation cost for stock option plans to be determined based on the options'
fair value at the grant date, using a qualified option-pricing model, and
recorded in results of operations during the options vesting period after which
no further recognition is required.

For the years ended December 31, 2000, 2001 and 2002, had the Company
determined compensation cost based on the fair value at the grant date for its
stock options under SFAS 123, using the Black-Scholes pricing model, the
Company's net income would have been reduced to the pro forma amounts indicated
below:
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2001
Fixed Variable
2000 program program Total
Net income, as reported (Mexican GAAP) ........euveeeerennnnn Ps 10,614.5 12,045.6
Cost of options granted according to SFAS 123........... (215.6) (277.4) (209.4) (486.8)
Result from voluntary exchange program, net (note 15)... - 226.7 - 226.7
Reversal of cost recognized under APB 25.............0... - - 150.4 150.4
Approximate net income, pro forma............c..oiiiiiiiininn 10,398.9 11,935.9
Basic earnings per share, as reported..........c.ceuuvuiuenn. Ps 2.57 2.82
Basic earnings per share, pro forma............ v Ps 2.52 2.80
2002
Special Variable Voluntary Total
program program programs
Net income, as reported (Mexican GAAP) ........euveeeeennnnnn Ps 5,517.6
Cost of options granted according to SFAS .. (9.5) (162.1) (18.3) (189.9)
Reversal of cost recognized under APB 25.........0c0vnnnn - - 53.0 53.0
Approximate net income, pro forma............c..oiiiiiiiininn 5,380.7
Basic earnings per share, as reported..........coeeuvuveuenns Ps 1.23

Basic earnings per share, pro forma............coeevuvniuennn Ps




The amount of income presented in the pro forma calculations of Ps226.7 in
2001, represents the difference between the intrinsic value amount at the
exchange date paid to the executives for the repurchase of their options of
approximately Ps674.2, recorded as an expense under Mexican GAAP in 2001, and
the expense determined under SFAS 123 of approximately Ps447.5, representing
the options unvested fair value at the date of issuance, which was accelerated
as a result of the exchange program. The reason for the reversal in the pro
forma calculations, of the expense recognized under Mexican GAAP, is that such
amount had been previously expensed in the pro forma calculations as part of
the cost under SFAS 123 in prior years and as part of the accelerated
amortization of the unrecognized cost discussed above.

The assumptions for the Black-Scholes model for the options granted during each
year were:

2000 2001 2002
Expected dividend yield...... .. % 2% %
YT = e 30% 25% 25%
Range of risk free interest rates................... 12.5% 4.9% - 9.8% 3.6% - 4.8%
Weighted average tenure..........ouuiiiiiiiiinnnnnns 10 years 10 years 9.8 years

(n) Supplemental Cash Flow Information under U.S. GAAP

Under Mexican GAAP, statements of changes in financial position identify the
sources and uses of resources based on the differences between beginning and
ending financial statements in constant pesos. Monetary position results and
unrealized foreign exchange results are treated as cash items in the
determination of resources provided by operations. Under U.S. GAAP (SFAS 95),
statements of cash flows present only cash items and exclud non-cash items.
SFAS 95 does not provide guidance with respect to inflation-adjusted financial
statements. The differences between Mexican GAAP and U.S. GAAP in the amounts
reported is mainly due to (i) elimination of inflationary effects of monetary
assets and liabilities from financing and investing activities against the
corresponding monetary position result in operating activities, (ii)
elimination of foreign exchange results from financing and investing activities
against the corresponding unrealized foreign exchange result included in
operating activities and (iii) the recognition in operating, financing and
investing activities of the U.S. GAAP adjustments.
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The following table summarizes the cash flow items as required under SFAS 95
provided by (used in) operating, financing and investing activities, giving
effect to the U.S. GAAP adjustments, excluding the effects of inflation
required by Bulletin B-10 and Bulletin B-15. The following information is
presented in millions of pesos on a historical peso basis and is not presented
in pesos of constant purchasing power:

(Unaudited)
Six Months Ended

Years Ended December 31, June 30,
2000 2001 2002 2002 2003
Net cash provided by operating activities..... Ps 9,651.4 18,786.5 9,526.4 5,135.3 1,543.2
Net cash provided by (used in) financing
ACtivVities. .. .uiiini it 19,136.6 (9,250.1) (1,323.7) (1,698.4) 4,069.6

Net cash used in investing activities......... (29,930.8) (8,433.3) (8,380.4) (2,658.1) (1,944.0)




Net cash flow from operating activities reflects cash

income taxes as follows:

Interest paid.....cooieiiiiiii i,
Income taxes paid

Non-cash activities are comprised

payments for interest

and

(Unaudited)
Six Months Ended
Years Ended December 31, June 30,
2000 2001 2002 2002 2003
4,491.3 3,594.9 3,467.1 1,591.5 2,175.6
1,106.3 559.2 1,350.3 872.5 291.1

of the following:

through capital leases amounting to Ps749.8
The Company did not acgquire assets through

1. Acquisition of fixed assets
in 2000 and Ps23.2 in 2001.
capital leases during 2002.

2.

were Psb5,984.6 in 2000,

(o)

Condensed Financial Information under U.S.

GAAP

Liabilities assumed through the acquisition of businesses

(see note 8A)

Ps275.6 in 2001 and Psl1,873.7 in 2002.

The following table presents consolidated condensed income statements for the

years ended December 31,
30, 2002 and 2003,
described in this note
purposes of U.S. GAAP:

2000,

Statements of income

Net SaleS..uuieniniieeiiieieieieennennnannnns
Gross profit.... .
Operating income..........oouiiiiniinennnnnnnn,
Comprehensive financial result................
Other expenses, net.........cciiiiieiinnnnn.
Income tax (including deferred)
Equity in income of affiliates

Consolidated net income................... ...,
Minority interest net income..................

Majority interest net income before
cumulative effect of accounting change.....

Cumulative effect of accounting change........

Majority interest net income

CEMEX, S.A.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
2000,
(Millions of constant Mexican Pesos as of June 30,

December 31,

2001 and 2002,
prepared under U.S.

GAAP,

and for the six months ended June
and includes all differences
as well as certain other reclassifications required for

(Unaudited)
Years Ended December 31, Six Months Ended June 30,
2000 2001 2002 2002 2003
59,712.9 67,217.0 68,045.3 33,598.5 36,128.5
25,365.2 28,369.7 29,386.8 14,946.7 14,902.4
14,534.0 10,744.4 10,998.2 6,334.7 6,412.8
(2,834.8) 3,319.7 (5,970.3) (2,425.1) (613.9)
(443.8) (631.5) (969.9) (961.7) (647.2)
(1,810.8) (1,884.3) 1,597.9 (412.8) (774.7)
384.0 325.6 459.7 187.7 228.2
9,828.6 11,873.9 6,115.6 2,722.8 4,605.1
554.8 1,120.2 403.3 384.6 9.4
9,273.8 10,753.7 5,712.3 2,338.2 4,595.7
- - - - (647.5)
9,273.8 10,753.7 5,712.3 2,338.2 3,948.2
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2003)

The following table presents consolidated condensed balance sheets at December

31, 2001 and 2002,

and at June 30,

2003 prepared under U.S.

GAAP,

including all

differences and reclassifications as compared to Mexican GAAP described in this

note 23:

Balance sheets

At December 31,

(Unaudited)
at June 30,

2001 2002

2003



CULLENET ASSEES .ttt ennneeereenneeeessenneseseenanosesnnnnns Ps 22,310.9 20,159.7 25,328.4
Investments and non-current assetsS.......eeeeeeereeeneeeans 9,060.1 7,643.0 7,449.9
Property, machinery and equipment............coiuiiiuunnennn 96,071.2 99,239.7 97,565.8
Deferred ChargesS. ...ttt ittt ittt e et 37,741.9 44,446.5 48,033.8
Total assets. ..ttt i i i i 165,184.1 171,488.9 178,377.9
Current liabilities.....c.iuiiuiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiniinenneanns 28,798.0 36,561.1 44,537.3
Long-term debt 39,810.0 41,692.2 33,724.5
Shares subject to mandatory redemption:
Putable capital securities (see note 14E) - - 690.4
Temporary €quUity...oeeee i i ennennnnn - - 4,707.1
Preferred stock (see note 14E) ....oveviiiiieennnnnnn - - 6,799.0
Other non-current liabilities......veeiieiinnnnneeennnnnnn 21,571.3 22,455.7 28,704.7
Total liabilities.......oiuiiniiiiiiiiiiiiinnnnnnns 90,179.3 100,709.0 119,163.0
Mezzanine items:
Putable capital securities (see note 14E).............. 2,448.3 692.9 -
TeMPOTary @qUIty. . uee e e i i eieneeereenenenenenanns 5,932.7 5,724.0 -
Preferred equity (see note 14E) ... iiviniiiniinnnnnennnn 8,813.6 6,823.9 -
Minority interest. ... ..ot iiieeneennnn 8,114.5 5,254.0 4,646.7
Total mezzanine itemS......eveieeeennnnneeeennnnans 25,309.1 18,494.8 4,646.7
Stockholders' equity including cumulative effect of
accounting change. .......oiiiiiiiiiniiineinnnnnnn. 49,695.6 52,285.0 54,568.2
Total liabilities and stockholders' equity............. Ps 165,184.0 171,488.8 178,377.9

For purposes of the consolidated condensed financial statements showned in the
tables above, the prior periods figures were restated to constant pesos as of
June 30, 2003 using the Mexican inflation rate, to comply with requirements of
Regulation S-X, instead of the weighted average inflation factor used by the
CEMEX under Mexican GAAP (see note 2B).

(p) Restatement to Constant Pesos of Prior Years
The following table presents summarized financial information under Mexican

GAAP of the consolidated income statements and balance sheets, in constant
Mexican pesos as of June 30, 2003 using the Mexican inflation rate:

(Unaudited)
Six Months Ended
Years Ended December 31, June 30,
2000 2001 2002 2002
881ES. ettt i Ps 60,379.1 67,800.0 68,691.8 33,915.6
Gross profit..... ..., 26,640.0 29,663.7 30,315.0 15,367.2
Operating inCome........couviuenuennnnn 17,765.9 16,191.1 13,757.1 7,414.7
Majority interest net income........... 10,734.7 11,534.2 5,462.0 3,576.5
Current assetsS......uieennnennnnnnnnn Ps 22,712.9 20,499.9
Non-current assetsS.......eeeeeeeennnnn. 136,228.8 146,785.6
Current liabilities. 22,980.3 31,012.8
Non-current liabilities..... 56,128.6 63,297.8
Majority interest stockholders' equity. 60,487.4 60,305.7
Minority interest stockholders' equity. 19,345.4 12,669.2

CEMEX, S.A. DE C.V. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (Continued)
December 31, 2000, 2001, 2002 and June 30, 2003
(Millions of constant Mexican Pesos as of June 30, 2003)

(a) Environmental Costs

Environmental expenditures related to current operations are expensed or
capitalized, as appropriate. Remediation costs related to an existing condition
caused by past operations are accrued when it is probable that these costs will
be incurred and can be reasonably estimated. CEMEX accrues for losses
associated with environmental remediation obligations when such losses are
probable and reasonably estimable. Costs of future expenditures for
environmental remediation obligations are not discounted to their present
value. Recoveries of environmental remediation costs from other parties are



recorded as assets when their receipt is deemed probable. Other than, those
contingencies disclosed in note 21G, the Company is not currently facing other
material situations, which might result in the recognition of an environmental
remediation liability.

(r) Supplemental Debt Information

At December 31, 2001, 2002 and June 30, 2003 (unaudited), due to the Company's
ability and its intention to refinance short-term debt with the available
amounts of the committed long-term lines of credit, U.S.$546 million
(Ps5,711.2), U.S.$450 million (Ps4,707.0) and U.S.$585 million (Ps6,119.1),
respectively, were reclassified from short-term debt to long-term debt under
Mexican GAAP (see note 12). For purposes of the condensed information under
U.S. GAAP of note 23(0), this reclassification was reversed given that under
U.S. GAAP, the reclassification is precluded when the long-term agreements
contain "Material Adverse Events" clauses, which in the case of the Company are
customary covenants.

(s) Impairment of Long Lived Assets

As noted at the beginning of note 23, for purposes of the reconciliation to
U.S. GAAP, CEMEX adopted SFAS 142 and SFAS 144 effective January 1, 2002. SFAS
142 eliminates the amortization of goodwill and indefinite-lived intangible
assets, and addresses the amortization of intangible assets with finite lives
and impairment testing and recognition for goodwill and intangible assets. SFAS
144 establishes a single model for the impairment of long-lived assets and
broadens the presentation of discontinued operations to include disposal of an
individual business. As a result of such adoption, beginning January 1, 2002,
amortization ceased for goodwill under U.S. GAAP.

In connection with SFAS 142's transitional goodwill impairment evaluation, the
statement requires an assessment of whether there was an indication that
goodwill is impaired as of the date of adoption. To accomplish this, the
Company was required to identify its reporting units and determine the carrying
value of each reporting unit by assigning the assets and liabilities, including
the existing goodwill and intangible assets, to those reporting units as of
January 1, 2002. The Company was also required to determine the fair value of
each reporting unit and compare it to the its related carrying amount within
six months of January 1, 2002. To the extent the fair value of the reporting
unit exceeds its corresponding carrying amount there is no requirement to
recognize an impairment loss. Upon adoption, SFAS 142 required the Company to
determine its reporting units, as defined, for purposes of assessing fair value
in determining the potential impairment at transition and in future periods.
CEMEX's geographical segments under SFAS 131 are also its reporting units under
SFAS 142, based on the similarities as defined in SFAS 142 of the components of
the operating segments (cement, ready-mix concrete, aggregates and other
construction materials). No impairment charges were required as a result of the
transitional goodwill impairment evaluation performed for the recorded goodwill
as of January 1, 2002.

As a result of the implementation of SFAS 142 and 144 during 2002, pursuant to
which goodwill is defined as an intangible asset with indefinite life and is no
longer amortized, the Company ceased the amortization of the net amounts of
goodwill as of December 31, 2001; therefore such amounts will be fixed and
subject to the impairment test as required by the new rules. For the year ended
December 31, 2002, goodwill under Mexican GAAP continued to be an amortizable
intangible asset. In compliance with the accounting rules set forth by SFAS,
the Company assesses goodwill and indefinite-lived intangibles for impairment
annually unless events occur that require more frequent reviews. Long-lived
assets, including amortizable intangibles, are tested for impairment if
impairment triggers occur. Discounted cash flow analyses are used to assess the
possible impairment of both, amortizable and non-amortizable intangible assets,
while undiscounted cash flow analyses are used to assess long-lived asset
impairment.

As previously discussed in note 23(a), for U.S. GAAP purposes, goodwill amounts
are carried in the reporting unit's functional currency and restated by the
inflation factor of the reporting unit's country and then translated into
Mexican pesos at the exchange rates prevailing at the reporting date. Under
Mexican GAAP, goodwill amounts are carried in the currencies of the reporting
units' holding companies, are translated into pesos and restated by Mexican
inflation.
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If an assessment indicates impairment, the impaired asset is written down to
its fair market value based on the best information available. Estimated fair
market value is generally measured with discounted estimated future cash flows.
The useful lives of amortizable intangibles are evaluated periodically, and
subsequent to impairment reviews, to determine whether revision is warranted.
If cash flows related to a nonamortizable intangible are not expected to
continue for the foreseeable future, a useful life would be assigned.
Considerable management judgment is necessary to estimate undiscounted and
discounted future cash flows. Assumptions used for these cash flows are
consistent with internal forecasts and industry practices. In addition, during
2002, there were no impairment charges except for the impairment expense
disclosed in note 2U, which was attributable to the reporting unit engaged in
software development projects for both Mexican and U.S. GAAP.

As of December 31, 2002, the Company's approximate goodwill by reporting unit
under U.S. GAAP, net of amortization accrued until December 31, 2001, is as
follows:

Inflation and
currency

January 1, Goodwill Impairment fluctuation December 31,
2002 (1) acquired (2) losses (3) 2002

United States............... Ps 14,145.6 - - 1,018.8 15,164.5
Mexico...vuiiiiiiniiinn.. 6,179.5 - - - 6,179.5
Spain......oiiiiiiiiiiii, 6,532.7 - - 2,071.7 8,604.5
Colombia......covvunnn 3,415.4 - - (222.4) 3,193.0
The Philippines...... 1,074.9 641.6 - 73.9 1,790.4
Dominican Republic... 339.4 - - 55.3 394.7
Thailand............. .. 371.3 - - 36.8 408.1
The Caribbean............... 354.4 - - 34.3 388.8
Venezuela....ovveerrninennnnn 292.2 - - (24.0) 268.2
261.9 - - 17.8 279.6

268.9 - - 13.7 282.6

Other reporting units (4)... 334.0 379.4 (95.1) 98.2 716.4
Affiliates (see note 8A).... 321.5 214.3 - 8.0 543.7
Ps 33,891.7 1,235.3 (95.1) 3,182.1 38,214.0

1. This column presents goodwill by reporting unit; net of amortization

accrued until December 31, 2001, presented in constant pesos as of
December 31, 2002, using the Mexican inflation rate.

2. The acquired goodwill represents the difference between the purchase
price and the estimated fair value of the acquired entity at the
acquisition date, determined in the subsidiary's or the affiliate's
currency and presented in Mexican pesos at the balance sheet date. For
the acquisitions during 2002, no intangible assets, both of definite or
indefinite life, were identified and determined other than goodwill. As

mentioned in note 8A, in 2002, CEMEX acquired: (i) from the minority
shareholders the remaining 30% economic interest in Solid for
approximately U.S.$95 million (Psl1l,007.5); (ii) through a tender offer

and a subsequent merger, a 100% equity interest in Puerto Rican Cement
Company for approximately U.S.$180.2 million (Psl1l,911.0); and (iii) for
cash and pursuant to a forward purchase agreement, a 15.1% equity
interest in CAH, for approximately U.S.$142.3 million. In addition,
during 2002, CEMEX also made other minor acquisitions for approximately
U.S.$60 million.

3. The amounts presented in this column represent the difference between
the goodwill amounts as determined in the reporting units' functional
currencies, restated by the reporting unit's inflation rates and
translated into pesos at the exchange rates prevailing at the reporting
date, as compared to the same amounts of goodwill at the beginning of
the year, translated into Mexican pesos at the exchange rates of
December 31, 2001, restated into constant pesos as of December 31, 2002
using Mexican inflation.



4. Other reporting units are mainly integrated by the Company's cement
operations in Puerto Rico and Panama, the ready-mix concrete operations
in France and Italy and the reporting unit engaged in software
development projects.
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The following table reflects the impact that SFAS 142 would have had on prior
years net income under U.S. GAAP and earnings per share if adopted for all
historical periods presented:

Years Ended December 31,

2000 2001
Approximate net income under U.S. GAAP, as reported ........... Ps 9,273.9 10,753.7
Cease goodwill amortization..........iii it 976.7 2,264.8
Adjusted net income under U.S. GAAP.. ...ttt ittt tnnnnnnnnens Ps 10,250.6 13,018.5
Basic U.S. GAAP earnings per share..........ouiiiuiiiiiiieeeeenns Ps 2.26 2.53
Cease goodwill amortization.........ui ittt enns 0.24 0.53
Adjusted basic U.S. GAAP earnings per share............oouvuiueo.. Ps 2.50 3.06
Diluted U.S. GAAP earnings per Share.........o.oeeeeeierenennnnnn Ps 2.21 2.47
Cease goodwill amortization.........ii ittt nnns 0.23 0.52
Adjusted diluted U.S. GAAP earnings per share.................. Ps 2.44 2.99

(t) Business Combinations

As mentioned in note 8A, during November 2000, CEMEX acquired a majority equity
interest in CEMEX, Inc. (formerly Southdown). For purposes of disclosure under
U.S. GAAP according to APB 16, companies must provide on a pro forma basis, the
effects of certain information as if the acquired companies were consolidated
since the beginning of the reported period. Therefore, the Company is providing
pro forma selected income statement amounts for the consolidation of CEMEX,
Inc., as if it had been consolidated for the full year 2000.

In order to make the information comparable with the reported amounts of the
Company in its financial statements under Mexican GAAP, the pro forma amounts
presented in the table below corresponding to 2000, have been restated to
constant pesos as of December 31, 2002, using the weighted average inflation
index (see note 2B). The approximate amounts are as follows:

Year Ended December 31, 2000

ten-months pro CEMEX, Inc.

CEMEX as ten-months as pro forma Inflation CEMEX
reported (1) reported (2) adjustments (3) effects pro forma
Net sales.....ovviinienninnnnnenn, 59,703.2 11,727.0 - (602.0) 70,828.2
Operating income 17,566.6 2,972.5 (487.2) (177.1) 19,874.8
Majority interest net income
(LOBB) eereunenenininreaasnaaananas 10,614.5 1,319.5 (2,574.4) (107.0) 9,252.6
Basic earnings per share.......... Ps 2.57 2.24

Diluted earnings per share........ Ps 2.56 2.23



1) Includes results of operations of CEMEX, Inc. for the two-month period
ended December 31, 2000 (see note 8A).

2) CEMEX, Inc.'s ten-month period ended October 31, 2000 is reported in its
2000 annual audited financial statements.

3) For purposes of the pro forma information presented in the table above,
"CEMEX, Inc. ten-months pro forma adjustments" column, reflect the
acquisition of CEMEX, Inc. for the ten months ended October 31, 2000, as
if it had occurred at the beginning of that year. The summary of the pro
forma adjustments is as follows:

3.1) The anticipated interest expense of U.S.$88.5 million in 2000,
resulting from the U.S.$1,328 million debt financing assumed in
connection with CEMEX, Inc. acquisition, which was determined with a
weighted average interest rate of 8%, representative of the
borrowing conditions.
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3.2) The estimated amortization expense of U.S.$53.8 million in 2000,
arising from the U.S.$1,161.9 million goodwill recorded in the
acquisition, resulting from the allocation of the net purchase price
of U.S.$2,720.3 million, including adjusting assets and liabilities
to fair value at the date of the acquisition. The purchase price
includes approximately U.S.$2,628.3 million to acquire 100% of the
outstanding shares of common stock and approximately U.S.$48 million
to liquidate stock options of CEMEX, Inc., while the remainder
relates primarily to change of control payments, investment banking
fees and other transaction costs.

3.3) The additional estimated depreciation expense of U.S.$46.3 million
in 2000 resulting from the revaluation of property, machinery and
equipment.

3.4) The income tax benefit at the statutory rate of U.S.$47.2 million in
2000 resulting from the additional depreciation and interest
expense.

3.5) The anticipated preferred dividends of U.S.$103.3 million in 2000
resulting from U.S.$1.5 billion preferred equity financing
transaction used by CEMEX for the acquisition (see note 14F).

As mentioned in note 8A, during 2001 the Company acquired CEMEX Thailand
(formerly Saraburi) and other acquisitions for an aggregate amount of U.S$214.5
million, and during 2002 the Company acquired Puerto Rican Cement Company and
other minor acquisitions for an aggregate of U.S.$242.3 million, not including
approximately U.S.$235 million spent to acquire minority interests, of which
U.S.$95 million is related to Solid and U.S.$142.3 million relates to the
forward acquisition of CAH shares. For purposes of disclosure under APB 16 for
the years ended December 31, 2001 and 2002, the Company determined that the
impact of such acquisitions on the Company's consolidated amounts was not
material.

(u) Sale of Accounts Receivable

The Company accounts for transfers of receivables under Mexican GAAP
consistently with the rules set forth by SFAS 140 "Accounting for Transfers and
Surveying of Financial Assets and Extinguishments of Liabilities". Under SFAS
140, transactions that meet the criteria for surrender of control are recorded
as sales of receivables and their amounts are removed from the consolidated
balance sheet at the time they are sold (see note 4).

(v) Financial Instruments with Characteristics of both Liabilities and Equity



In May 2003, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued SFAS 150, which
requires an issuer to classify financial instruments as liabilities (or assets
under certain circumstances) when they meet the following criteria: 1) a
financial instrument issued in the form of shares that is mandatorily
redeemable, through the unconditional obligation of transferring its assets at
a specified or determinable date (or dates) or upon an event that is certain to
occur; ii) a financial instrument, other than an outstanding share, that, at
inception, embodies an obligation to repurchase the issuer's equity shares, or
is indexed to such an obligation, and that requires or may require the issuer
to settle the obligation by transferring assets (for example, a forward
purchase contract or written put option on the issuer's equity shares that is
to be physically settled or net cash settled); and iii) a financial instrument
that embodies an unconditional obligation, which the issuer must or may settle
by issuing a variable number of its equity shares if, at inception, the
monetary value of the obligation is based solely or predominantly in a fixed
monetary amount known at inception, if variations are based in something other
than the fair value of the issuer's equity shares, or if variations are
inversely related to changes in the fair value of the issuer's equity shares.
SFAS 150 is effective for all transactions entered into or modified after May
31, 2003, and otherwise is effective at the beginning of the first interim
period beginning after June 15, 2003; however, early adoption is permitted;
therefore, the Company elected to implement SFAS 150 as of and for the six
months ended June 30, 2003.

Under SFAS 150, a mandatorily redeemable instrument shall be classified as a
liability and initially measured at fair value against equity. Equity forward
contracts that require physical settlement by repurchase of a fixed number of
the issuer's equity shares in exchange for cash shall be measured initially at
the fair value of the shares at inception, adjusted for any consideration or
unstated rights or privileges, against equity. Subsequently, those instruments
should be measured at the net present value of the amount to be paid at
settlement, accruing interest cost using the rate implicit at inception. All
other instruments within the scope of this Statement shall be initially
measured at fair value and subsequently with changes in fair value recognized
in earnings as interest costs. SFAS 150 is to be implemented by reporting the
cumulative effect of a change in an accounting principle for financial
instruments created before the issuance date of the Statement. Restatement is
not permitted.
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Mandatorily Redeemable Instruments

As described in note 14E and 23(e), CEMEX held preferred stock for outstanding
amounts of U.S.$900 million (Ps9,834.2), U.S.$650 million (Ps6,747.0) and
U.S.$650 million (Ps6,799.0) at December 31, 2001, 2002 and June 30, 2003
(unaudited), respectively. This preferred stock is a mandatorily redeemable
financial instrument. As of and for the years ended December 31, 2001, 2002 and
the six months ended June 30, 2002 (unaudited), before SFAS 150 was
implemented, for purposes of the reconciliation of stockholders' equity to U.S.
GAAP and the condensed financial information under U.S. GAAP of note 23 (o), the
outstanding amount was removed from minority interest under Mexican GAAP and
presented as a separate component of mezzanine items. Preferred stock dividends
were recognized in the income statement within minority interest for both
Mexican and U.S. GAAP purposes. As a result of the adoption of SFAS 150, for
purposes of the stockholders' equity reconciliation to U.S. GAAP as of June 30,
2003 (unaudited), preferred stock was recognized at its outstanding amount
(equivalent to its fair value) as a separate component within liabilities, see
note 23(o), for approximately Ps6,799.0 (U.S.$650 million) against minority
interest, which is considered a component of consolidated stockholders' equity
under Mexican GAAP. In the condensed financial information under U.S. GAAP of
note 23 (o) for the six months ended June 30, 2003 (unaudited), preferred stock
dividends in the income statement were reclassified from minority interest
under Mexican GAAP to a separate item of interest cost under U.S. GAAP (see
note 14E).

In addition, as also described in note 14E and 23 (e), CEMEX held capital



securities for outstanding amounts of U.S.$250 million (Ps2,502.5), U.S.$66
million (Ps685.1) and U.S.$66 million (Ps690.4) at December 31, 2001, 2002 and
June 30, 2003 (unaudited), respectively. The capital securities are a
mandatorily redeemable financial instrument. As of and for the years ended
December 31, 2001, 2002 and the six months ended June 30, 2002 (unaudited),
before SFAS 150 was implemented, for purposes of the reconciliation of
stockholders' equity to U.S. GAAP and the condensed financial information under
U.S. GAAP of note 23(0), the outstanding amount was removed from minority
interest under Mexican GAAP and presented as a separate component of mezzanine
items. Capital securities dividends were recognized in the income statement
within minority interest for both Mexican and U.S. GAAP purposes. As a result
of the adoption of SFAS 150, for purposes of the stockholders' equity
reconciliation to U.S. GAAP as of June 30, 2003 (unaudited), capital securities
were recognized at its outstanding amount (equivalent to its fair value) as a
separate component within liabilities, see note 23 (o), for approximately
Ps690.4 (U.S.$66 million) against minority interest, which is considered a
component of consolidated stockholders' equity under Mexican GAAP. In the
condensed financial information under U.S. GAAP of note 23 (o) for the six
months ended June 30, 2003 (unaudited), capital securities dividends in the
income statement were reclassified from minority interest under Mexican GAAP to
a separate item of interest cost under U.S. GAAP (see note 14E).

Equity Forward Contracts in the Company's own Shares

As described in note 16A, the Company held equity forward contracts negotiated
to hedge future exercises under the 105 million warrants program. As of
December 31, 2001, 2002 and June 30, 2003 (unaudited), the notional amounts of
these forwards were U.S.$491.0 million, U.S.$461.1 million and U.S.$454.9
million, respectively. Until December 31, 2002, before SFAS 150 was
implemented, these contracts, whose only settlement option is physical, were
considered equity transactions; however, for purposes of the stockholders'
equity reconciliation to U.S. GAAP as of December 31, 2001 and 2002, the cash
obligation of the Company under the forwards (not considering prepayments) was
reclassified from equity to a separate component of mezzanine items, in a
manner similar to a mandatorily redeemable instrument (see note 23(j)), and the
difference between the forward strike price and the strike price at inception,
was recognized as interest expense in the reconciliation of net income to U.S.
GAAP for the years ended December 31, 2001, 2002 and the six months ended June
30, 2002 (unaudited), see also note 23(o). For Mexican GAAP, the effects of
these forwards are recognized upon settlement as an adjustment to equity and no
periodical recognition is made. As a result of the adoption of SFAS 150, for
purposes of the stockholders' equity reconciliation to U.S. GAAP as of June 30,
2003 (unaudited), the net cash obligation under the forward (cash redemption
amount at the reporting date net of prepayments made of U.S.$101.7 million
(Ps1,064.2)) was recognized as a separate component of liabilities for
approximately U.S.$450 million (Ps4,707.1) against equity. In respect to the
reconciliation of net income to U.S. GAAP as of June 30, 2003 (unaudited), the
implicit interest cost in the contract has been recognized in earnings for
approximately U.S.$6.5 million (Ps68.9), treatment which is consistent with the
recognition made in 2001 and 2002 under U.S. GAAP.
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As also described in notes 15 and 16A, the Company held equity forward
contracts negotiated to hedge future exercises under the variable and voluntary
programs. As of December 31, 2001, 2002 and June 30, 2003 (unaudited), the
notional amounts of these forwards were U.S.$510.1 million, U.S.$436.1 million
and U.S.$678.3 million, respectively. Beginning January 1, 2001 under Mexican
GAAP, these forwards, which can be physical or net cash settled at the
Company's option, have been recognized at their fair market value as assets or
liabilities in the balance sheet and changes in fair value have been recorded
in earnings for the years ended December 31, 2001, 2002 and the six months
ended June 30, 2002 and 2003 (unaudited). The accounting treatment given to
these contracts since 2001 is consistent with SFAS 150; therefore, in respect
to these forwards, no reconciling adjustments are required pursuant to the
implementation of such Statement.



In addition, CEMEX held other equity forward contracts in the Company's own
shares (see note 16A), which can be physical or net cash settled at the
Company's option and which are considered as equity transactions under EITF
00-19 for both Mexican and U.S. GAAP; therefore, until December 31, 2002, the
effects of these forwards were recognized upon settlement as an adjustment to
equity and no periodic recognition was made. As of December 31, 2001, 2002 and
June 30, 2003 (unaudited), the notional amounts of these forwards were
U.S.$394.8 million, U.S.$547.9 million and U.S.$405.2 million, respectively.
Under SFAS 150, these instruments should be initially recognized at their fair
market value as assets or liabilities in the balance sheet and subsequent
changes in fair value recorded in earnings, with the cumulative effect of
adoption recognized as and adjustment to net income. As a result, for purposes
of the reconciliations of stockholders' equity and net income to U.S. GAAP as
of and for the six months ended June 30, 2003 (unaudited), a net liability of
approximately U.S.$50.4 million (Ps527.3) (a liability of approximately
U.S.$57.3 million net of an asset of approximately U.S.$6.9 million) was
recognized as the cumulative effect of change in accounting principle.

As of the reporting date, in respect to the adoption of SFAS 150, the Company
considers that there are no other transactions or instruments subject to the
scope of such Statement in addition to those previously described.

(w) Newly Issued Accounting Pronouncements under U.S. GAAP

In April 2002, the FASB issued SFAS 145 "Rescission of FASB Statements No. 4,
44 and 64, Amendment of FASB Statement No. 13, and Technical Corrections". SFAS
No. 145 amends existing guidance on reporting gains and losses on the
extinguishment of debt to prohibit the classification of the gain or loss as
extraordinary, as the use of such extinguishments have become part of the risk
management strategy of many companies. SFAS No. 145 also amends SFAS No. 13 to
require sale-leaseback accounting for certain lease modifications that have
economic effects similar to sale-leaseback transactions. The provisions of the
statement related to the rescission of Statement No. 4 are applied in fiscal
years beginning after May 15, 2002. Earlier application of these provisions is
encouraged. The provisions of the statement related to Statement No. 13 were
effective for transactions occurring after May 15, 2002, with early application
encouraged. The adoption of SFAS No. 145 is not expected to have a material
effect on the Company's financial statements.

In June 2002, the FASB issued SFAS 146 "Accounting for Costs Associated with
Exit or Disposal Activities". SFAS 146 addresses financial accounting and
reporting for costs associated with exit or disposal activities and nullifies
Emerging Issues Task Force (EITF) Issue 94-3 "Liability Recognition for Certain
Employee Termination Benefits and Other Costs to Exit an Activity". The
provisions of this Statement are effective for exit or disposal activities that
are initiated after December 31, 2002, with early application encouraged. The
adoption of SFAS 146 is not expected to have a material effect on the Company's
financial statements.

In November 2002, the FASB issued Interpretation 45 "Guarantor's Accounting and
Disclosure Requirements for Guarantees, Including Indirect Guarantees of
Indebtedness to Others, an interpretation of FASB Statements 5, 57 and 107 and
a rescission of FASB Interpretation 34". This interpretation elaborates on the
disclosures to be made by a guarantor in its interim and annual financial
statements about its obligations under guarantees issued. The interpretation
also clarifies that a guarantor is required to recognize, at inception of a
guarantee, a liability for the fair value of the obligation undertaken. The
initial recognition and measurement provisions of the interpretation are
applicable to guarantees issued or modified after December 31, 2002 and are not
expected to have a material effect on the Company's financial statements. The
disclosure requirements are effective for financial statements of interim or
annual periods ending after December 15, 2002.
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In connection with the disclosure requirements of Interpretaion 45, related to
the energy generating plant agreement discussed in note 21F, the Company may



also be obligated to purchase the power plant upon the occurrence of specified
material defaults or events, such as failure to pay when due, bankruptcy or
insolvency, and revocation of permits necessary to operate the facility.
Through December 31, 2002, for accounting purposes under Mexican and U.S. GAAP,
the Company has considered this agreement in a manner similar to an operating
lease, based on the contingent characteristics of the Company's obligation and
given that, absent a default under the agreement, the Company's obligations are
limited to the purchase of energy from, and the supply of fuel to, the plant.

In December 2002, the FASB issued SFAS 148 "Accounting for Stock-Based
Compensation - Transition and Disclosure, an amendment of FASB Statement No.
123". This statement amends FASB Statement 123 "Accounting for Stock-Based
Compensation", to provide alternative methods of transition for a voluntary
change to the fair value method of accounting for stock-based employee
compensation. In addition, this statement amends the disclosure requirements of
Statement 123 to require prominent disclosures in both annual and interim
financial statements. Certain of the disclosure modifications are required for
fiscal years ending after December 15, 2002 and are included in the notes to
these consolidated financial statements.

In January 2003, the FASB issued Interpretation 46 "Consolidation of Variable
Interest Entities, an interpretation of ARB 51". This interpretation addresses
the consolidation by business enterprises of variable interest entities as
defined in the interpretation. The interpretation applies immediately to
variable interests in variable interest entities created after January 31,
2003, and to variable interests in variable interest entities obtained after
January 31, 2003. Currently, the Company is performing a review of transactions
which accounting treatment could be affected by this interpretation, in order
to determine the effect on the Company's financial statements. The
interpretation requires certain disclosures in financial statements issued
after January 31, 2003 if it is reasonably possible that the Company will
consolidate or disclose information about variable interest entities when the
interpretation becomes effective. As of June 30, 2003 (unaudited), the Company
does not have any transaction under the scope of Interpretation 46.

(x) Recent Developments (unaudited)

On August 8, 2003, in connection with an increase in the amount available under
our U.S. commercial paper program from U.S.$275 million to U.S.$400 million, we
entered into a First Amended and Restated Reimbursement and Credit Agreement
and a related Depositary Agreement with several lenders. Under the First
Amended and Restated Reimbursement and Credit Agreement, the issuing bank
agreed to issue an irrevocable direct-pay letter of credit in the amount of
U.S.$400 million to provide credit support for the commercial paper program,
and the lenders committed to make loans to us in the event of certain market
disruptions of up to the same amount. In addition, under the First Amended and
Restated Reimbursement and Credit Agreement we obtained a U.S.$200 million
standby letter of credit facility for the issuance of standby letters of credit
in support of certain of our and any of our subsidiaries' obligations,
including in support of contingent liabilities arising in connection with
forward sale contracts, leases, insurance contracts and arrangements, service
contracts, equipment contracts, financing transactions and other payment
obligations. The total amount available under the U.S. commercial paper
program, the letters of credit and any loans under the First Amended and
Restated Reimbursement and Credit Agreement cannot exceed U.S.$400 million.
CEMEX Mexico and Empresas Tolteca de Mexico S.A. de C.V., two of our Mexican
subsidiaries, are guarantors of our obligations under the First Amended and
Restated Reimbursement and Credit Agreement.
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(y) Guaranteed debt

In June 2000, CEMEX concluded the issuance of up to U.S.$200 million aggregate
principal amount of 9.625% Exchange Notes due 2009 in a registered public



offering in the United States of America in exchange for U.S.$200 million
aggregate principal amount of its then outstanding 9.625% Notes due 2009. The
Exchange Notes are fully and unconditionally guaranteed, on a joint and several
basis, as to payment of principal and interest by two of the Company's Mexican
subsidiaries: CEMEX Mexico and Empresas Tolteca de Mexico, S.A. de C.V.
("ETM") . These two companies, together with their subsidiaries, account for
substantially all of the revenues and operating income of CEMEX's Mexican
operations. During 1999, through a series of mergers, the cement and ready-mix
concrete operations of the Company in Mexico were integrated into CEMEX Mexico
(see note 2C). CEMEX Mexico is also the holding company for the Company's
non-Mexican operations.

As mentioned in note 12, as of December 31, 2001 and 2002, indebtedness of the
Company in an aggregate amount of U.S.$ 2,196 million and U.S.$2,339 million,

respectively, is fully and unconditionally guaranteed, on a joint and several

basis, by CEMEX Mexico and ETM. The Company's indebtedness guaranteed by these
two subsidiaries did not increase as a result of the exchange offer described

above.

During December 2002, the Company and one of its subsidiaries established sales
of trade accounts receivables program ("securitization program"). With this
program, the Company effectively transferred control risks and benefits related
to some of the trade accounts receivables balances. These balances amounted to
Psl,426 from CEMEX Mexico and Ps737 from its subsidiary.

As of December 31, 2001 and 2002, the Company owned a 100% equity interest in
CEMEX Mexico, including a 2% and a 0.6% equity interest, respectively, held by
a Mexican trust in connection with an equity financing transaction due in 2007
(see note 14F), and CEMEX Mexico owned a 100% equity interest in 2001 and 2002
in ETM. During October and November 2001, CEMEX Mexico and ETM carried out
individually, a reverse stock split. Through this operation, stockholders of
CEMEX Mexico and ETM were entitled to receive one new share for each 130
million old shares and one new share for each 20 million old shares,
respectively. Pursuant to these transactions, the shares of any shareholder not
meeting the minimum number required for the reverse stock split, were
liquidated and converted into the right to receive a cash ligquidation. As a
result, as of December 31, 2001, in the consolidated balance sheet of the
Company, an account payable of Ps416.6 million was created in favor of the old
shareholders against CEMEX Mexico and ETM stockholders' equity. During 2002,
CEMEX Mexico and ETM paid no material amounts to the old shareholders. On
December 7, 2002, the period granted by Mexican law for the old shareholders to
claim their rights under the reverse stock split expired. As prescribed by law,
the unclaimed amount after the expiration date should be reimbursed to the
entity's stockholders' equity; as a result, the account payable as of the
expiration date was cancelled against stockholders' equity as of December 31,
2002. In addition, resulting from the reverse stock split, the equity interest
of the Company in both subsidiaries increased to 100%.

For purposes of the accompanying condensed consolidated balance sheets, income
statements and statements of changes in financial position under Mexican GAAP,
the first column, "CEMEX," corresponds to the parent company issuer, which has
no material operations other than its investments in subsidiaries and
affiliated companies. The second column, "Combined Guarantors", represents the
combined amounts of CEMEX Mexico and ETM on a Parent Company-only basis, after
adjustments and eliminations relating to their combination. The third column,
"Combined non-guarantors", represents the amounts of the Company's
international subsidiaries, CEMEX Mexico and ETM non-Guarantor subsidiaries,
and other immaterial Mexican non-guarantor subsidiaries of the Company. The
fourth column, "Adjustments and eliminations", includes all the amounts
resulting from consolidation of CEMEX, the Guarantors and the non-guarantor
subsidiaries, as well as the corresponding constant pesos adjustment as of June
30, 2003, for the years ended December 31, 2000, 2001, 2002 and the six months
ended June 30, 2002 described below. The fifth column, "CEMEX Consolidated",
represents the Company's consolidated amounts as reported in the audited
consolidated financial statements. Additionally, all the amounts presented
under the line item "Investments in affiliates" for both the balance sheet and
the income statement are accounted for by the equity method.
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As mentioned in note 2B, according to Mexican GAAP's Bulletin B-15, the
financial statements of those entities with foreign consolidated subsidiaries
should be presented in constant pesos as of the latest balance sheet presented,
considering the inflation of each country in which the entity operates, as well
as the changes in the exchange rate between the functional currency of each
country vis-a-vis the reporting currency (in this case, the Mexican peso). As a
result of the aforementioned, for comparability purposes the condensed
financial information of CEMEX, the "Combined Guarantors" and the "Combined
non-guarantors" amounts have been adjusted to reflect constant pesos as of June
30, 2003, using the Mexican inflation index arising from the NCPI. Therefore,
the corresponding inflation adjustment derived from the application of Bulletin
B-15 in the consolidated amounts is presented within the "Adjustments and
eliminations" column.

The condensed consolidated financial information is as follows:

Condensed consolidated balance sheets:

Adjustments
Combined Combined and CEMEX
As of December 31, 2001 CEMEX Guarantors non-guarantors eliminations Consolidated

CUFTeNnt ASSeLS.u.icuiienteneeneonennenneneenns Ps 15,768.5 16,029.9 48,870.4 (56,948.8) 23,720.0
Investment in affiliates.................... 18,837.4 68,061.9 10,052.0 (91,666.1) 5,285.2
Other non-current assets.................... 58,174.8 1,145.9 5,970.8 (63,308.3) 1,983.2
Property, machinery and equipment........... 1,715.1 26,301.4 59,752.9 3,665.7 91,435.1
Deferred charges........oouiiiiiinennnnnnnnn 4,626.2 6,052.1 73,166.5 (40,279.1) 43,565.7

Total @sSetS...iiineeennnnreennnnanens 99,122.0 117,591.2 197,812.6 (248,536.6) 165,989.2
Current liabilities............ciiiinneanns 9,056.1 24,096.2 26,922.1 (36,075.0) 23,999.4
Long-term debt.......iiiiiiiiiiinnnnnn. 26,227.1 243.6 8,852.3 9,112.7 44,435.7
Other non-current liabilities............... 669.6 75,539.6 23,433.2 (85,460.6) 14,181.8

Total liabilities.............ccoviinnins 35,952.8 99,879.4 59,207.6 (112,422.9) 82,616.9
Majority interest stockholders' equity...... 63,169.2 17,711.8 119,095.5 (136,807.3) 63,169.2

Minority interest.......... ... ..., - - 19,509.5 693.6 20,203.1
Stockholders' equity under Mexican GAAP..... 63,169.2 17,711.8 138,605.0 (136,113.7) 83,372.3
Total liabilities and stockholders' equity.. Ps 99,122.0 117,591.2 197,812.6 (248,536.6) 165,989.2

Adjustments
Combined Combined and CEMEX
As of December 31, 2002 CEMEX Guarantors non-guarantors eliminations Consolidated

Current @ssSetsS.....viuutiiiiineiiannnnanans Ps 21,084.9 10,222.1 58,183.1 (68,781.5) 20,708.6
Investment in affiliates. 77,872.5 77,180.3 8,259.0 (157,375.9) 5,935.9
Other non-current assets.. . 17,276.9 497.3 1,344.3 (17,532.1) 1,586.4
Property, machinery and equipment. 1,708.5 27,851.6 64,391.8 1,104.3 95,056.2
Deferred charges . 6,080.9 6,096.3 81,184.0 (47,659.2) 45,702.0

TOtALl BSSEES. e vttt e ee et ee et 124,023.7 121,847.6 213,362.2 (290,244.4) 168,989.1
Current liabilities............. ... 24,183.4 8,831.9 22,702.0 (24,388.8) 31,328.5
Long-term debt . 37,509.4 6.4 15,261.8 (6,391.4) 46,386.2
Other non-current liabilities............... 1,411.2 50,103.7 17,410.7 (51,369.1) 17,556.5

Total liabilities...............oiiiioo.. 95,271.2
Majority interest stockholders' equity...... ___;67;1;_;___

Minority interest........... ..., -__1;:;;é_;___
Stockholders' equity under Mexican GAAP..... ___;;:;1;_;___
Total liabilities and stockholders' equity.. Ps 124,023.7 121,847.6 213,362.2 (290,244.4) __I;g:;;;jl___
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Adjustments
Combined Combined and CEMEX
As of June 30, 2003 (Unaudited) CEMEX Guarantors non-guarantors eliminations Consolidated
Current assets......ciiiiieninernnennrnnnnns Ps 22,065.9 8,992.6 62,861.4 (67,739.9) 26,180.1
Investment in affiliates.................... 79,146.7 71,820.2 8,612.3 (153,354.4) 6,224.8
Other NON-CUTTENt ASSetS......vneenneennnnnns 18,401.0 538.6 809.1 (18,173.9) 1,574.7
Property, machinery and equipment........... 1,705.6 28,471.3 64,218.5 4.6 94,400.0
Deferred ChArgesS. . ...ttt 6,037.0 5,598.1 80,783.4 (46,106.6) 46,311.9
TOLALl BSSEES. e v e e te et eete et 127,356.2 115,420.8 217,284.7 (285,370.2) 174,691.5
Current liabilities 27,042.1 11,035.8 27,059.6 (28,476.4) 36,660.8
Long-term debt.......... 18,096.2 15.0 19,996.5 1,895.0 40,002.8
Other non-current liabilities............... 19,408.5 47,104.3 10,846.0 (54,306.3) 23,052.6
Total liabilities...............iiiinaa.. 64,546.7 58,155.1 57,902.1 (80,887.7) 99,716.2
Majority interest stockholders' equity...... 62,809.5 57,265.7 145,138.4 (202,404.1) 62,809.5
Minority interest............. i - - 14,244.2 (2,078.4) 12,165.8
Stockholders' equity under Mexican GAAP..... 62,809.5 57,265.7 159,382.6 (204,482.5) 74,975.3
Total liabilities and stockholders' equity.. Ps 127,356.2 115,420.8 217,284.7 (285,370.2) 174,691.5
Condensed consolidated income statements:
Adjustments
Combined Combined and CEMEX
For the year ended December 31, 2000 CEMEX Guarantors non-guarantors eliminations Consolidated
SALES e e ettt e e e Ps - 23,787.5 43,110.4 (7,194.7) 59,703.2
Operating income... (102.4) 6,395.8 6,377.1 4,896.1 17,566.6
Comprehensive financing result 111.3 (1,768.0) (3,154.2) 2,964.8 (1,846.1)
Other income (expense), net. 3,249.2 (882.2) (893.5) (3,962.2) (2,488.7)
Income tax . . 951.4 (135.2) (2,653.9) (220.2) (2,057.9)
Equity in income of affiliates............... 6,405.0 (247.8) 104.6 (5,993.1) 268.7
Consolidated net income............... ... 10,614.5 3,362.6 (219.9) (2,314.6) 11,442.6
MinOTity intereSt.....uueeeeeeunnneeeennnnn - - (768.5) 1,596.6 828.1
Majority Net ANCOME. ......eeeeuuuneeeeennnnnns Ps 10,614.5 3,362.6 548.6 (3,911.2) 10,614.5
Adjustments
Combined Combined and CEMEX
For the year ended December 31, 2001 CEMEX Guarantors non-guarantors eliminations Consolidated
o B Ps - 22,114.3 53,075.4 (4,383.5) 70,806.2
Operating income . (87.7) 1,581.7 5,948.7 9,466.3 16,909.0
Comprehensive financing result.. 33.1 1,419.5 2,588.7 (1,334.4) 2,706.9
Other income (expense), net. 106.6 2,029.4 3,293.0 (9,693.4) (4,264.4)
Income taX...eveenwnreeennnnn . 1,352.5 590.4 (1,682.5) (2,208.0) (1,947.6)
Equity in income of affiliates.. 10,641.1 2,647.9 360.5 (13,439.8) 209.7
Consolidated net income.........coveuvuneunnnn 12,045.6 8,268.9 10,508.4 (17,209.3) 13,613.6
Minority interest........... ..., - - 1,157.3 410.7 1,568.0

Majority net income............... ... ... Ps 12,045.6 8,268.9 9,351.1 (17,620.0) 12,045.6
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Adjustments
Combined Combined and CEMEX



For the year ended December 31, 2002 CEMEX Guarantors non-guarantors eliminations Consolidated
o= B = U PP Ps - 22,001.3 49,384.2 (1,994.2) 69,391.3
Operating income... (107.5) 3,246.2 5,489.9 5,268.6 13,897.2
Comprehensive financing result............... (1,389.6) (6,455.8) (3,701.8) 8,054.2 (3,493.0)
Other income (expense), nNet.................. 126.3 (332.0) 6,160.3 (10,083.0) (4,128.4)
INCOME LaX. e e et eniiieeennnnannnnn 2,234.1 (1,263.4) (1,268.7) (392.8) (690.8)
Equity in income of affiliates............... 4,654.3 1,614.2 (2.3) (5,940.6) 325.6
Consolidated net iNCOME.....ueeueenneennennnn. 5,517.6 (3,190.8) 6,677.4 (3,093.6) 5,910.6
Minority interest...............c.iiiiiiia. - - 85.8 307.2 393.0
Majority net inCcome..........ouiuiuueennnnnnnns Ps 5,517.6 (3,190.8) 6,591.6 (3,400.8) 5,517.6
Adjustments
For the six months ended June 30, 2002 Combined Combined and CEMEX
(unaudited) CEMEX Guarantors non-guarantors eliminations Consolidated
o Ps - 10,745.0 25,090.0 (1,822.1) 34,012.9
Operating income. . . . . (37.4) 5,021.0 1,666.6 785.9 7,436.1
Comprehensive financing result.. 1,795.7 (5,537.7) (389.4) 3,069.9 (1,061.5)
Other income (expense), nNet.................. (755.5) (3,842.1) 2,841.3 (433.2) (2,189.5)
INCOME LAX.tttrnmnneoeennnonneoensnnanesennnns - 1,598.6 (714.9) (1,428.6) (544.9)
Equity in income of affiliates............... 2,583.9 1,257.7 (3,781.7) 128.3
Consolidated net income.........oveuevuneunnnn 3,586.7 (1,502.5) (1,787.7)
Minority interest........... ... ..., - - 93.2 181.8
Majority net income............ .. i Ps 3,586.7 (1,502.5) 3,383.4 (1,880.9) 3,586.7
Adjustments
For the six months ended June 30, 2003 Combined Combined and CEMEX
(unaudited) CEMEX Guarantors non-guarantors eliminations Consolidated
o= B = P Ps - 11,844.6 27,341.6 (2,684.0) 36,502.2
Operating income... . (35.8) 1,408.5 2,120.8 3,803.4 7,296.8
Comprehensive financing result.. 1,058.9 (2,650.9) (645.0) 1,444.9 (792.1)
Other income (expense), net. (1.4) 641.5 1,808.0 (4,279.9) (1,831.8)
INCOME tAX. e v eweuneonennnnn . - 318.8 913.0 (1,833.4) (601.4)
Equity in income of affiliates.. 3,081.9 (357.9) 30.4 (2,606.5) 147.9
Consolidated net iNCOME.....ueeueenneennennn. 4,103.6 (640.0) 4,227.2 (3,471.5) 4,219.4
Minority interest...........iuiiiiiiiiiinnn. - - (184.5) 300.3 115.8
Majority net inCome..........ouiuiuueennnnnnnn. Ps 4,103.6 (640.0) 4,411.7 (3,771.8) 4,103.6
F-69
CEMEX, S.A. DE C.V. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (Continued)
December 31, 2000, 2001, 2002 and June 30, 2003
(Millions of constant Mexican Pesos as of June 30, 2003)
Condensed consolidated statements of changes in financial position:
Adjustments
Combined Combined and CEMEX
For the year ended December 31, 2000 CEMES Guarantors non-guarantors eliminations Consolidated
Operating activities:
Majority net income.. Ps 10,614.5 3,362.6 548.6 (3,911.2) 10,614.5
Non-cash items..........oeiiiiiiieinnnnna., (6,863.4) 788.9 7,926.1 4,886.0 6,737.6
Resources provided by operations........... 3,751.1 4,151.5 8,474.7 974.8 17,352.1
Net change in working capital................ (9,023.4) 4,529.4 6,090.8 (464.5) 1,132.3
Resources provided by operations, net...... (5,272.3) 8,680.9 14,565.5 510.3 18,484.4
Financing activities:
Bank loans and notes payable, net............ 2,130.7 (787.5) 10,884.0 (959.2) 11,268.0
Dividends paid........iiiiiiiiiiiiiiianina. (2,438.0) - (517.3) 517.3 (2,438.0)
Issuance of common stock..................u.t 2,268.7 - - 2,268.7



Issuance of preferred stock by subsidiaries.. - 16,254.3 (182.0) 16,072.3
OLRET S e e et et e e e e e e e e e (172.5) (831.9) (484.0) (3,438.4) (4,926.8)

Resources used in financing activities..... 1,788.9 (1,619.4) 26,137.0 (4,062.3) 22,244.2
Investing activities:
Property, machinery and equipment, net....... - (529.3) (2,252.5) 31.2 (2,750.6)
Acquisitions, net of cash acquired........... (9,489.5) (4,062.6) (18,547.1) 4,403.8 (27,695.4)
Dividends received........oiiiueninennnnnnnn, 522.7 - - (522.7) -
Minority interest............ oo, - - (5,691.9) 63.9 (5,628.0)
Deferred charges and others.................. 12,444.6 (3,177.8) (14,404.1) 247.3 (4,890.0)
Resources used in investing activities..... 3,477.8 (7,769.7) (40,895.6) 4,223.5 (40,964.0)
Change in cash and investments............. (5.6) (708.2) (193.1) 671.5 (235.4)
Cash and investments initial balance....... 66.8 2,557.3 2,933.7 (2,049.7) 3,508.1
Cash and investments ending balance........ Ps 61.2 1,849.1 2,740.6 (1,378.2) 3,272.7
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Adjustments
Combined Combined and CEMEX
For the year ended December 31, 2001 CEMEX Guarantors non-guarantors eliminations Consolidated
Operating activities:
Majority net income Ps 12,045.6 8,268.9 9,351.1 (17,620.0) 12,045.6
Non-cash items... (10, 655.3) (1,757.1) 3,110.8 19,308.0 10,006.4
Resources provided by operations......... 1,390.3 6,511.8 12,461.9 1,688.0 22,052.0
Net change in working capital............... (7,687.3) 6,023.4 2,238.3 1,512.4 2,086.8
Resources provided by operations, net.... (6,297.0) 12,535.2 14,700.2 3,200.4 24,138.8
Financing activities:
Bank loans and notes payable, net........... 1,822.2 (56.5) (15,241.9) 8,636.3 (4,839.9)
Dividends paid.......cuiiuiiiiiiiiiia. (3,115.4) - 8,841.6 (8,841.6) (3,115.4)
Issuance of COMMON STEOCK. ...uuuneeruunnnnnns 3,048.4 - - - 3,048.4
Issuance of preferred stock by subsidiaries. - - (6,508.1) (220.1) (6,728.2)
DL RO TS e e ettt et e e e e e s 384.6 47,794.1 (9,493.5) (41,357.8) (2,672.6)
Resources used in financing activities... 2,139.8 47,737.6 (22,401.9) (41,783.2) (14,307.7)
Investing activities:
Property, machinery and equipment, net...... - (784.3) (4,217.5) 526.2 (4,475.6)
Acquisitions, net of cash acquired 41,340.4 (60,977.6) (22,201.7) 39,782.1 (2,056.8)
Minority interest............... [ - - (99.9) (4.5) (104.4)
Deferred charges and others................. (37,079.0) 704.5 33,787.6 501.1 (2,085.8)
Resources used in investing activities... 4,261.4 (61,057.4) 7,268.5 40,804.9 (8,722.6)
Change in cash and investments........... 104.2 (784.6) (433.2) 2,222.1 1,108.5
Cash and investments initial balance..... 61.2 1,849.1 2,740.6 (1,378.2) 3,272.7
Cash and investments ending balance...... Ps 165.4 1,064.5 2,307.4 843.9 4,381.2
Adjustments
Combined Combined and CEMEX
For the year ended December 31, 2002 CEMEX Guarantors non-guarantors eliminations Consolidated
Operating activities:
Majority net income............oiiiiiuunnnnnn Ps 5,517.6 (3,190.8) 6,591.6 (3,400.8) 5,517.6
Non-cash items.........oieiiiiniiieinnnnnn (5,751.0) 1,076.0 19,941.2 (7,198.2) 8,068.0
Resources provided by operations......... (233.4) (2,114.8) 26,532.8 (10,599.0) 13,585.6
Net change in working capital............... 1,102.4 5,089.8 (27,437.6) 25,303.2 4,057.8
Resources provided by operations, net.... 869.0 2,975.0 (904.8) 14,704.2 17,643.4
Financing activities:
Bank loans and notes payable, net........... 7,382.7 64.5 (5,102.3) - 2,344.9
Dividends paid........iiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiin. (3,467.8) (2,196.3) 2.4 2,193.9 (3,467.8)
Issuance of common stock...............ouun 3,193.4 52,047.3 14,667.4 (66,714.8) 3,193.3
Issuance of preferred stock by subsidiaries. - - (4,282.5) - (4,282.5)
OthersS. .. iieeiteienenerseessoretsaonanannos 371.1 (52,220.9) 54,603.5 - 2,753.7
Resources used in financing activities... 7,479.4 (2,305.4) 59,888.5 (64,520.9) 541.6
Investing activities:
Property, machinery and equipment, - (1,075.7) (2,812.2) (39.6) (3,927.5)
Acquisitions, net of cash acquired (64,004.4) 11,638.3 568.8 49,002.5 (2,794.8)
Dividends received. 2,216.2 - - 2,216.2 -
Minority interest........ . - - (3,024.1) - (3,024.1)
Deferred charges and others 53,646.7 (10,438.8) (52,843.6) 646.0 (8,989.7)
Resources used in investing activities... (8,141.5) 123.8 (58,111.1) 47,392.7 (18,736.1)
Change in cash and investments........... 206.9 793.4 872.6 (2,424.0) (551.1)
Cash and investments initial balance..... 165.4 1,064.5 2,307.4 843.9 4,381.2

Cash and investments ending balance...... Ps 372.3 1,857.9 3,180.0 (1,580.1) 3,830.1
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Adjustments
For the six months ended June 30, 2002 Combined Combined and CEMEX
(unaudited) CEMEX Guarantors non-guarantors eliminations Consolidated
Operating activities:
Majority net income.. . . iiiiee... Ps 3,586.7 (1,502.5) 3,383.4 (1,880.9) 3,586.7
Non-cash 1temsS. ... tineinenennennennenns (1,784.3) (2,198.6) 8,131.0 (348.8) 3,799.3
Resources provided by operations......... 1,802.4 (3,701.1) 11,514.4 (2,229.7) 7,386.0
Net change in working capital............... (79,579.4) 8,506.9 69,357.6 1,758.3 43.4
Resources provided by operations, net.... (77,777.0) 4,805.8 80,872.0 (471.4) 7,429.4
Financing activities:
Bank loans and notes payable, net........... 9,125.5 12.5 (5,610.8) - 3,527.2
Dividends paid......oiiiiiiiiinn i (3,467.5) - - - (3,467.4)
Issuance of common stock................ ... 3,192.9 - - - 3,192.9
Issuance of preferred stock by subsidiaries. - - (4,200.3) - (4,200.3)
OLherS.. i i ieeeneeetsoansoocisacnanannas 16,480.1 - (68,243.9) 52,052.2 288.4
Resources used in financing activities... 25,331.1 12.5 (78,055.0) (659.2)
52,052.2
Investing activities:
Property, machinery and equipment, net...... (51.2} (374.3) (1,184.4) - (1,609.9)
Acquisitions, net of cash acquired.......... 7,921.8 (4,110.3) (3,739.9) (71.6) -
Minority interest........o.uiiiniuiuinnennnnnnnn - - (1,907.6) - (1,907.6)
Deferred charges and others................. 44,592.4 285.6 4,436.7 (52,049.8) (2,735.1)
Resources used in investing activities... 52,463.0 (4,199.0) (2,395.2) (52,121.4) (6,252.6)
Change in cash and investments........... 17.1 619.3 421.8 (540.6) 517.6
Cash and investments initial balance..... 165.4 1,064.5 2,307.6 843.9 4,381.2
Cash and investments ending balance...... Ps 182.5 1,683.8 2,729.4 303.3 4,898.8
Adjustments
For the six months ended June 30, 2003 Combined Combined and CEMEX
(unaudited) CEMEX Guarantors non-guarantors eliminations Consolidated
Operating activities:
Operating activities:
Majority net income.. . . ciiiee... Ps 4,103.6 (640.0) 4,411.7 (3,771.8) 4,103.6
Non-cash 1temsS. ...t in et enennenneneenns (3,303.5) 622.6 11,264.9 (4,318.8) 4,265.2
Resources provided by operations......... 800.1 (17.4) 15,676.6 (8,090.6) 8,368.8
Net change in working capital............... (1,271.1) 2,728.6 (8,663.9) 4,531.1 (2,675.3)
Resources provided by operations, net.... (471.0) 2,711.2 7,012.7 (3,559.5) 5,693.5
Financing activities:
Bank loans and notes payable, net........... (192.8) 15.0 (189.4) - (367.3
Dividends paid.......viiiiiiiiiinnnnnnn (3,664.4) - - - (3,664.4)
Issuance of common stock 3,606.6 - - - 3,606.6
Issuance of preferred stock by subsidiaries. - - 13.1 - 13.1
Others. . i i i it e e 197.2 (2,871.2) 3,062.7 3,515.6 3,904.3
Resources used in financing activities... (53.4) (2,856.2) 2,886.4 3,515.6 3,492.3
Investing activities:
Property, machinery and equipment, - (304.1) (1,440.6) - (1,744.7)
Acquisitions, net of cash acquired (60.3) - 684.2 (623.9) -
Minority interest............... [ - - - (761.3) (761.3)
Deferred charges and others................. 541.6 (225.1) (4,727.8) 1,337.0 (3,074.3)
Resources used in investing activities... 481.3 (529.2) (5,484.2) (48.2) (5,580.3)
Change in cash and investments........... (43.1) (674.2) 4,414.9 (92.1) 3,605.5
Cash and investments initial balance..... 372.3 1,857.9 3,180.0 (1,580.1) 3,830.1
Cash and investments ending balance...... Ps 329.5 1,183.7 7,594.9 (1,672.2) 7,435.6
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The tables below present consolidated balance sheets as of December 31, 2001
and 2002, and June 30, 2003 (unaudited), and income statements and statements
of changes in financial position for each of the three-year periods ended
December 31, 2002 and the six months ended June 30, 2002 and 2003 (unaudited)
for the Guarantors. Such information presents in separate columns each
individual Guarantor on a Parent Company-only basis, consolidation adjustments
and eliminations, and the combined Guarantors. All significant related parties
balances and transactions between the Guarantors have been eliminated in the
"Combined Guarantors" column.

The amounts presented in the column "Combined Guarantors" are readily
comparable with the information of the Guarantors included in the condensed
consolidated financial information. As previously described, amounts presented
under the line item "Investments in affiliates" for both the balance sheets and
income statements, include the net investment in affiliates accounted for by
the equity method. In addition, the Guarantors' reconciliation of net income
and stockholders' equity to U.S. GAAP are presented below:

Guarantors' Combined Balance Sheets:

December 31, 2001 Guarantors (Parent Company-only)
Assets Adjustments
ffffff and Combined
CEMEX Mexico ETM eliminations Guarantors
Current Assets
Cash and investmentsS.........ouutiiiiiiieennninnennnn Ps 406.5 658.0 - 1,064.5
Trade accounts receivable, 1,849.0 - - 1,849.0
Other receivables and other current assets........... 1,621.1 1,553.5 - 3,174.6
Related parties receivables.............ciiiiuneann. 8,742.5 17,888.9 (18,049.1) 8,582.3
B0 0B o o o 1,359.5 - - 1,359.5
Total CUrrent asSetS......eeieeennenneneennenennns 13,978.6 20,100.4 (18,049.1) 16,029.9
Other Investments
Investments in subsidiaries and affiliates........... 92,808.8 15,870.1 (40,617.0) 68,061.9
Long-term related parties receivables.... 851.2 - - 851.2
Other investments.......... .. .iiiiiiiiiiieinniinnnnnn 157.2 137.6 (0.1) 294.7
Total other investments....................oiuu... 93,817.2 16,007.7 (40,617.1) 69,207.8
Property, plant and equipment.............. ... 26,301.4 - - 26,301.4
Deferred Charges......iuiiinntiiiinnnn s 1,996.0 4,868.9 (812.8) 6,052.1
Total ASSetLS..uiiini et ineenieenaannnans Ps 136,093.2 40,977.0 (59,479.0) 117,591.2
Liabilities and Stockholders' Equity
Current Liabilities
Current maturities of long-term debt 5.2 - - 5.2
Trade accounts payable..............oo.o... U, 386.4 - - 386.4
Other accounts payable and accrued expenses. 2,171.2 169.2 - 2,340.4
Related parties payables................. 39,245.9 167.3 (18,049.1) 21,364.1
Total current liabilities......................... 41,808.7 336.5 (18,049.1) 24,096.1
Total long-term debt.......iuiiiiiiiiiiiniiinnnnnnnn 243.6 - - 243.6
Other Noncurrent Liabilities
6,433.8 - (812.9) 5,620.9
- 23.5 - 23.5
69,895.2 - - 69,895.2
76,329.0 23.5 (812.9) 75,539.6
Total Liabilities.........iiiiiiiiiiiiieiiiina., 118,381.3 360.0 (18,862.0) 99,879.3
Stockholders' equity. ... .ttt 9,443.0 39,023.5 (39,023.5) 9,443.0
Net InCOome. .. .ue it ieineneteieennnaeeoeannnaennns 8,268.9 1,593.5 (1,593.5) 8,268.9
Total stockholders' eqUiTY....everunneeeennnnnennnns 17,711.9 40,617.0 (40,617.0) 17,711.9
Total Liabilities and Stockholders' Equity........ Ps 136,093.2 40,977.0 (59,479.0) 117,591.2
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Guarantors' Combined Balance Sheets:

December 31, 2002 Guarantors (Parent Company-only)
Adjustments
and Combined
Assets CEMEX Mexico ETM eliminations Guarantors
Current Assets
Cash and investments..........cciuiiiiiiinnnnnnn. Ps 1,259.4 598.5 - 1,857.9
Trade accounts receivable, net 333.1 = - 333.1
Other receivables and other current assets. 855.0 894.7 (49.7) 1,700.0
Related parties receivables 2,951.3 4,637.3 (2,813.5) 4,775.1
Inventories. . 1,556.0 - - 1,556.0
Total current assetS.....eeeeeneeeeeenennaeenn 6,954.8 6,130.5 (2,863.2) 10,222.1
Other Investments
Investments in subsidiaries and affiliates........ 101,019.2 14,843.6 (38,682.5) 77,180.3
Long-term related parties receivables 293.2 13,718.1 (13,718.1) 293.2
Other investments 204.1 - 204.1
Total other investments....................... 101,516.5 28,561.7 (52,400.6) 77,677.6
Property, plant and equipment..........coevveenunnn 27,851.6 - - 27,851.6
Deferred Charges 2,063.1 4,119.0 (85.8) 6,096.3
Total Assets Ps 138,386.0 38,811.2 (55,349.6) 121,847.6
Liabilities and Stockholders' Equity
Current Liabilities
Current maturities of long-term debt 254.7 - - 254.7
Trade accounts payable 396.1 - - 396.1
Other accounts payable and accrued expenses.. 1,222.1 76.6 (49.9) 1,248.8
Related parties payables 9,745.7 - (2,813.4) 6,932.3
Total current liabilities..................... 11,618.6 76.6 (2,863.3) 8,831.9
Total long-term debt........ ..ot 6.4 - - 6.4
Other Noncurrent Liabilities
Deferred income taxes.. 7,578.0 - (85.8) 7,492.2
- 52.1 - 52.1
Long-term related parties payables.. 56,277.4 - (13,718.0) 42,559.4
Total other noncurrent liabilities............ 63,855.4 52.1 (13,803.8) 50,103.7
Total Liabilities.........oeiiiiiniiniinnns 75,480.4 128.7 (16,667.1) 58,942.0
Stockholders' equity.....oovuiiiiiiiiiiiiiinnn. 66,096.4 39,964.7 (39,964.7) 66,096.4
Net INCOME. . tuunneettiiiiee e iiiiieneeiiaanneannns (3,190.8) (1,282.2) 1,282.2 (3,190.8)
Total stockholders' equity........covvuivvnnnnn 62,905.6 38,682.5 (38,682.5) 62,905.6
Total Liabilities and Stockholders' Equity.... Ps 138,386.0 38,811.2 (55,349.6) 121,847.6
F-74
CEMEX, S.A. DE C.V. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (Continued)
December 31, 2000, 2001, 2002 and June 30, 2003
(Millions of constant Mexican Pesos as of June 30, 2003)
Guarantors' Combined Balance Sheets:
June 30, 2003 (unaudited) Guarantors (Parent Company-only)
Adjustments
and Combined
Assets CEMEX Mexico ETM eliminations Guarantors

Current Assets
Cash and investments. ......uuiiineeeiennnnnnnnnn Ps 534.9 648.8 - 1,183.7



Trade accounts receivable, net 418.4 - . 418.4
Other receivables and other current assets... 989.2 1,114.4 (107.9) 1,995.7
Related parties receivables 3,841.7 4,373.0 (4,370.3) 3,844.4
Inventories 1,550.4 - - 1,550.4
Total current assets.. 7,334.6 6,136.2 (4,478.2) 8,992.6
Other Investments
Investments in subsidiaries and affiliates... 95,491.9 14,514.4 (38,186.1) 71,820.2
Long-term related parties receivables 265.8 13,563.4 (13,563.4) 265.8
Other investments 272.8 - - 272.8
Total other investments....................... 96,030.5 28,077.8 (51,749.5) 72,358.8
Property, plant and equipment..........coevvuennnnn 28,471.3 - - 28,471.3
Deferred ChargesS. vt iiiiieiinnnnneeennnnnnens 1,578.0 4,147.4 (127.3) 5,598.1
Total ASSetS..iiiieiiiini ittt ieeneennnn Ps 133,414.4 38,361.4 (56,355.0) 115,420.8
Liabilities and Stockholders' Equity
Current Liabilities
Current maturities of long-term debt......... 254.0 - - 254.0
Trade accounts payable..........civviuenn.. 607.9 - - 607.9
Other accounts payable and accrued expenses 1,121.3 116.3 (107.7) 1,129.9
Related parties payables 13,414.4 - (4,370.4) 9,044.0
Total current liabilities..................... 15,397.6 116.3 (4,478.1) 11,035.8
Total long-term debt......... ...t 15.0 - - 15.0
Other Noncurrent Liabilities
Deferred income taxes.. 7,518.9 - (127.3) 7,391.6
.. - 59.0 - 59.0
Long-term related parties payables................ 53,217.2 - (13,563.5) 39,653.7
Total other noncurrent liabilities............ 60,736.1 59.0 (13,690.8) 47,104.3
Total Liabilities..........cooiiiiniininnnnnnnn. 76,148.7 175.3 (18,168.9) 58,155.1
Stockholders' equity.. 57,905.7 38,125.7 (38,125.7) 57,905.7
Net income.. (640.0) 60.4 (60.4) (640.0)
Total stockholders' equity........covvuivinnnnn 57,265.7 38,186.1 (38,186.1) 57,265.7
Total Liabilities and Stockholders' Equity.... Ps 133,414.4 38,361.4 (56,355.0) 115,420.8
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Guarantors' Combined Income Statements:
Guarantors (Parent Company-only)
Adjustments
and Combined
For the year ended December 31, 2000 CEMEX Mexico ETM eliminations Guarantors
Net sales... Ps 23,787.5 . . 23,787.5
Cost of sales (10,396.6) . . (10,396.6)
Gross Profit.. ..t it i i 13,390.9 - - 13,390.9
Total operating EeXPEeNSEeS. ......eeeeeneeenenenenennns (6,994.5) (0.6) - (6,995.1)
Operating INCOME. ...ttt nnieeine e 6,396.4 (0.6) - 6,395.8
Net comprehensive financing result............... (1,614.5) (153.5) - (1,768.0)
Other income (€XPense), NeL......iveetiueenrenenneeneennnn (977.8) 95.6 - (882.2)
Income before IT, BAT, ESPS and equity in affiliates..... 3,804.1 (58.5) - 3,745.6
Total IT, BAT and ESPS.....iutitinnennennennennennns (87.8) (47.4) - (135.2)
Income before equity in income of affiliates........ 3,716.3 (105.9) - 3,610.4
Equity in income of affiliates................... (353.7) (27.8) 133.7 (247.8)
Net dnCome. . .vutiiiiii it i it iiiiiia s Ps 3,362.6 (133.7) 133.7 3,362.6




Guarantors (Parent Company-only)

Adjustments
and Combined
For the year ended December 31, 2001 CEMEX Mexico ETM eliminations Guarantors
Net sales Ps 22,114.3 - - 22,114.3
Cost of sales (7,401.2) - - (7,401.2)
Gross profit 14,713.1 - - 14,713.1
Total operating expenses (13,129.3) (2.1) - (13,131.4)
Operating 1nComMe. ....vvuii i i iiinneneennennnnn 1,583.8 (2.1) - 1,581.7
Net comprehensive financing result................. 733.1 686.4 - 1,419.5
Other income (expense), Net......o.iiiiiiiiiininniennnnnns 2,088.6 (59.3) 0.1 2,029.4
Income before IT, BAT, ESPS and equity in affiliates....... 4,405.5 625.0 0.1 5,030.6
Total IT, BAT and ESPS 751.6 (161.2) - 590.4
Income before equity in income of affiliates.......... 5,157.1 463.8 0.1 5,621.0
Equity in income of affiliates 3,111.8 1,129.7 (1,593.6) 2,647.9
Net income Ps 8,268.9 1,593.5 (1,593.5) 8,268.9
Guarantors (Parent Company-only)
Adjustments
and Combined
For the year ended December 31, 2002 CEMEX Mexico ETM eliminations Guarantors
Net sales... Ps 22,001.3 - - 22,001.3
Cost of sales (7,553.4) - - (7,553.4)
Gross Profit. ... eeii ittt i 14,447.9 - - 14,447.9
Total operating eXpPenses.......couieeeieennnnennennens (11,201.4) (0.3) - (11,201.7)
Operating InCome. ... ..vuii i i ininnnnennennens 3,246.5 (0.3) - 3,246.2
Net comprehensive financing result................. (5,934.0) (521.8) - (6,455.8)
Other income (EXPense), Net......eiueineeneeneeneennenannns (325.4) (6.6) - (332.0)
Income before IT, BAT, ESPS and equity in affiliates....... (3,012.9) (528.7) - (3,541.6)
Total IT, BAT and ESPS....uuiureeruunnnnennnnnnnnennnns (536.4) (727.0) - (1,263.4)
Income before equity in income of affiliates.......... (3,549.3) (1,255.7) - (4,805.0)
Equity in income of affiliates 358.5 (26.5) 1,282.2 1,614.2
Net inCome. ...t en i ittt iie e Ps (3,190.8) (1,282.2) 1,282.2 (3,190.8)
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Guarantors' Combined Income Statements:
Guarantors (Parent Company-only)
Six Months Ended June 30, 2002 (unaudited) CEMEX Mexico Empresas Adjustments Combined
Tolteca de and
Mexico eliminations Guarantors
Net sales Ps 10,745.0 - - 10,745.0
Cost of sales (3,577.3) - - (3,577.3)
Gross profit 7,167.7 - - 7,167.7
Total operating expenses (2,146.7) - - (2,146.7)
Operating INCOME. .. ...ttt ennnns 5,021.0 - - 5,021.0
Net comprehensive financing result...............cciiuun..n (6,405.9) 868.2 - (5,537.7)
Other income (expense), Net........uiiiiiuiinnneeennnnnnnnnn (3,855.3) 13.2 - (3,842.1)
Income before IT, BAT, ESPS and equity in affiliates........ (5,240.2) 881.4 - (4,358.8)
Total IT, BAT a@nd ESPS. ... uuttttinnnnteeennnnneeennnnanens 1,861.5 (262.9) - 1,598.6

Income before equity in income of affiliates................ (3,378.7) 618.5

(2,760.2)



Equity in income of affiliates............ ..

Net income..

Six Months Ended June 30, 2003 (unaudited)

.Ps

Net sales Ps
Cost of sales..
Gross profit
Total operating expenses
OPETATING 1NCOME. vttt et et et ee e e et et et e e
Net comprehensive £inancing reSult. .............eeeeeee...
Other income (EXPensSe), Met.......uiiiiiiiuinnneeeennnnnnennn
Income before IT, BAT, ESPS and equity in affiliates........
Total IT, BAT a@nd ESPS. ...t ititintentnnenneonennenneneenns
Income before equity in income of affiliates..
Equity in income of affiliates
Net IMCOMe. .ottt e e Ps
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December 31, 2000, 2001,

(Millions of constant Mexican Pesos as of June 30,

Guarantors' Combined Statements of Changes in Financial Position:

For the year ended December 31, 2000

Operating activities
Net IncCome. ... .uuininiii ittt it i it eeaaaann
Charges to operations which did not require resources.....

Resources provided by operating activities...
Net change in working capital

Net resources provided by operating activities........

Financing activities

Bank loans and notes payable, net..
Dividends
Long-term related parties receivables and payables, net...
Other noncurrent assets and liabilities, net..

Resources used in financing activities

Investing activities

Property, plant and equipment, net...............o..o..
Investments in subsidiaries and affiliates...
Deferred charges
Other INVestments.........eiiiieiinenniineinenieennnnnnns

Resources used in investing activities................

Change in cash and investments
Cash and investments initial balance

Cash and investments ending balance

For the year ended December 31, 2001

1,876.2 86.0 (704.5) 1,257.7
(1,502.5) 704.5 (704.5) (1,502.5)
Guarantors (Parent Company-only
CEMEX Mexico Empresas Adjustments Combined
Tolteca de and
Mexico eliminations Guarantors
11,844.6 - - 11,844.6
(4,253.5) - - (4,253.5)
7,591.1 - - 7,591.1
(6,182.6) - - (6,182.6)
1,408.5 - - 1,408.5
(3,103.1) 452.2 - (2,650.9)
626.3 15.2 - 641.5
(1,068.3) 467.4 - (600.9)
369.6 (50.8) - 318.8
(698.7) 416.6 - (282.1)
58.7 (356.2) (60.4) (357.9)
(640.0) 60.4 (60.4) (640.0)
- (Continued)

2002 and June 30, 2003

2003)

Guarantors (Parent Company-only)
Adjustments

and Combined

CEMEX Mexico ETM eliminations Guarantors
3,362.6 (133.7) 133.7 3,362.6
1,861.1 (15.8) (1,056.4) 788.9
5,223.7 (149.5) (922.7) 4,151.5
5,214.3 (684.9) - 4,529.4
10,438.0 (834.4) (922.7) 8,680.9
(787.5) - - (787.5)
- 8,813.7 (8,813.7) -
4,898.4 - (4,898.4) -
- (831.9) - (831.9)
4,110.9 7,981.8 (13,712.1) (1,619.4)
(529.3) - - (529.3)
(13,848.5) 49.4 9,736.5 (4,062.6)
(166.4) - - (166.4)
(257.5) (7,652.2) 4,898.3 (3,011.4)
(14,801.7) (7,602.8) 14,634.8 (7,769.7)
(252.8) (455.4) - (708.2)
761.5 1,795.8 - 2,557.3
508.7 1,340.4 - 1,849.1

Guarantors (Parent Company-only)
Adjustments
and Combined
CEMEX Mexico ETM eliminations Guarantors




Operating activities
Net income
Charges to operations which did not require resources.....

Resources provided by operating activities...
Net change in working capital..

Net resources provided by operating activities........

Financing activities

Bank loans and notes payable, net..........coviiuiniiennnns
Long-term related parties receivables and payables, net...
Other noncurrent assets and liabilities, net..............

Resources used in financing activities....................

Investing activities

Property, plant and equipment, net
Investments in subsidiaries and affiliates...
Deferred charges
Other investments

Resources used in investing activities...

Change in cash and investments..
Cash and investments initial balance

Cash and investments ending balance...................

CEMEX,

December 31,

Guarantors' Combined Statements of Changes in Financial Position:

For the year ended December 31, 2002

Operating activities
Net InCome. ... .uuininiii ittt it i ii et eaaaaann
Charges to operations which did not require resources.....

Resources provided by operating activities...
Net change in working capital

Net resources provided by operating activities........

Financing activities

Bank loans and notes payable, net..
Dividends
Long-term related parties receivables and payables, net...
Other noncurrent assets and liabilities, net..............

Resources used in financing activities....................

Investing activities

Property, plant and equipment, net
Investments in subsidiaries and affiliates.
Deferred charges
Other investments

Resources used in investing activities...

Change in cash and investments
Cash and investments initial balance

Cash and investments ending balance...................

For the six months ended June 30, 2002

Operating activities
Net nCOome. ...ttt it i it i it eiiaianannns
Charges to operations which did not require resources.....

Ps 8,268.9 1,593.5 (1,593.5) 8,268.9
(2,414.2) (950.0) 1,607.1 (1,757.1)
5,854.7 643.5 13.6 6,511.8
16,789.6 (10,806.7) 40.5 6,023.4
22,644.3 (10,163.2) 54.1 12,535.2
(56.5) 40.5 (40.5) (56.5)
39,774.1 8,164.4 - 47,938.5
(144.4) (111.6) 111.6 (144.4)
39,573.2 8,093.3 71.1 47,737.6
(784.3) - - (784.3)
(60,938.5) 72.5 (111.6) (60,977.6)
(439.7) 23.6 (13.6) (429.7)
(157.2) 1,291.4 - 1,134.2
(62,319.7) 1,387.5 (125.2) (61,057.4)
(102.2) (682.4) - (784.6)
508.7 1,340.4 - 1,849.1
Ps 406.5 658.0 - 1,064.5
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Guarantors (Parent Company-only)
Adjustments
and Combined
CEMEX Mexico ETM eliminations Guarantors
Ps (3,190.8) (1,282.2) 1,282.2 (3,190.8)
1,569.4 788.8 (1,282.2) 1,076.0
....... (1,621.4) (493.4) - (2,114.8)
4,675.4 (25.4) 439.8 5,089.8
3,054.0 (518.8) 439.8 2,975.0
12.4 52.1 - 64.5
(2,196.3) - - (2,196.3)
(52,220.9) - - (52,220.9)
52,047.3 - - 52,047.3
(2,357.5) 52.1 - (2,305.4)
(1,075.7) - - (1,075.7)
(10,491.2) 323.4 63.0 (10,104.8)
(214.9) (17.0) (102.1) (334.0)
11,938.2 100.8 (400.7) 11,638.3
156.4 407.2 (439.8) 123.8
852.9 (59.5) - 793.4
406.5 658.0 - 1,064.5
Ps 1,259.4 598.5 - 1,857.9
Guarantors (Parent Company-only)
Adjustments
and Combined
CEMEX Mexico ETM eliminations Guarantors
Ps (1,502.5) 704.5 (704.5) (1,502.5)
(3,095.2) 192.1 704.5 (2,198.6)
(4,597.7) 896.6 - (3,701.1)

Resources provided by operating activities................



Net change in working capital............coouuiiunennn. (90.7)

9,792.2 (1,194.6) 8,506.9
Net resources provided by operating activities........ 5,194.5 (298.0) (90.7) 4,805.8

Financing activities

Bank loans and notes payable, net.. 12.5 - - 12.5

Dividends... - - - -

Long-term related parties receivables and payables, net. - - - -

Other noncurrent assets and liabilities, net.. - - - -

Resources used in financing activities.................... 12.5 - - 12.5

Investing activities

Property, plant and equipment, net..........covevuevnennns (374.3) - - (374.3)

Investments in subsidiaries and affiliates... (4,140.6) (32.5) 62.8 (4,110.3)

Deferred charges 265.4 28.0 172.0

(121.4)

Other INVeStmMEeNtS. ...ttt ittt e ettt e eeeeaaeeaannn (23.9) 137.6 (0.1) 113.6
Resources used in investing activities................ (4,660.2) 370.5 90.7 (4,199.0)
Change in cash and investments.. 546.8 72.5 - 619.3
Cash and investments initial balance 658.0 1,064.5

406.5 -
Cash and investments ending balance................... Ps 953.3 730.5 - 1,683.8

CEMEX, S.A. DE C.V. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (Continued)
December 31, 2000, 2001, 2002 and June 30, 2003
(Millions of constant Mexican Pesos as of June 30, 2003)

Guarantors' Combined Statements of Changes in Financial Position:

Guarantors (Parent Company-only)
Adjustments

For the six months ended June 30, 2003 (unaudited) and Combined
CEMEX Mexico ETM eliminations Guarantors
Operating activities
Net InComMe. ...ttt it i it e et e e Ps (640.0) 60.4 (60.4) (640.0)
Charges to operations which did not require resources..... 232.9 329.3 60.4 622.6
Resources provided by operating activities (407.1) 389.7 - (17.4)
Net change in working capital.. 2,644.5 84.1 - 2,728.6
Net resources provided by operating activities........ 2,237.4 473.8 - 2,711.2
Financing activities
Bank loans and notes payable, net.. 8.0 7.0 - 15.0
Long-term related parties receivables and payables, (3,060.2) 154.6 - (2,905.6)
Other noncurrent assets and liabilities, net.............. 34.4 - - 34.4
Resources used in financing activities.................... (3,017.8) 161.6 - (2,856.2)
Investing activities
Property, plant and equipment, net.............oiuiuueennnn (304.1) - - (304.1)
Investments in subsidiaries and affiliates (40.3) (583.6) - (623.9)
Deferred charges 458.9 (1.5) - 457.4
Other investments (58.6) - - (58.6)
Resources used in investing activitiesS................ 55.9 (585.1) - (529.2)
Change in cash and investments (724.5) 50.3 - (674.2)
Cash and investments initial balance 1,259.4 598.5 - 1,857.9

Cash and investments ending balance................... Ps 534.9 648.8 - 1,183.7

Guarantors--Cash and investments

At December 31, 2001 and 2002, and June 30, 2003 (unaudited), ETM's
temporary investments are mainly comprised of CEMEX CPOs. In June 2003 the
parent Company CEMEX issued 817,515 CPOs through dividends to ETM amounting
Ps$29,798.

Guarantors--Investment in affiliates

At December 31, 2001, 2002 and June 30, 2003 (unaudited), of the Guarantors'
total investment in affiliates, which are accounted for under the equity
method, Ps67,882.1, Ps76,980.2 and Ps71,622.2, respectively, correspond to
investments in non-guarantors, and Ps179.8 in 2001, Ps200.1 in 2002 and Ps198.0
at June 30, 2003 (unaudited), are related to minority investments in third
parties.



At December 31, 2002, the main Guarantors' investments in non-guarantors are in
CEMEX Concretos, S.A. de C.V and CEMEX Internacional, S.A. de C.V., which
together integrate the ready-mix concrete operations and export trading
activities of the Company in Mexico; and CEDICE, which is the parent company of
the international operations of CEMEX. In January 2001, CEMEX Mexico acquired
from CEMEX the majority interest in CEDICE for approximately U.S.$3.9 billion.

The investment in affiliates includes an effect of Ps647.5 corresponding to the
cumulative effect of accounting change; see notes 23 (k) and 23(v).

Guarantors--Indebtedness

At December 31, 2001, 2002 and June 30, 2003 (unaudited), the Guarantors had
total indebtedness of U.S.$25.4 million (Ps248.8), U.S.$24.9 million (Ps261.1)
and U.S.$25.7 million (Ps269.0), respectively. At December 31, 2002, the average
interest rate of this indebtedness was approximately 7.8%. Of the total
indebtedness of the Guarantors at December 31, 2002, approximately U.S.$24.3
million (Ps254.7) matures in 2003 and U.S.$0.6 million (Ps6.4) matures in 2004.
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Guarantors--Balances and transactions with related parties

Balances with related parties result primarily from (i) the sale and purchase
of cement and clinker to and from affiliates, (ii) the sale and/or acquisition
of subsidiaries' shares within the CEMEX group, (iii) the invoicing of
administrative and other services received or provided from and to affiliated
companies, and (iv) the transfer of funds between the Guarantors, their
respective parents and certain affiliates. The related parties balance detail
is as follows:

2001
Assets Liabilities
Guarantors Short-Term Long-Term Short-Term Long-Term

Centro Distribuidor de Cemento, S.A. de C.V....'uiienennnnn. Ps 2,894.4 - - -
CEMEX Concretos, S.A. de C.V.iuiutiniiiienreneineeneennnnnans 2,540.1 - - -
CEMEX Central, S.A. de C.V.iiiiuiieeiernnnaeoeennnooesoennnans 2,319.5 - . -
Proveedora Mexicana de Materiales, S.A. de C.V. 216.6 - - -
Aviacion Comercial de America, 137.4 - - -
Inversora en Cales, 128.9 - - -
Impra Cafe, S.A. de 114.5 - - -

CEMEX, S.A. de C.V. - - 9,168.7 57,647.4

CEMEX International - - 7,091.7 4,684.7

Petrocemex, S.A. de - - 1,810.6 2,936.8
Maquinas Industrias y Equipos, S.A. de C.V...iiiiiiiinnnnn - - 691.3 -
Ultracril, S.A. de C.V - - 585.1 -
CEMEX Internacional, S.A. de C.V. . . . - - 576.8 -
Inmobiliaria Rio la Silla, S.A. de C.V . . . - - 488.3 -
Maquindustrias, S.A. de C.V..iutiitiiiinnineneeneennns - - 319.3 -
Turismo CEMEX, S.A. A€ C.V.uut ittt eneerennnnaeroeannaeenannn - - 245.8 -
Landmark la Silla, S.A. de C.V. . . . - 851.2 - -

CEMEX Trademarks Worldwide Ltd.......eeeeeeeeennnneenenennans - - - 3,207.3

Sunward Acquisitions N.V. ... ..o nn i inninnennennennennns - - - 1,419.0
L0 ot T o= 230.9 - 386.5 -

Ps 8,582.3 851.2 21,364.1 69,895.2

2002
Assets Liabilities
Guarantors Short-Term Long-Term Short-Term Long-Term

CEMEX, S.A. de C.V..iutiutnntineenrenennenneensnnsnnannannnnns Ps 1,823.8 - - 33,344.4
CEMEX Central, S.A. de C.V.uiuieueeeeeeeenaeeeeenanoesaeannans 915.9 - - -
CEMEX Concretos, S.A. de C.V. ..ttt tinnnneeeennnneeaeennns 476.4 - - -
Impra Cafe, S.A. de C.V. . 379.1 - - -
Proveedora Mexicana de Materiales, S.A. de C.V......couuunuenn. 227.9 - - -
Servicio CEMEX Mexico, S.A. de C.V. ..iiiiumnnnneennnnnnnnnnn 220.4 - - -
Poveedora de Fibras Textiles, S.A. de C.V. 178.8 - - -
Inversora en Cales, S.A. de C.V. 173.4 - - -
Carbonifera San Patricio, S.A. de C.V. . . . 80.3 - - -
Inmobiliaria Rio la Silla, S.A. de C.V.i.euttiinnieeerennnnans 70.2 293.2 . -
Aviacion Comercial de America, S.A. de C.V. 34.9 - - -

Centro Distribuidor de Cemento, S.A. de C.V. - - - 6,433.6
CEMEX International Finance Company. - - 4,715.8 -

Petrocemex, S.A. de C.V............ - - 689.8 2,781.4

CEMEX Internacional, S.A. de C.V....iuuiineeeennnnnneennnn - - 592.0 -
Turismo CEMEX, S.A. de C.V.. ittt ieinmeaeeeeannannnnans - - 258.3 -



Neoris de Mexico, S.A. de CuViiuuuttiitiineeeeennnoeeseennnans - - 217.7 -

Mexcement Holdings S.A. de C.V. e - - 110.2 -
L]l T o= 194.1 - 348.5 -
Ps 4,775.2 293.2 6,932.3 42,559.4
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December 31, 2000, 2001, 2002 and June 30, 2003
(Millions of constant Mexican Pesos as of June 30, 2003)

June 30, 2003 (unaudited)

Assets Liabilities
Guarantors Short-Term Long-Term Short-Term Long-Term
CEMEX, S.A. de C.V..utiuiininneenrnnenneeneenennnnnennnnnnns Ps - - 954.3 32,310.5
CEMEX Central, S.A. de C.V 1,320.3 - - -
CEMEX Concretos, S.A. de C.V .. 1,109.9 - - -
Impra Cafe, S.A. de C.V. tiiinitiiniii ittt innennennnn 471.3 - - -
CEMEX Trademarks WOrldwide......eeeiiiiieiennneeerennnnans - - 2,016.5 -
Servicio CEMEX Mexico, S.A. de C.V. ..iiiiiiiueerennnennnnnn 486.7 - . -
Poveedora de Fibras Textiles, S.A. de C.V. ...iiiiinnuennnnn - - 792.2 -
Inmobiliaria Rio la Silla, S.A. de C.V.iiuettirinnnreeennnnn 88.5 265.8 - -
Centro Distribuidor de Cemento, S.A. de C.V. ...eeirennnnnnn - - - 4,593.2
CEMEX International Finance Company. - - 2,950.5 -
Petrocemex, S.A. de - - 909.7 2,750.0
CEMEX Internacional, - - 751.7 -
Turismo CEMEX, S.A. de C.V.. .. - - 257.5 -
Lot T o= PP 367.7 - 412.2 -
Ps 3,844.4 265.8 9,044.0 39,653.7

The principal transactions carried out with affiliated companies are:

(Unaudited)
Six Months Ended June 30,
Years Ended December 31,

Guarantors 2000 2001 2002 2002 2003
Net SaleS..uunerneiieeii i, Ps 3,654.0 3,595.6 3,401.5 1,594.2 1,769.6
PUIChASES. ittt ittt it it i (1,107.7) (545.1) (997.0) (473.1) (607.1)
Selling and administrative expenses . (5,138.5) (9,265.7) (7,279.2) (6,640.0) (230.5)
Financial expense... (3,435.4) (6,025.6) (4,324.0) (2,561.2) (2,577.6)
Financial income ...... 147.2 1,084.4 583.5 385.2 220.7
Other expense, Net .......evvueinennennens Ps 73.1 (70.7) (57.2) (3,601.9) 626.3

Net sales--The Guarantors sell cement and clinker to affiliated companies in
arms-length transactions.

Purchases--The Guarantors purchase raw materials from affiliates in arms-length
transactions.

Selling and administrative expenses--The Company allocates part of its
corporate expense to the Guarantors, which also incur rental and trademark
rights expenses payable to the Company.

Financial income and expense is recorded on receivables from and payables to
affiliated companies as described above. Additionally, the Guarantors receive
financial income on their temporary investment position, invested in the
non-guarantor treasury company.
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Guarantors--U.S. GAAP reconciliation of net income and stockholders' equity:

As discussed at the beginning of this note 23, the following reconciliation to
U.S. GAAP does not include the reversal of Mexican GAAP inflation accounting
adjustments, as these adjustments represent a comprehensive measure of the
effects of price level changes in the inflationary Mexican economy, which is
considered a more meaningful presentation than historical cost-based financial
reporting for both Mexican and U.S. accounting purposes. The other principal
differences between Mexican GAAP and U.S. GAAP and the effect on net income and
stockholders' equity are presented below, with an explanation of the
adjustments.

Years Ended December 31, (Unaudited)
Six Months Ended
June 30,
2000 2001 2002 2002 2003
Net income reported under Mexican GAAP............ Ps 3,362.6 8,268.9 (3,190.7) (1,502.5) (640.0)
Approximate U.S. GAAP adjustments:
1. Amortization of pushdown goodwill (see note A)... (198.9) (193.3) - - -
2. Deferred income taxes and ESPS (see note B)...... (326.9) (1,231.7) 1,956.0 (1,642.8) (366.0)
3. Other employees' benefits (see note C)........... (25.6) (4.9) (13.7) (11.4) (11.2)
4. Inflation adjustment of machinery and (le5.00  mmem—————e-
equipment (see note D) .....iiniiiinniiiienann. (242.8) (185.1) 95.6 (74.6)
5. Other U.S. GAAP adjustments (see note E)......... (1,729.0) (1,253.6) 306.5 1,398.7 633.9
6. Monetary position result (see note F)............ 621.7 225.4 499.8 246.7 113.4
Total approximate U.S. GAAP adjustments......... (1,823.6) (2,700.8) 2,563.6 86.7 295.5
Total approximate net income under U.S. GAAP Ps 1,538.9 5,568.0 (627.2) (1,415.9) (344.5)
December 31, (Unaudited)
June 30,
2001 2002 2003
Total stockholders' equity under Mexican GAAP.........ouvenennennenns Ps 17,711.8 62,905.6 57,265.7
Approximate U.S. GAAP adjustments:
1. Effect of pushdown of goodwill, net (see note A)........ceviuieennnn 2,151.1 1,965.3 1,574.8
2. Deferred income taxes and ESPS (see note B).................. (4,687.9) (4,019.2) (3,592.9)
3. Other employees' benefits (see note C)....ovvuiiiinnnnnnnn (161.6) (166.6) (175.9)
4. Inflation adjustment for machinery and equipment (see note D). 5,650.6 3,980.6 2,962.8
5. Other U.S. GAAP adjustments (see note E).....iuiiuiiiinnennennennnns (8,172.0) (4,432.7) (2,084.8)
Total approximate U.S. GAAP adjustments...........c.oiuiuueinnnnnnnn (5,219.8) (2,672.6) (1,316.0)
Total approximate stockholders' equity under U.S. GAAP......... Ps 12,492.0 60,233.0 55,949.7

Guarantors--Notes to the U.S. GAAP reconciliation:
A. Business Combinations

In 1989 and 1990, through an exchange of its shares with the Company, CEMEX
Mexico acquired substantially all its Mexican subsidiaries from CEMEX. The
original excess of the purchase price paid by CEMEX over the fair value of the
net assets of these subsidiaries was Ps7,255.9, of which Ps3,753.1, were
recorded in ETM under Mexican GAAP at the time of the acquisition. The net
adjustment in the Guarantors stockholders' equity reconciliation to U.S. GAAP
arising from this pushed-down goodwill, after eliminating the amounts recorded
under Mexican GAAP, was Psl,346.8 in 2001, Psl,166.5 in 2002 and Ps776.0 as of
June 30, 2003 (unaudited).

In addition, during 1995 CEMEX acquired an additional 24.2% equity interest in
TOLMEX, S.A. de C.V. ("TOLMEX"), through a public exchange offer where CEMEX
exchanged its own shares for TOLMEX's shares. TOLMEX merged during 1999 with
other Mexican subsidiaries creating CEMEX Mexico. The excess of the purchase
price paid by CEMEX over the fair value of the net assets of TOLMEX was
Ps898.6. The net adjustment in the Guarantors stockholders' equity
reconciliation to U.S. GAAP arising from this pushed-down goodwill was Ps804.3
in 2001, Ps798.8 in 2002 and Ps798.8 as of June 30, 2003 (unaudited).
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Amortization expense related to these pushed-down goodwill amounts, was
recognized for purposes of the net income reconciliation to U.S. GAAP through
2001. As mentioned in note 23 (a), for purposes of the reconciliation to U.S.
GAAP, the Company adopted SFAS 142 and SFAS 144 in 2002. As a result of this
adoption, effective January 1, 2002, amortization ceased for goodwill under
U.S. GAAP; therefore, beginning in 2002, goodwill amortization recorded under
Mexican GAAP is adjusted for purposes of the reconciliation of net income and
stockholders' equity.

B. Deferred income taxes and Employees' Statutory Profit Sharing

Deferred income taxes adjustment in the stockholders' equity reconciliation to
U.S. GAAP, at December 31, 2001, 2002 and June 30, 2003 (unaudited),
represented expense of Psl,921.1, expense of Psl,296.7 and expense of Ps919.7,
respectively. In addition, deferred ESPS adjustment to U.S. GAAP was an expense
of Ps2,766.8 in 2001, an expense of Ps2,722.4 in 2002 and an expense of
Ps2,673.2 for the six months ended June 30, 2003 (unaudited).

C. Other employees' benefits

The Guarantors do not accrue for vacation expense and severance payments; these
items are recognized when vacation is taken or when retirements occur,
respectively. For purposes of the U.S. GAAP reconciliation, a vacation
liability has been determined in an amount of Ps28.8, Ps29.7 and Ps31.4, at
December 31, 2001, 2002 and June 30, 2003 (unaudited), respectively. In
addition, the Guarantors recognized, for purposes of the U.S. GAAP
reconciliation, a liability for severance benefits for Psl132.8 in 2001, Psl136.9
in 2002 and Psl144.5 as of June 30, 2003 (unaudited).

D. Inflation Adjustment of Machinery and Equipment

As previously mentioned in note 23(i), for purposes of the U.S. GAAP
reconciliation, fixed assets of foreign origin were restated using the
inflation factor arising from the Consumer Price Index ("CPI") of each country,
and depreciation is based upon the revised amounts.

E. Other U.S. GAAP adjustments

Deferred charges--For U.S. GAAP purposes, other deferred charges net of the
accumulated amortization that did not qualify for deferral under U.S. GAAP have
been charged to expense, with a net effect in the net income reconciliation to
U.S. GAAP of income of Psl25.8, expense of Ps24.9, expense of Ps268.9 in 2000,
2001 and 2002, respectively. The net effect in the stockholders' equity
reconciliation to U.S. GAAP was expenses of Ps225.6, Ps494.5 and Ps494.5 in
2001, 2002 and June 30, 2003 (unaudited), respectively, from the partial
reversal of the adjustment. Mexican GAAP allowed the deferral of these
expenses. This effect has been cancelled in the stockholders' equity because
they had been sold to Cemex Trademark Worldwide (CTW), affiliated company, for
the total amount of Ps494.5 in February 2003.

Subsidiary companies--The Guarantors have adjusted their investment and their
equity in the earnings of subsidiary companies for the share of the approximate
U.S. GAAP adjustments applicable to these affiliates. The net effect in the
stockholders' equity reconciliation to U.S. GAAP was expense of Ps7,931.0,
expense of Ps3,932.6 and expense of Psl1,590.3 in 2001, 2002 and June 30, 2003
(unaudited), respectively. The net effect in the net income reconciliation to
U.S. GAAP was expense of Psl,863.3, expense of Ps540.2, expense of Psl,275.1
and expense of Ps633.9 in 2000, 2001, 2002 and June 30, 2003 (unaudited),
respectively. From the U.S. GAAP adjustments to subsidiary companies in the
Guarantors' reconciliation of stockholders' equity, expense of Ps4,687.9 in
2001, expense of Ps4,019.2 in 2002 and expense of Ps3,592.9 as of June 30, 2003
(unaudited), are related to deferred IT and deferred ESPS.

As discussed in note 2C, in January 2001, CEMEX Mexico acquired from CEMEX a



majority equity interest in CEDICE, the indirect parent of CEMEX Espana
(formerly Valenciana). For U.S. GAAP purposes the transaction was accounted for
as a reorganization of entities under common control (similar to a pooling of
interest). As such, the reconciliation to U.S. GAAP of the Guarantors'
financial information is presented as if the transaction had occurred on
January 1, 2000. The effect in the reconciliation of net income to U.S. GAAP
was a loss of Ps2,197.4 for the year ended December 31, 2000, resulting from
the equity in the net income (loss) of the acquired companies under US GAAP in
that year. Under Mexican GAAP, this transaction was accounted for as a purchase
business combination effective from the date of the transaction. Also, under
Mexican GAAP, the sale resulted in a difference between the net book value of
the acquired companies and the purchase price on the separate accounts of CEMEX
Mexico. The transaction had no effect on the consolidated accounts of the
Company.

CEMEX, S.A. DE C.V. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS -
December 31, 2000, 2001, 2002 and June 30,
(Millions of constant Mexican Pesos as of June
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30, 2003)

F. Monetary position result

Monetary position result of the U.S. GAAP adjustments is determined by (i)
applying the annual inflation factor to the net monetary position of the U.S.
GAAP adjustments at the beginning of the period, plus (ii) the monetary
position effect of the adjustments during the period, determined in accordance
with the CPI inflation factor for the period.

GAAP

Supplemental Guarantors' Cash Flow Information under U.S.

The classifications of cash flows under Mexican GAAP and U.S. GAAP are

basically the same in respect
The nature of the differences
reported is mainly due to (i)
variations of monetary assets
investing activities, against
operating activities, (ii)

(iid)
U.S. GAAP adjustments.
For the Guarantors,

activities,

information is presented,

giving effect to the U.S.
of inflation required by Bulletin B-10 and Bulletin B-15.
in millions of pesos,

of the transactions presented under each caption.
between Mexican GAAP and U.S. GAAP in the amounts
the elimination of inflationary effects in the
and liabilities arising from financing and

the corresponding monetary position result in

the elimination of exchange rate fluctuations
resulting from financing and investing activities,
unrealized foreign exchange gain or loss included in operating activities,
the recognition in operating,

against the corresponding
and
financing and investing activities of the

the following table summarizes the cash flow items as
required under SFAS 95 provided by

(used in) operating,
GAAP adjustments,

financing and investing
excluding the effects
The following

on a historical peso basis and

it is not presented in pesos of constant purchasing power:

Net cash provided by operating activities.....
financing

Net cash provided by (used in)

activities........oiiiiiiiiiiiii i
Net cash used in investing activities.........

Years ended December 31, (Unaudited)
Six Months Ended June

30,

2000 2001 2002 2002 2003

...Ps 1,063.8 (2,336.9) 2,001.4 (152.4) 2,086.4
..... (1,645.9) (25.4) 2,418.5 0.6 2.2
..... 418.7 2,287.0 (3,555.4) 683.9 (2,793.2)

Net cash flow from operating activities reflects cash payments for interests

and income taxes as follows:

Interest paid.. ..ottt
Income taxes paid.......oviiiiiiiiiiiinna.,

...Ps 265.9 20.5
3

Years ended December 31, (Unaudited)
Six Months Ended June

30,

2001 2002 2002 2003

263.5 81.0 114.8

92.3




Guarantors' non-cash activities are comprised of the following:

During 2000 and 2001, the Guarantors acquired, from CEMEX, equity interests in
CEDICE for an amount of Ps4,780.1 and Ps37,466.4, which were credited against
accounts payable owed by CEMEX to the Guarantors at the end of each year,
respectively.

Dividends declared to CEMEX amounting to Ps2,171.5 in 2002 were recognized by
the Guarantors as accounts payable to CEMEX as of December 31, 2002.

Contingent liabilities of the Guarantors

As of December 31, 2001 and 2002, CEMEX Mexico and ETM guaranteed debt of CEMEX
in the amount of USS$2,196.0 million and USS$2,339.0 million (see note 12).

Subsequent events

During July 2003 ETM carried out individually, a stock reverse split
amortization of 900,000 shares at Ps7.0 each, reducing the entity'>s equity
by Ps6,300.0. These shares were owned by CEMEX Mexico and at the same time a
dividend of Ps6,300.0 was declared.

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS

Monterrey, N.L., January 11, 2001

To the Stockholders of
Compania Minera Atoyac, S.A. de C.V.

We have audited the balance sheets of Compania Minera Atoyac, S.A. de C.V. as
of December 31, 2000 and 1999, and the related statements of income, of
changes in stockholders' equity and of changes in financial position for the
three years in the period ended December 31, 2000. These financial statements
are the responsibility of the Company's management. Our responsibility is to
express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in Mexico and the United States of America. Those standards require
that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement and that
they were prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting
the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also
includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our
opinion.

As described in Note 2.C to the financial statements, as from the year ended
December 31, 2000 the Company adopted the standards contained in Statement D-4
Revised, "Accounting for Income Tax, Asset Tax and Employees' Profit Sharing,"
issued by the Mexican Institute of Public Accountants, with the effects
described in such note.

In our opinion, the aforementioned financial statements present fairly, in all
material respects, the financial position of Compania Minera Atoyac, S.A. de
C.V. at December 31, 2000 and 1999, and the results of its operations, the



changes in its stockholders' equity and the changes in its financial position
for the three years in the period ended December 31, 2000, in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in Mexico.

/s/ PRICEWATERHOUSECOOPERS

Hector Puente S.

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS

Monterrey, N.L., January 11, 2001

To the Stockholders of
Cementos Anahuac, S.A.

We have audited the balance sheets of Cementos Anahuac, S.A. as of December
31, 2000 and 1999, and the related statements of income, of changes in
stockholders' equity and of changes in financial position for the three years
in the period ended December 31, 2000. These financial statements are the
responsibility of the Company's management. Our responsibility is to express
an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in Mexico and the United States of America. Those standards require
that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement and that
they were prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting
the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also
includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our
opinion.

As described in Note 2.C to the financial statements, as from the year ended
December 31, 2000 the Company adopted the standards contained in Statement D-4
Revised, "Accounting for Income Tax, Asset Tax and Employees' Profit Sharing,"
issued by the Mexican Institute of Public Accountants, with the effects
described in such note.

In our opinion, the aforementioned financial statements present fairly, in all
material respects, the financial position of Cementos Anahuac, S.A. at
December 31, 2000 and 1999, and the results of its operations, the changes in
its stockholders' equity and the changes in its financial position for the
three years in the period ended December 31, 2000, in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in Mexico.

/s/ PRICEWATERHOUSECOOPERS

Hector Puente S.



REPORT OF INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS

Monterrey, N.L., January 11, 2001

To the Stockholders of
Cementos del Norte, S.A. de C.V.

We have audited the balance sheets of Cementos del Norte, S.A. de C.V. as of
December 31, 2000 and 1999, and the related statements of income, of changes
in stockholders' equity and of changes in financial position for the three
years in the period ended December 31, 2000. These financial statements are
the responsibility of the Company's management. Our responsibility is to
express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in Mexico and the United States of America. Those standards require
that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement and that
they were prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting
the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also
includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our
opinion.

As described in Note 2.C to the financial statements, as from the year ended
December 31, 2000 the Company adopted the standards contained in Statement D-4
Revised, "Accounting for Income Tax, Asset Tax and Employees' Profit Sharing,"
issued by the Mexican Institute of Public Accountants, with the effects
described in such note.

In our opinion, the aforementioned financial statements present fairly, in all
material respects, the financial position of Cementos del Norte, S.A. de C.V.
at December 31, 2000 and 1999, and the results of its operations, the changes
in its stockholders' equity and the changes in its financial position for the
three years in the period ended December 31, 2000, in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in Mexico.

/s/ PRICEWATERHOUSECOOPERS

Hector Puente S.

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS

Monterrey, N.L., January 11, 2001

To the Stockholders of

Proveedora Mexicana de Materiales, S.A. de C.V.



We have audited the balance sheets of Proveedora Mexicana de Materiales, S.A.
de C.V. (as a separate legal entity) as of December 31, 2000 and 1999, and the
related statements of income, of changes in stockholders' equity and of
changes in financial position for the three years in the period ended December
31, 2000. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company's
management and are to be submitted for approval by the General Meeting of
Stockholders; therefore, they include the investment in subsidiary for by the
equity method. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in Mexico and the United States of America. Those standards require
that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement and that
they were prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting
the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also
includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our
opinion.

As described in Note 2.G to the financial statements, as from the year ended
December 31, 2000 the Company adopted the standards contained in Statement D-4
Revised, "Accounting for Income Tax, Asset Tax and Employees' Profit Sharing,"
issued by the Mexican Institute of Public Accountants, with the effects
described in such note.

In our opinion, the aforementioned financial statements present fairly, in all
material respects, the financial position of Proveedora Mexicana de
Materiales, S.A. de C.V. (as a separate legal entity) at December 31, 2000 and
1999, and the results of its operations, the changes in its stockholders'
equity and the changes in its financial position for the three years in the
period ended December 31, 2000, in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in Mexico.

/s/ PRICEWATERHOUSECOOPERS

Hector Puente S.

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS

Monterrey, N.L., January 11, 2001

To the Stockholders of
Compania de Transportes del Mar de Cortes, S.A. de C.V.

We have audited the balance sheets of Compania de Transportes del Mar de
Cortes, S.A. de C.V. as of December 31, 2000 and 1999, and the related
statements of income, of changes in stockholders' equity and of changes in
financial position for the three years in the period ended December 31, 2000.
These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company's management.
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements
based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in Mexico and the United States of America. Those standards require
that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about



whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement and that
they were prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting
the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also
includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our
opinion.

As described in Note 2.G to the financial statements, as from the year ended
December 31, 2000 the Company adopted the standards contained in Statement D-4
Revised, "Accounting for Income Tax, Asset Tax and Employees' Profit Sharing,"
issued by the Mexican Institute of Public Accountants, with the effects
described in such note.

As mentioned in Note 1 to the financial statements, a portion of the company's
income and operating costs and expenses arise from transactions with related
parties. Therefore, conditions of these transactions may not be similar to
those of transactions carried out with third parties.

As indicated in Note 2E, to the financial statements, based on a study carried
out in 1999, management decided to modify the technical useful lives of
property, plant and equipment; basically, since the related wear and tear has
been lower than the originally estimated. The effect of this change
represented a reduction in the depreciation charged to income for the year of
approximately Ps5,075,357.

In our opinion, the aforementioned financial statements present fairly, in all
material respects, the financial position of Compania de Transportes del Mar
de Cortes, S.A. de C.V. at December 31, 2000 and 1999, and the results of its
operations, the changes in its stockholders' equity and the changes in its
financial position for the three years in the period ended December 31, 2000,
in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in Mexico.

/s/ PRICEWATERHOUSECOOPERS

Hector Puente S.

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS

Monterrey, N.L., January 11, 2001

To the Stockholders of
Cementos Guadalajara, S.A. de C.V.

We have audited the balance sheets of Cementos Guadalajara, S.A. de C.V. as of
December 31, 2000 and 1999, and the related statements of income, of changes
in stockholders' equity and of changes in financial position for the three
years in the period ended December 31, 2000. These financial statements are
the responsibility of the Company's management. Our responsibility is to
express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in Mexico and the United States of America. Those standards require
that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement and that
they were prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting
the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also



includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our
opinion.

As described in Note 2.D to the financial statements, as from the year ended
December 31, 2000 the Company adopted the standards contained in Statement D-4
Revised, "Accounting for Income Tax, Asset Tax and Employees' Profit Sharing,"
issued by the Mexican Institute of Public Accountants, with the effects
described in such note.

As mentioned in Note 1 to the financial statements, a significant portion of
the company's income and operating costs and expenses arise from transactions
with related parties. Therefore, conditions of these transactions may not be
similar to those of transactions with third parties.

In our opinion, the aforementioned financial statements present fairly, in all
material respects, the financial position of Cementos Guadalajara, S.A. de
C.V. at December 31, 2000 and 1999, and the results of its operations, the
changes in its stockholders' equity and the changes in its financial position
for the three years in the period ended December 31, 2000, in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in Mexico.

/s/ PRICEWATERHOUSECOOPERS

Hector Puente S.

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS

Monterrey, N.L., January 11, 2001

To the Stockholders of
Cementos de Oriente, S.A. de C.V.

We have audited the balance sheets of Cementos de Oriente, S.A. de C.V. as of
December 31, 2000 and 1999, and the related statements of income, of changes
in stockholders' equity and of changes in financial position for the three
years in the period ended December 31, 2000. These financial statements are
the responsibility of the Company's management. Our responsibility is to
express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in Mexico and the United States of America. Those standards require
that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement and that
they were prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting
the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also
includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our
opinion.

As described in Note 2.F to the financial statements, as from the year ended
December 31, 2000 the Company adopted the standards contained in Statement D-4
Revised, "Accounting for Income Tax, Asset Tax and Employees' Profit Sharing,"
issued by the Mexican Institute of Public Accountants, with the effects
described in such note.



As mentioned in Note 1 to the financial statements, a significant portion of
the company's income (basically financial income) arises from transactions
with related parties. Therefore, conditions of these transactions may not be
similar to those of transactions with third parties.

In our opinion, the aforementioned financial statements present fairly, in all
material respects, the financial position of Cementos de Oriente, S.A. de C.V.
at December 31, 2000 and 1999, and the results of its operations, the changes
in its stockholders' equity and the changes in its financial position for the
three years in the period ended December 31, 2000, in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in Mexico.

/s/ PRICEWATERHOUSECOOPERS

Hector Puente S.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS

Monterrey, N.L., January 11, 2001

To the Stockholders of
Autotransportes de Huichapan, S.A. de C.V.

We have audited the balance sheets of Autotransportes de Huichapan, S.A. de
C.V. as of December 31, 2000 and 1999, and the related statements of income,
of changes in stockholders' equity and of changes in financial position for
the three years in the period ended December 31, 2000. These financial
statements are the responsibility of the Company's management. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on
our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in Mexico and the United States of America. Those standards require
that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement and that
they were prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting
the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also
includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our
opinion.

As described in Note 2.F to the financial statements, as from the year ended
December 31, 2000 the Company adopted the standards contained in Statement D-4
Revised, "Accounting for Income Tax, Asset Tax and Employees' Profit Sharing,"
issued by the Mexican Institute of Public Accountants, with the effects
described in such note.

As mentioned in Note 1 to the financial statements, a portion of the company's
income and operating costs and expenses arise from transactions with related
parties. Therefore, conditions of these transactions may not be similar to
those of transactions with third parties.

As indicated in Note 2.D to the financial statements, based on a study carried
out in 1999, management decided to modify the technical useful lives of
property, plant and equipment; basically, since the related wear and tear has
been lower than the original estimated. The effect of this change represented
a reduction in the depreciation charged to income for the year of



approximately Ps808,483.

In our opinion, the aforementioned financial statements present fairly, in all
material respects, the financial position of Autotransportes de Huichapan,
S.A. de C.V. at December 31, 2000 and 1999, and the results of its operations,
the changes in its stockholders' equity and the changes in its financial
position for the three years in the period ended December 31, 2000, in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in Mexico.

/s/ PRICEWATERHOUSECOOPERS

Hector Puente S.

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS

Monterrey, N.L., January 11, 2001

To the Stockholders of
Cemex Concretos, S.A. de C.V.

We have audited the balance sheets of Cemex Concretos, S.A. de C.V. as of
December 31, 2000 and 1999, and the related statements of income, of changes
in stockholders' equity and of changes in financial position for the three
years in the period ended December 31, 2000. These financial statements are
the responsibility of the Company's management. Our responsibility is to
express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in Mexico and the United States of America. Those standards require
that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement and that
they were prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting
the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also
includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our
opinion.

As described in Note 2.H to the financial statements, as from the year ended
December 31, 2000 the Company adopted the standards contained in Statement D-4
Revised, "Accounting for Income Tax, Asset Tax and Employees' Profit Sharing,"
issued by the Mexican Institute of Public Accountants, with the effects
described in such note.

As described in Note 1 to the financial statements, on November 13, 2000 the
stockholders resolved to spin-off certain operations for which purpose a new
company was incorporated effective from such date onwards. Certain assets,
liabilities and capital stock were allocated to the new company as described
in such note.

In our opinion, the aforementioned financial statements present fairly, in all
material respects, the financial position of Cemex Concretos, S.A. de C.V. at
December 31, 2000 and 1999, and the results of its operations, the changes in
its stockholders' equity and the changes in its financial position for the
three years in the period ended December 31, 2000, in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in Mexico.



/s/ PRICEWATERHOUSECOOPERS

Hector Puente S.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS

Monterrey, N.L., January 11, 2001

To the Stockholders of
Granos y Terrenos, S.A. de C.V.

We have audited the balance sheets of Granos y Terrenos, S.A. de C.V. as of
December 31, 2000 and 1999, and the related statements of income, of changes
in stockholders' equity and of changes in financial position for the three
years in the period ended December 31, 2000. These financial statements are
the responsibility of the Company's management. Our responsibility is to
express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in Mexico and the United States of America. Those standards require
that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement and that
they were prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting
the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also
includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our
opinion.

As described in Note 2.C to the financial statements, as from the year ended
December 31, 2000 the Company adopted the standards contained in Statement D-4
Revised, "Accounting for Income Tax, Asset Tax and Employees' Profit Sharing,"
issued by the Mexican Institute of Public Accountants, with the effects
described in such note.

In our opinion, the aforementioned financial statements present fairly, in all
material respects, the financial position of Granos y Terrenos, S.A. de C.V.
at December 31, 2000 and 1999, and the results of its operations, the changes
in its stockholders' equity and the changes in its financial position for the
three years in the period ended December 31, 2000, in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in Mexico.

/s/ PRICEWATERHOUSECOOPERS

Hector Puente S.

F-95



INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON SCHEDULES

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Cemex, S.A. de C.V.:

Under the date of January 15, 2003, we reported on the consolidated balance
sheets of Cemex, S.A. de C.V. and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2000 and
2001, and the related consolidated statements of income, changes in
stockholders' equity and changes in financial position for each of the years in
the three-year period ended December 31, 2002, which are included in the annual
report on Form 20-F. In connection with our audits of the aforementioned
consolidated financial statements, we also audited the related consolidated
financial statement schedules in the annual report. These financial statement
schedules are the responsibility of the Company's management. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statement schedules
based on our audits.

In our opinion, such financial statement schedules, when considered in relation

to the basic consolidated financial statements taken as a whole, present
fairly, in all material respects, the information set forth therein.

KPMG Cardenas Dosal, S.C.
/s/ Rafael Gomez Eng
Rafael Gomez Eng

Monterrey, N.L. Mexico
January 15, 2003

SCHEDULE I
CEMEX, S.A. DE C.V. (PARENT COMPANY ONLY)
Balance Sheets
(Millions of constant Mexican pesos as of June 30, 2003)
December 31,
Assets 2001 2002
Current Assets
Cash and Investments. ... uue ettt ittt iineieeinanaanann Ps 165.4 372.3
Other receivables (note 3)........... 1,499.8 1,094.3
Related parties receivables 14,103.3 19,618.3
Total CUFTENT @SSEES . ittt it ittt ettt ettt e et e eeeeaaaeaans 15,768.5 21,084.9
Investments and Noncurrent Receivables
Investments in subsidiaries and affiliated companies ................... 18,837.4 77,872.5
Other investments..........ooiuiiiiieniinninnennaenn. 53.5 82.4
Other noncurrent accounts receivable.................. 618.2 498.2
Long-term related parties receivables 57,503.1 16,696.3
Total investments and noncurrent receivableS.........eeeeeeeennnnens 77,012.2 95,149.4

Land and BulldingsS. ...t in ittt itiiii ettt ennneeeeennnneeens 1,715.1 1,708.5




Deferred Charges (NOLE 5) .uuiuiuniien i neneneneeeenenenenenenenenennnns

TOtAl ASSEES..vcurreearnsatssosoenasasasssatsssaasvsaaasssasssasas

Liabilities and Stockholders' Equity
Current Liabilities
Bank loans (note 6)...
Notes payable (note 6)
Current maturities of long-term debt (note 6)
Other accounts payable and accrued expenses

Related parties payable (NOte 7) ....iuiiiiiiienininninenenennnnnnnns

Total current liabilities.............oiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiann.,

Long-Term Debt (notes 6 and 7)

Long-Term Debt. .ttt it ettt it e
Long-term related parties payables........coiuiiiiiiiiiiiinnennennnns

Total long-term debt
Other long-term liabilities..

Total Liabilities

Stockholders' EqUity. ..ottt ittt ittt ettt enennnns

Total Liabilities and Stockholders' Equity..........c.oviuinininn.n

CEMEX, S.A. DE C.V. (PARENT COMPANY ONLY)
Statements of Income

(Millions of constant Mexican pesos as of June 30, 2003, except for earnings per share)

Total revenues
Administrative expenses

Operating INCOME. ..ttt iiiitt ittty

Net comprehensive financing result.......................

Other income ( eXPense ), Met......uiuiniientonnennennennennnnnns

Income before income £AXES.......eiutiniiiennennnnneeneennnnn

Income tax benefit and business assets tax, net (note 8)........

Net InCOME. ...ttt e ettt

Basic earnings per share
Diluted earnings per share

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

CEMEX, S.A. DE C.V.

Statements of Changes in Financial Position

4,626.2 6,080.9
Ps 99,122.0 124,023.7
289.4 6,793.6
1,762.8 3,104.1
4,407.2 5,477.1
990.9 2,885.4
....... 1,605.8 5,923.2
....... 9,056.1 24,183.4
....... 22,309.9 20,777.1
....... 3,917.2 16,732.3
26,227.1 37,509.4
669.4 1,410.9
35,952.6 63,103.7
....... 63,169.4 60,920.0
....... Ps 99,122.0 124,023.7
See accompanying notes to financial statements.
SCHEDULE I (continued)
Years ended December 31,
2000 2001 2002
9,334.6 12,825.9 5,121.7
(102.4) (87.7) (107.5)
9,232.2 12,738.2 5,014.2
111.3 33.1 (1,389.6)
319.6 (2,078.2) (341.1)
9,663.1 10,693.1 3,283.5
951.4 1,352.5 2,234.1
10,614.5 12,045.6 5,517.6
2.57 2.82 1.23
2.56 2.80 1.23
SCHEDULE I (continued)
(PARENT COMPANY ONLY)
2003)

(Millions of constant Mexican pesos as of June 30,



Years ended December 31,

2000 2001 2002

Operating activities
Net income N Ps 10,614.5 12,045.6 5,517.6
Charges to operations which did not require resources (note 9)...... (6,863.4) (10, 655.3) (5,751.0)
Resources (used in) provided by operating activities............ 3,751.1 1,390.3 (233.4)
Net change in WOrking Capital........eeeuunoneeeeennneeeeennneeeennnnn (9,023.4) (7,687.3) 1,102.4
Net resources provided by (used in) operating activities........ (5,272.3) (6,297.0) 869.0

Financing activities
Proceeds from bank loans (repayments), (2,331.2) 6,884.2 3,255.3
Notes payable 4,461.9 (5,062.0) 4,127.4
Dividends paid (2,438.0) (3,115.4) (3,467.8)
Issuance of common stock from reinvestment of dividends............ 2,215.9 2,936.1 3,119.6
Issuance of common stock under stock option plan................... 52.8 112.4 73.8
Acquisition of shares under repurchase PrOGTramM..................... (133.8) (227.1) (370.4)
Other financing activities, net........ ... . i, (38.7) 611.6 741.5
Resources provided by financing activities.................... 1,788.9 2,139.8 7,479.4

Investing activities
Long-term related parties receivables, net.............ciinnneen.. 11,471.9 (37,586.9) 53,622.0
Net change in investment in subsidiaries................coooeiinnnn. (9,489.5) 41,340.4 (64,004.4)
Dividends received.............uiinnn.. e 522.7 - 2,216.2
Deferred charges............ e e s 972.7 1,126.1 (95.3)
Other noncurrent accounts receivable.........oeiiieuinennennennennnns - (618.2) 120.0
Resources ( used in ) provided by investing activities........ 3,477.8 4,261.4 (8,141.5)
Increase (decrease) in cash and investments.................... (5.6) 104.2 206.9
Cash and investments at beginning of year.............. ... ... 66.8 61.2 165.4
Cash and investments at end of year.......... ... i Ps 61.2 165.4 372.3

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

SCHEDULE I (continued)

CEMEX, S.A. DE C.V.
NOTES TO THE PARENT COMPANY ONLY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2000, 2001 and 2002
(Millions of constant Mexican pesos as of June 30, 2003)

1. DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS

CEMEX, S.A. de C.V. (CEMEX or the Company) is a Mexican holding company
(parent) of entities whose main activities are oriented to the construction
industry, through the production and marketing of cement and ready-mix
concrete.

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A) BASIS OF PRESENTATION AND DISCLOSURE

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
Generally Accepted Accounting Principles in Mexico ("Mexican GAAP"), which
include the recognition of the effects of inflation on the financial
information.

B) PRESENTATION OF COMPARATIVE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The restatement factors for the Parent Company-only financial statements of
prior periods were calculated based upon Mexican inflation.

December 31, June 30,




2000 2001 2002 2003

Restatement factor using Mexican inflation............... 1.0903 1.0456 1.0559 1.0114

C) CASH AND INVESTMENTS

Investments include fixed-income securities with original maturities of three
months or less, as well as marketable securities easily convertible into cash.

Investments in fixed-income securities are recorded at cost plus accrued
interest. Investments in marketable securities are recorded at market wvalue.
Gains or losses resulting from changes in market values, accrued interest and
the effects of inflation are included in the income statements as part of the
Comprehensive Financing Result.

D) INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES AND AFFILIATED COMPANIES

Investments in common stock representing between 10% and 100% of the issuer's
common stock are accounted for by the equity method. Under the equity method,
after acquisition, the investments original cost are adjusted for the
proportional interest of the holding company in the affiliates equity and
earnings, considering the inflation effects.

E) LAND AND BUILDINGS

Land and buildings are presented at their restated values using the Mexican
inflation index.

Depreciation of buildings is provided on the straight-line method over the
estimated useful lives of the assets. The useful lives of administrative
buildings are approximately 50 years.

F) DEFERRED CHARGES AND AMORTIZATION (note 5)

Deferred charges are adjusted by inflation to reflect constant values.
Amortization of deferred charges is determined using the straight-line method
based on the restated value of the assets.

SCHEDULE I (continued)

CEMEX, S.A. DE C.V.
NOTES TO THE PARENT COMPANY ONLY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS- (Continued)
December 31, 2000, 2001 and 2002
(Millions of constant Mexican pesos as of June 30, 2003)

The excess of cost over book value of subsidiaries acquired ("goodwill") is
amortized under the present worth or sinking fund method, which is intended to
provide a better matching of the goodwill amortization with the revenues
generated from the acquired companies. The amortization periods are as
follows:

Years
Goodwill from years before 1002, . . .. ittt ittt ittt tieanaaeaenens 40
Goodwill from acquisitions since January 1, 1992............00iiiiin.n. 20

Deferred financing costs associated with the Company's financing operations
are amortized as part of the effective interest rate of each transaction over



its maturity. These costs include discounts on debt issuance, fees paid to
attorneys, printers and consultants, as well as commissions paid to banks in
the structuring process. Deferred financing costs are adjusted by inflation to
reflect constant values.

G) MONETARY POSITION RESULT

The monetary position result, which represents the gain or loss from holding
monetary assets and liabilities in inflationary environments, is calculated by
applying the Mexican inflation rate on the Company's net monetary position.

H) DEFICIT IN EQUITY RESTATEMENT

The deficit in equity restatement includes the accumulated effect from holding
non-monetary assets as well as the foreign currency translation effects from
foreign subsidiaries' financial statements.

I) CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

Obligations or material losses, related to contingencies and commitments, are
recognized when present obligations exist, as a result of past events, it is
probable that the effects will materialize and there are reasonable elements
for quantification. If there are no reasonable elements for quantification, a
qualitative disclosure is included in the notes to the financial statements.
The Company does not recognize contingent revenues, income or assets.

J) USE OF ESTIMATES

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make estimates
and assumptions that affect reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the
financial statements date and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses
during the reported periods. Actual results could differ from these estimates.

3. OTHER RECEIVABLES

As of December 31, 2001 and 2002, other current receivables consist of:

2001 2002
Non-trade receivables...... ..t Ps 133.7 159.1
Refundable income LaAX....ui ittt eeeneneneeeeeneenn 1,274.4 657.6
Other refundable taxes......oiiiiiiiiiiiiiiinnnnns 91.7 277.6
Ps 1,499.8 1,094.3

SCHEDULE I (continued)
CEMEX, S.A. DE C.V.
NOTES TO THE PARENT COMPANY ONLY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS- (Continued)

December 31, 2000, 2001 and 2002
(Millions of constant Mexican pesos as of June 30, 2003)

4. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES AND AFFILIATED COMPANIES

As of December 31, 2001 and 2002, investments in subsidiaries and affiliated
companies accounted for by the equity method, are summarized as follows:

2001 2002



Book value at acquisition date...........ciuiiiuiiiiiiiiiiininnnnn Ps 8,445.7 64,517.6
Equity in income and other changes in stockholders' equity of
subsidiaries and affiliated companies..........cieiiueiuennennn 10,391.7 13,354.9

Ps 18,837.4 77,872.5

5. DEFERRED CHARGES

As of December 31, 2001 and 2002, deferred charges are summarized as follows:

2001 2002
Lo T Ps 1,964.3 1,957.7
Deferred financing costs 659.6 741.8
Deferred income taxesS........eeeeeunnnnnn 2,305.9 3,612.2
Others. . .uuuii it i 1,160.0 1,462.0
Accumulated amortization. ...ttt ettt ittt ettt e (1,463.6) (1,692.8)
Ps 4,626.2 6,080.9

6. SHORT AND LONG-TERM BANK LOANS AND NOTES PAYABLE

A total of 100% and 95.6% of the Parent Company-only short-term debt is
denominated in dollars in 2001 and 2002, respectively.

Of the Parent Company-only long-term debt, approximately 61% and 77% is
denominated in dollars in 2001 and 2002, respectively; the remaining debt in

2002 is primarily denominated in Mexican pesos and in yen in 2001.

The maturities of long-term debt as of December 31, 2002 are as follows:

Parent
2004 e i it e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e Ps 6,941.9
2 0 S 1,938.8
O 2,439.7
20 3,148.9
2008 and thereafter. ...ttt ittt it e ettt e et eee e 6,307.8
Ps 20,777.1

In the Parent Company-only balance sheet at December 31, 2002, there were
short-term debt transactions amounting to U.S.$ 100 million ($1,046.0),
classified as long-term debt, due to the Company's ability and the intention to
refinance such indebtedness with the available amounts of the committed
long-term lines of credit.

SCHEDULE I (continued)
CEMEX, S.A. DE C.V.
NOTES TO THE PARENT COMPANY ONLY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS- (Continued)

December 31, 2000, 2001 and 2002
(Millions of constant Mexican pesos as of June 30, 2003)

7. BALANCES AND TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

The main balances receivable and payable with related parties as of December



31, 2001 and 2002 are:

Parent Company 2001
Assets Liabilities
Short-Term Long-Term Short-Term Long-Term
CEMEX Mexico, S.A. de C.V....iitiiniininnnnnnnn. Ps 13,132.3 57,503.1 - -
Assiut Cement COMPANY....eeeeerennaeeeennnneeennn 326.8 - - -
Centro Distribuidor de Cemento, S.A. de C.V...... 601.7 - - -
Sunbelt Trading, S.A. ...uiuiiiiininninnennennenns 41.5 - - -
CEMEX Concretos, S.A. de C.V. .. - - 773.0 -
Empresas Tolteca de Mexico, S.A. de C.V. - - 1.6 3,917.2
CEMEX Central, S.A. de C.V. - - 828.3 -
Other............... 1.0 - 2.9 -
Ps 14,103.3 57,503.1 1,605.8 3,917.2
Parent Company 2002
Assets Liabilities
Short-Term Long-Term Short-Term Long-Term
CEMEX MexicOo, S.A. de C.Viiiiiieereeennneenannnnn Ps 19,521.8 16,323.6 - -
CEMEX International Finance Co. - - 264.8 10,898.4
CEMEX Trademarks Worldwide Ltd................... - - 151.9 5,833.9
Empresas Tolteca de Mexico, S.A. de C.V. ........ - - 4,322.6 -
CEMEX Central, S.A. de C.V. ..uuuiineeeennnnnnnnn - - 703.3 -
Assiut Cement COMPAaNy...eeeeeerennoeeeennnneeennn - - 384.7 -
International Investors LLC.........oviuvenennnnn - 372.7 - -
CEMEX Asia PTE. Ltd....eeeenenenenenennnnnnnnannn - - 71.9 -
Centro Distribuidor de Cemento, S.A. de C.V. - - 15.8 -
Sunbelt Trading, S.A. 44 .4 - - -
CEMEX Concretos, S.A. de C.V. 23.4 - - -
PT CEMEX Indonesia .. 13.9 - - -
[0 4T 14.8 - 8.2 -
Ps 19,618.3 16,696.3 5,923.2 16,732.3

The main transactions carried out during the last three years with related
parties are:

2000 2001 2002
Rental InCOmME. . vttt ittt ittt it iiienenneneennenann 313.5 294.0 280.6
License feesS...uunt ettt it 2,616.1 1,890.8 186.8
Financial eXpenSe......eiui it intentinrneenrnreneeneennnn (783.1) (625.6) (812.1)
Financial InCome......uuiunin ittt nenenenennn 2,471.3 4,828.2 3,147.8
Dividends received.......oiuiiiiiiii it 517.4 - 2,193.8
8. INCOME TAX (IT), BUSINESS ASSETS TAX (BAT)

In accordance with the effective tax legislation in Mexico, corporations must
pay either income tax ("IT") or business assets tax ("BAT") depending on which
amount is greater for their operations in Mexico. Both taxes recognize the
effects of inflation, though in a manner different from Mexican GAAP.

The IT benefit, presented in the accompanying income statements, is summarized
as follows:

SCHEDULE I (continued)

CEMEX, S.A. DE C.V.
NOTES TO THE PARENT COMPANY ONLY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS- (Continued)
December 31, 2000, 2001 and 2002
(Millions of constant Mexican pesos as of June 30, 2003)



2000 2001 2002

Current iNCOME LaAX....uuuneerrnnnnneennnnneeeennnnneennnnn (446.6) - -

Received from subsidiaries.. . e 760.4 685.4 942.3

Deferred IT. ...ttt ittt it eai e enennennanns 637.6 667.1 1,291.8
Ps 951.4 1,352.5 2,234.1

Arising from its Mexican subsidiaries, the Company has accumulated IT loss
carry forwards which, restated for inflation, can be amortized against taxable
income in the succeeding ten years according to Income Tax Law:

Year in which tax loss occurred Amount of Year of
carryforwards expiration

2005
2010
2011
2012

The Company and its subsidiaries in Mexico must generate taxable income to
preserve the benefit of the tax loss carryforwards generated beginning in
1999.

The BAT Law establishes a 1.8% tax levy on assets, restated for inflation in
the case of inventory and fixed assets, and deducting certain liabilities. BAT
levied in excess of IT for the period may be recovered, restated for
inflation, in any of the succeeding ten years, provided that the IT incurred
exceeds BAT in such period.

The recoverable BAT as of December 31, 2002 is as follows:

Year in which BAT exceeded IT Amount of Year of
carryforwards expiration
S Ps 162.3 2007
S 58.6 2009

Ps 220.9

9. ITEMS NOT AFFECTING CASH FLOWS

Items charged or credited to the results of operations, which did not
generated the use of resources, are summarized as follows:

2000 2001 2002
Depreciation of pProperties......o.ieeiiiiiiiniinnneeneenns 5.0 5.1 5.1
Amortization of deferred charges and credits, net............ 174.1 647.8 190.0
Deferred income tax credited to results . . (637.5) (667.1) (1,291.8)
Equity in income of subsidiaries and affiliates.............. (6,405.0) (10,641.1) (4,654.3)

(6,863.4) (10,655.3) (5,751.0)

10. CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

As of December 31, 2002, CEMEX has signed as guarantor of loans made to



certain subsidiaries for approximately U.S.$55.2 million. As of the same date,
the Company and certain subsidiaries have guaranteed the risks associated with

certain financial transactions,

assuming contingent obligations under standby

letters of credit, issued by financial institutions for a total of U.S. $

175.0 million.

CEMEX,
December 31,
(Millions of constant Mexican pesos as of June 30,

S.A. DE C.V.
2000, 2001 and 2002

2003)

SCHEDULE II

Valuation and Qualifying Accounts as of December 31, 2000, 2001 and 2002, is as

follows:

Balance at Charged to

Beginning of Costs and Balance at
Description Period Expenses Deductions Other (s) End of Period
Year ended December 31, 2000:
Allowance for doubtful accounts 577.6 113.5 148.6 (60.4) 482.1
Year ended December 31, 2001:
Allowance for doubtful accounts 482.1 77.6 40.6 (5.2) 513.9
Year ended December 31, 2002:
Allowance for doubtful accounts 513.9 247.3 291.2 18.9 488.9
(1) Amounts included in "Others" primarily result from the effects of

foreign currency translation and the inflation adjustment of the

initial balance in the restatement to constant pesos as of the end of

the same period.



EXHIBIT 2

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

We hereby consent to the incorporation by reference into (i) Post-Effective
Amendment No. 4 to the Registration Statement on Form F-3 (File No. 333-11382)
of CEMEX, S.A. de C.V., (ii) the Registration Statement on Form F-3 (File No.
333-86700) of CEMEX, S.A. de C.V., (iii) the Registration Statement on Form S-8
(File No. 333-13970) of CEMEX, S.A. de C.V., (iv) the Registration Statement on
Form S-8 (File No. 333-83962) of CEMEX, S.A. de C.V. and (v) the Registration
Statement on Form S-8 (File No. 333-86060) of CEMEX, S.A. de C.V., of our
report, dated January 15, 2003 (except for the restatement described in the
third paragraph of that report, which is as of September 18, 2003, and note 23,
which is as of March 24, 2003), with respect to the consolidated balance sheets
of CEMEX, S.A. de C.V. and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2002 and 2001, and
the related consolidated statements of income, changes in stockholders' equity
and changes in financial position for each of the years in the three year
period ended December 31, 2002, which report appears in this Report on Form 6-K
of CEMEX, S.A. de C.V.

KPMG Cardena Dosal, S.C.
/s/ Leandro Castillo Parada

Leandro Castillo Parada

Monterrey, N.L., Mexico
October 1, 2003



EXHIBIT 3

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

We hereby consent to the incorporation by reference into (i) Post-Effective
Amendment No. 4 to the Registration Statement on Form F-3 (File No. 333-11382)
of CEMEX, S.A. de C.V., (ii) the Registration Statement on Form F-3 (File No.
333-86700) of CEMEX, S.A. de C.V., (iii) the Registration Statement on Form S-8
(File No. 333-13970) of CEMEX, S.A. de C.V., (iv) the Registration Statement on
Form S-8 (File No. 333-83962) of CEMEX, S.A. de C.V. and (v) the Registration
Statement on Form S-8 (File No. 333-86060) of CEMEX, S.A. de C.V., of our
reports dated January 11, 2001 relating to the financial statements of Compania
Minera Atoyac, S.A. de C.V., Cementos Anahuac, S.A. de C.V., Cementos del
Norte, S.A. de C.V., Proveedora Mexicana de Materiales, S.A. de C.V., Compania
de Transportes del Mar de Cortes, S.A. de C.V., Cementos Guadalajara, S.A. de
C.V., Cementos de Oriente, S.A. de C.V., Autotransportes de Huichapan, S.A. de
C.V., Cemex Concretos, S.A. de C.V. and Granos y Terrenos, S.A. de C.V., which
reports appear in this Report on Form 6-K of CEMEX, S.A. de C.V.

PricewaterhouseCoopers

/s/ Hector Puente S.

Hector Puente S.

Monterrey, N.L.
Mexico
October 1, 2003
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